
 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  A RECEPTION WILL BE HELD IN THE CHAPMAN ROOM (ROOM 200) 
FROM 2:30 – 3:30 FOR COMMISSIONERS CAROLYN COOPER AND TOM MCMACKEN  

 
1 Meeting Called to Order  

  

2 

Invocation     Reverend Talia Raymond, First Congregational Church 
Pledge of Allegiance   

 

 

  3 Oath of Office – Commissioners Carolyn Cooper and Tom McMacken 

 

4  Approval of Agenda  
 

5 Mayor’s Report   

 

a. Presentation - Friends of Fleet Peeples Park volunteer efforts 
b. Presentation – Victim Service Center of Central Florida, Inc. 

c. Proclamation - Edwin Ford Day 
d. Proclamation - Purchasing Month 

e. Proclamation - Water Conservation Month 
f. Board appointment: 

– Hannibal Square Community Land Trust Inc. – David Crabtree 

  10 minutes  
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3:30 p.m. 
March 14, 2011 

Commission Chambers 

 
Regular Meeting 

 
                     March 25, 2013 

3:30 p.m. 
 

Commission Chambers 
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6 City Manager’s Report   Projected Time 

 
a. Direction to advertise establishment of City FLU/Zoning on the non-

PD portion of the Ravaudage/Home Acres annexation area 
5 minutes 

 

7 City Attorney’s Report Projected Time 

   
 

  8 Non-Action Items Projected Time 

 
a. Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 

year ended September 30, 2012.   
15 minutes 

 

9 

Citizen Comments  |  5 p.m. or soon thereafter   

(if the meeting ends earlier than 5:00 p.m., the citizen comments will 

be at the end of the meeting)  (Three (3) minutes are allowed for each 

speaker; not to exceed a total of 30 minutes for this portion of the meeting) 
 

10 Consent Agenda 
Projected 

Time 

 

a. Approve the minutes of 3/11/13. 

b. Approve the following purchases and contracts: 
1. PR 151714 to NDI Recognition Systems for Veriplate Automatic 

License Plate Recognition Solution and authorize the Mayor to 

execute the quote documents; $71,478. 
2. PR 151854 to Seminole County Sheriff’s Office for annual 

maintenance, support, upgrades and connectivity for Computer 
Aided Forms Entry Management System; $50,000. 

3. Contract renewal with Southeastern Surveying and Mapping 

Corporation for RFQ-2-2012 Continuing Contract for Professional, 
Architectural & Engineering Services (Survey Services) and 

authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment 1. 
4. Piggybacking the Florida Sheriff’s Association contract 14-15-06-

131 for tires and related services with Boulevard Tire Center and 

authorize the Mayor to execute the Piggyback Contract. 
5. Piggybacking the City of Daytona Beach contract 1210-1960 with 

USA Services of Florida for street sweeping services and authorize 
the Mayor to execute the Piggyback Contract. 

c. Award RFP-11-2013 Federal Lobbying Services to Alcalde & Fay 

Government & Public Affairs Consultants 

 
5 minutes 

 

 

11 Action Items Requiring Discussion Projected Time 

 a. Alfond Inn New England Avenue Traffic Study 20 minutes 
 

12 Public Hearings Projected Time 

 

a. a. Request of Winter Park Town Center Development LLC: 
b.  - Final conditional use approval to construct a four story, 206 unit 

 residential project and to construct a parking garage of 
 approximately 300 Spaces at 940 West Canton Avenue. 

c.  
 
 

   
         30 minutes 
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d. b. Request of Sydgan Corporation: 

e.  - Ordinance - Changing the Future Land Use designation of Single
 Family Residential and Institutional to Office Future Land Use on 

 the properties at 216, 226 and 234 West Lyman Avenue  (1) 
f.  
g.  - Ordinance – Changing the zoning designation of Single Family (R-

 1A) District and Public, Quasi-Public (PQP) District to Office (O-2) 
 District on the properties at 216, 226 and 234 West Lyman 

 Avenue  (1) 
h.  
i. c. Ravaudage Community Development District (CDD) 

- Ordinance – Granting petition of Benjamin Partners, Ltd.; 
establishing and naming the Ravaudage Community 

Development District pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; 
describing and providing the external boundaries, the functions 
and the powers of the District; designating five persons to serve 

as the initial members of the District’s Board of Supervisors  (1) 

 
          

         30 minutes 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
         90 minutes 

          

 

13 Non Action Item Projected Time 

 a. a. Ravaudage Interlocal agreement discussion 30 minutes 
 

14 City Commission Reports Projected Time 

 

a. Commissioner Leary 
b. Commissioner Sprinkel 
c. Commissioner Cooper 
d. Commissioner McMacken 
e. Mayor Bradley 

10 minutes each 

 































 

 

 

 
 

Below are issues of interest to the Commission and community that are currently being worked 

on by staff, but do not currently require action on the Commission agenda. These items are 

being tracked to provide the Commission and community the most up to date information 

regarding the status of the various issues. The City Manager will be happy to answer questions 

or provide additional updates at the meeting. 

 

issue                    update date 

Lee Road Median 

Update 

Currently developing a construction 

schedule. 
TBD 

Fairbanks 

Improvement 

Project 

Contract has been awarded to Masci 

General Contractor, Inc.   

 

Progress Energy continuing to study 

transmission/distribution lines between 

I-4 and 17-92.  FDOT has approved 

funding for PEF project engineering. 

 

Project website has been set up at 

www.cityofwinterpark.org/fairbanks  

Construction Project     

On schedule 

Communication Notices 

 Force main work largely 

completed south of Lee 

Road (day work) 

 Contractor working on 

Fairbanks (day and night 

work). 

 Jackson lift station is 

largely complete.  

Gravity sewer is 

complete from Shoreview 

to Clay.  Some soil 

contamination has been 

encountered. 

 Streetlight conduit and 

pole foundations being 

installed. 

 Decorative lights have 

been ordered. 

 Mast arm foundations 

and poles being installed. 

 Gravity sewer has 

progressed past the 

Formosa intersection and 

Formosa/Fairbanks has 

been reopened. Work on 

the street light pole 

bases continues and is 

approximately 80% 

complete. 

Traffic Study 

Alfond Inn 

Study is complete.  Staff has met with 

the residents on Alexander Place, Jim 

Campesi, owner/rep. for the Villa Siena 

condos and Rollins College to vet the 

proposals and recommendation.  This 

will be on the City Commission agenda 

on March 25th. 

March 2013 
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Tree Team 

Updates 

Individual educational sessions based on 

tree inventory study are currently being 

scheduled with City Commission. 

April 2013 

Wayfinding Signs 

All non-FDOT wayfinding signs are 

installed.  Permitting of the FDOT signs 

continues.  Private property agreements 

under development for nine (9) locations 

have been notified for permission. 

Installation of Phase 2 

scheduled for month of May. 

ULI Fairbanks 

Avenue TAP 
Staff is working on the vision session. April 2013 

Post Office 

Discussions 

Received letter from USPS on August 6, 

2012 regarding right of first refusal.  No 

action at this time. 

 

Organizational 

Support 

Will be discussed along with preliminary 

FY14 budget 
May/June 2013 

Utility 

Billing/Recurring 

credit cards 

 

New software is being implemented.   

Contract on February 11 agenda for 

approval.  Project implementation and 

testing during March.  Go live April. 

April 2013 

Amtrak/SunRail 

Station 

Plans have been permitted, contract 

signed; construction schedule to be 

received at pre-construction meeting 

3/21. 

March 2013 

Quiet Zones 
Plans have been sent to FDOT 

consultants for revisions. 
March 2013 

Wholesale Power 

Supply 

Ongoing negotiations with multiple 

suppliers. 
May/June 2013 

Territory 

Negotiations 

Ongoing discussions with Progress 

Energy/Duke 
May/June 2013 

 

 

Once projects have been resolved, they will remain on the list for one additional meeting to 

share the resolution with the public and then be removed. 



 

 
 

 
Below is the status of development projects previously approved by the City Commission 

and others that may be of interest.  There changes or updates since the last report on 

February 11th are shown in blue.   

 
550 N. Denning: (behind the WP Village) Atlantic Housing 105 senior apartments and 

has applied for their site development and building permits.  The City issued the 

foundation permit on March 14th so that construction could begin.   

 
940 W. Canton: Apartments at Winter Park Village.  That 204 unit project went to P&Z 

on March 5th and is on the March 25th City Commission agenda for ‘final’ conditional use 
approval. 

 
401 N. Orlando Avenue (ABC Liquors plans a new larger store) were approved on 

November 26th by the City Commission. They applied for their site development permit 
and that is in plan review awaiting responses from the developer. 

 
901 N. Orlando Avenue: Wawa Store – The permit for the site development has been 

issued and construction has begun. The permit for the building construction is ready to 
be issued. 
 

400 W. Swoope Avenue – A ten unit townhouse project that received the zoning 
approval from the City Commission in February, 2012.  They have modified the project 

to be nine units in order to improve the floor plans and marketability and the building 
permit is ready to be issued. 

 
347/349/351 N. Orlando Avenue:  Liquidation Station is closing and vacating their three 
buildings.  The northernmost building at the corner of Trovillion and Orlando Avenues 

has been issued permit for conversion a Performance Bicycle business.  Similar 

conversions of these buildings for other new businesses are expected in the near future.  

 
111 and 131 N. Orlando Avenue: The “preliminary” conditional use redevelopment plans 

for 36,000 sq. ft. of retail, restaurant and bank were approved by the City Commission 

on February 25th and will return in the upcoming months for the “final” conditional use 

approval. 

 

140 N. Orlando Avenue: (just north of Midas Muffler): The new Carmel Café restaurant 
has begun their construction. That restaurant is owned by the same entity that 

developed the Outback chain.  
 

200 N. Orlando: (just north of the new Carmel Café):  The building permit for the 
conversion of that existing building into a new medical office for cosmetic surgery has 

been applied for and is in plan review. 
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2215 Aloma Avenue: New First Watch restaurant going into the Aloma Shopping center 

(Publix) in the location on the west side of the shopping center behind Mellow Mushroom 
pizza building in the space that was a Blockbuster Video which closed in 2010.  They 

have been issued their interior renovation building permit.   

 
810 N. Orlando Avenue: TD Bank has the former BP gas station site (now vacant) at the 

corner of Webster and Orlando Avenues under contract.  The redevelopment plans for a 

TD branch bank were approved by the City Commission on January 28th. 

 
941 W. Morse Blvd.:  CNL Building (former State Office building) – Building permits have 

been issued and construction is underway.  

 
100 Perth Lane – Dr. Bruce Breit (Women’s Care Florida) and WP Hospital - Conditional 

Use approved by the City on January 23rd  to a new construct 22,000 sq. ft. medical 

office.  Building permit has now been issued and construction on-going. 
 

200 E. Canton Avenue: Sestiere Santa Croce   This is the former Rob Vega luxury condo 
(was to be 6 units) across from St. Margaret Mary.  Permit issued for the first floor 

interior build-out which will be office space.  Permit application also issued for the 
second and third floors which will be a residence for the building owner.   
 

600 N Orlando Avenue:  Borders Books – Redevelopment approved by the City 

Commission on March 26, 2012.  The new Chase Bank is the linchpin to the project and 

the bank has a very long due diligence period which includes FDIC approval.  All 
indications are that the project is moving ahead but the timing is not known.  

 
For more information on these or other projects, please contact Jeff Briggs, Planning 

Director at jbriggs@cityofwinterpark.org or at (407) 599-3440.   
 



 

 

 

 

subject 
 

Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended September 

30, 2012 

 

motion | recommendation 
 

No action is necessary 

 

background 
 

City staff prepared the CAFR and it was audited by James Moore & Company, P.L.  See attached 

summary of highlights of the report. 

 

alternatives | other considerations 
 

None 

 

fiscal impact 
 

None 

 

long-term impact 
 

None 

 

strategic objective 
 

N/A 

Regular Meeting 

 
3:30 p.m. 

January 11, 2010 
Commission Chambers 

Regular Meeting 

 
3:30 p.m. 

January 11, 2010 
Commission Chambers 

Non-Action Item 

Wes Hamil, Finance Director 

Finance 

 

March 25, 2013 

 



 

 

 

Financial Report  

 
For the Month of September (100% of fiscal year lapsed)     Fiscal Year 2012  

 
 

1. For an overview of the City’s financial condition and results of operations, see 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 19 of the report.  

Also, the transmittal letter beginning on page 7 provides an introduction to 

the report describing the City’s and auditors’ responsibilities as well as local 

economic conditions and long-term financial planning measures. 

 

2. Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund decreased by $599,546 in FY 

2012 to $8,953,558, and was 21.86% of total expenditures and transfers out 

for recurring operational costs reported in other funds.   

 

The most significant reasons for the decrease include less electric utility tax 

and franchise fee revenue (combined decrease of $540,807 from FY 2011) 

and less flexibility in departmental budgets.  Tighter budgets have made it 

more difficult for departments to come in under budget with no significant 

reduction in core service levels.  Departmental budgets were routinely over 

$1,000,000 under budget in prior years.  Last year, departmental budgets 

were over $600,000 under budget and in the current year, the positive 

variance was only a little over $20,000.  A five year history of General Fund 

expenditure budget variances follows: 
 

 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 

Final GF 
Budgets 

$43,788,744 $42,191,546 $41,240,316 $41,013,227 $42,263,433 

GF Actual 
Expenditures 

$41,806,599 $40,501,836 $40,004,202 $40,385,803 $42,243,349 

Variance $1,982,145 $1,689,710 $1,236,114 $627,424 $20,084 

Variance as a 
Percentage of 
Budget 

4.53% 4.00% 3.00% 1.53% 0.04% 

 

Also, the rollover of $636,907 in open purchase orders from FY 2011 to FY 

2012 authorized the use of this much fund balance.  Had all revenues and 

expenditures exactly equaled the final adjusted budget, fund balance would 

have decreased by $329,407 ($636,907 decrease for the purchase order 

rollover - $110,500 for contingency budget remaining - $197,000 for 

commuter rail funding placeholder). 

 

3. The balance owed to other funds by the Electric Services Fund was eliminated 

in the current year. Money had been borrowed from other funds for capital 

improvements to increase the reliability of the system following its acquisition 

by the City in 2005.  The amount borrowed from other funds peaked at over 

$11M in 2008.  By 09-30-2011, this balance had been reduced to $2,995,087 

and it has now been reduced to zero. 

 

For the first time, the Electric Services Fund had a positive cash balance on 

the balance sheet.  This balance was $2,175,388 at 09-30-2012.  Electric 

operations provided net income of $5,172,833 for the year and net revenues 

of the system were 3.08 times debt service as compared to a minimum 

requirement of 1.25. 

 



 

 

 

4. Water and wastewater operations provided positive net income of 

$1,866,880.  Of this amount, $429,345 was from water and sewer impact 

fees and is restricted for expansion of the system.  Net water and wastewater 

revenues were 1.95 times debt service as compared to a minimum 

requirement of 1.25.  Fitch Ratings recently affirmed its AA- rating of our 

water and sewer bonds with a stable outlook. 

 

5. The auditors’ have provided recommendations which are reflected on pages 

143-144 and 148.  City staff responses to the comments are included on 

pages 149-150. 
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March 19, 2013 
 
 
To the Honorable Members of the City 

Commission and the Citizens of the 
City of Winter Park, Florida: 

 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of 
Winter Park, Florida (City) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2012, is hereby submitted.  This report consists of management’s 
representations concerning the finances of the City.  Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of all of the information presented in this report.  To provide 
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the 
City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 
designed both to protect the City’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and 
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the 
City’s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls 
should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive 
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable 
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free 
of material misstatement.  As management, we assert that, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable 
in all material respects. 
 
James Moore & Company, P.L., a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants, has audited the City’s financial statements.  The goal of 
the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2012, are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit 
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The 
independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, are 
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditors’ 
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this 
report. 
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GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it.  The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors. 

Profile of the City 
 
The City, incorporated in 1887, is located in Central Florida in north Orange County and is 
considered part of the Orlando Metropolitan Area.  Although the Orlando Metropolitan Area has 
been one of the top growth areas in the country, generally, Winter Park has seen only modest 
population growth since 1970.  The City currently occupies a land area of approximately nine 
square miles and serves a population of 27,728.  The City is empowered to levy a property tax on 
both real and personal properties located within its boundaries.  It is also empowered by state 
statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed 
appropriate by the City Commission. 
 
The City operates under the commission-manager form of government.  Policy-making and 
legislative authority are vested in the City Commission (Commission) consisting of the Mayor 
and four commissioners.  The Commission is responsible, among other things, for passing 
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both the City Manager and 
Attorney.  The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the 
Commission, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, and for appointing the heads 
of various departments.  The Commission is elected on a non-partisan basis.  Commission 
members serve three-year staggered terms, with two commission seats or the mayor’s seat up for 
election each year. The mayor and commissioners are elected at large. 
 
The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the construction 
and maintenance of streets, sidewalks and infrastructure; engineering; planning and community 
development; code enforcement; general administration and support services; and recreational 
activities and cultural events.  In addition, the City operates two enterprises: water and sewer 
service and electric service.  The City has also contracted with a private firm to provide solid 
waste collection services. 
 
The annual budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control.  In 
April, the City Manager presents goals for the upcoming budget and capital improvement plan as 
part of a strategic planning session with the City Commission.  Discussions address levels of 
service to be provided by departments and capital spending requirements.  The outcome of the 
strategic planning session helps provide a framework for preparing a proposed budget. 
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Finance and City Management develop preliminary revenue estimates and departments of the 
City submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager by the end of May.  The public’s 
input to the budget process is invited at the beginning of each Commission meeting beginning in 
June.  A proposed budget is presented to the City Commission and a tentative millage cap is set 
in July.  Work sessions are held in August to discuss funding needs and budgetary priorities.  
The Commission is required to hold two public hearings on the budget and millage rate in 
September and adopt a final budget and millage rate by no later than September 30, the close of 
the City’s fiscal year. 
 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund.  Transfers between accounts within the same fund 
may be made with City Manager approval.  Transfers between funds and adjustments that 
increase the overall budget of a fund require approval of the City Commission.  Budget-to-actual 
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an 
appropriated budget has been adopted.  For the General Fund and other major special revenue 
fund (Community Redevelopment Agency), this comparison is presented as required 
supplemental information.  For nonmajor governmental funds, this comparison is presented in 
the combining financial statements. 
 

Budgetary and Internal Accounting Controls 
 
The budget is an integral part of the financial accounting system.  The City proposes an annual 
budget for all departments, which must be approved by the City Commission.  Encumbrances are 
recorded for all significant expenditures at the time a purchase commitment is made.  Line item 
expenditure reports are accessible to all departments and include: budgeted amounts, actual 
expenditures, encumbered amounts, and budget balances remaining.  These reports are reviewed 
by each department where primary responsibility is placed. 
 
The City has prepared a ten year pro-forma forecast for the General Fund and five year Capital 
Improvements Plan.  These schedules provide information to assess the City’s long-term 
financial condition in comparison to the short-term focus of the CAFR and budget. 
 
The Finance Department monitors all financial activity on an ongoing basis.  Monthly reports 
summarizing the City’s financial activities are prepared for the City Commission. 
 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City 
operates. 
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Local economy.  The following table includes trend information on some key data: 
 
 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Taxable value of property (in 
thousands) $ 4,452,235 $ 4,497,504 $ 4,334,903 $ 3,908,162 $ 3,777,453 
Estimated costs of permitted 
construction (in thousands) $ 97,540 $ 65,321 $ 171,550 $ 176,060 $ 254,069 
Population  28,921  28,581  28,434  27,727  27,728 
Unemployment rate for Orange 
County  6.4%  11.5%  11.8%  10.1%  8.4% 
Building permit revenues $ 1,423,184 $ 939,956 $ 955,268 $ 1,200,156 $ 1,626,382 
Half-cent sales tax revenues $ 3,761,241 $ 3,314,364 $ 3,415,838 $ 3,623,327 $ 3,610,003 
 
Although still well behind the peak years of 2006 and 2007, the economy has shown signs of 
improvement with a small drop in unemployment and a significant increase in building permit 
revenues.  Taxable value of property declined for the fourth consecutive year which contributed 
to continued budgetary pressure.     
 
Long-term financial planning.  The City prepares a five year Capital Improvement Plan and 
ten year pro-forma forecast for the General Fund which is updated annually.  This data is 
included in the City’s annual budget document which is available at www.cityofwinterpark.org.  
This document projects the City’s major capital expenditures and related operating expenditures 
in addition to projecting regular operating expenditures, recurring capital expenditures and 
revenue. 
 
Among the highest priorities of the City Commission has been restoring General Fund balance to 
a healthy level after hurricanes and large one-time expenditures depleted the balance in recent 
years.  Significant progress has been made in this regard as a result of expenditure cuts that 
focused mainly on reducing budget flexibility (tightening the budget), achieving greater 
efficiency, freezing positions to generate short-term cost savings and eliminating positions to 
generate long-term cost savings.  Some select General Fund data for the past five years is 
highlighted in the table below: 
 

 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 
Number of authorized General 
Fund Employees 

376 354 348 353 354 

Total General Fund Expenditures $41,806,599 $40,501,836 $40,004,202 $40,385,803 $42,243,349 
General Fund Departmental 
Budgetary Variance (excludes non-
departmental and interfund transfer 
budgets) 

$1,982,145 $1,689,710 $1,236,114 $627,424 $20,084 

Operating millage rate 3.9950 4.0923 4.0923 4.0923 4.0923 
Property tax revenues $15,919,159 $16,282,449 $15,697,391 $14,390,954 $14,031,034
Unassigned General Fund Balance $2,731,283 $4,419,267 $6,675,058 $9,553,104 $8,953,558 
Unassigned General Fund as a 
Percentage Expenditures and 
Transfers Out for Recurring Costs 
Reported in Other Funds 

6.73% 11.17% 17.25% 24.64% 21.86% 
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Despite decreases in taxable value of property, the City has not increased its operating millage 
rate in several years.  Unassigned General Fund balance declined some in the current year.  The 
most significant reasons include less electric utility tax and franchise fee revenue (combined 
decrease of $540,807) and less flexibility in departmental budgets.  Tighter budgets have made it 
more difficult for departments to come in under budget with no significant reduction in core 
service levels. 
 
One of the most significant issues that will impact the City’s finances for many years is the 
decision to municipalize the electric distribution system which was purchased by the City in June 
2005. The City borrowed heavily from other funds in the early years of owning the system in 
order to improve the reliability of electric service.  This investment resulted in an interfund 
liability of $11,118,569 as of September 30, 2008.  As of September 30, 2012, this balance had 
been fully repaid.   
 
At this point, an important focus for the electric system will be the systematic undergrounding of 
electric power lines over the next twenty years.  Greater priority will be given to those areas that 
would benefit the most from the improved system reliability that comes from having the power 
lines underground. 
 
The most significant factors contributing to this improvement are: 
 

1. Increasing the base (non-fuel) rates established as part of the Electric Strategy Plan.  
These rates have not been increased since October 1, 2009.  Although rates were 
increased significantly at the time, we remain competitive with other electric utilities.  As 
of January 2013, the City’s monthly bill to a residential customer using 1,000 kWh was 
$115.71 as compared to the average of all municipal electric utilities in Florida of 
$119.69.  Fuel cost recovery rates are adjusted quarterly depending on the City’s costs. 

2. Our current bulk power purchase contracts are allowing us to take advantage of the 
currently lower cost of natural gas as a fuel source for power.  The City’s average cost of 
purchasing bulk power decreased from of $67.83 per mWh in the prior year to $55.25 per 
mWh in the current year.   
 

 
AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report 
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.  This was the thirty second consecutive 
year that the City has received this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR.  This report 
satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are 
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its 
annual budget document for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2011.  In order to qualify for 
the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget document was judged to be 
proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations 
guide and a communications device. 
 
The in-house preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and 
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department.  The significant amount of 
year-end closing procedures required prior to the audit could not have been accomplished 
without much hard work and personal sacrifice.   
 
Other City departments, although not extensively involved in year-end audit activities, 
contributed significantly by ensuring the accuracy and integrity of accounting information 
compiled throughout the year.  Without their diligence, the work of the Finance Department 
would have been considerably more difficult. 
 
Appreciation must also be expressed to the City's auditors, James Moore & Company, P.L., 
whose suggestions and attention to detail enhanced the quality of this report. 
 
Last, but certainly not least, special appreciation must be expressed to the City’s elected officials 
for their unyielding support and steadfast commitment to maintaining the financial integrity of 
the City. With their continued leadership, the City can look forward to a secure financial future. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

  
Randy B. Knight, CPA    Charles W. Hamil, III, CPA 
City Manager      Finance Director 
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of 
Winter Park for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2011.  The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing 
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial 
reporting. 
 
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents 
conform to program standards.  Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  The City of Winter Park has 
received a Certificate of Achievement for the last thirty two consecutive years (fiscal years 
1980 - 2011).  We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of 
Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor, City Commission, and City Manager 
  of the City of Winter Park, Florida: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Winter Park, 
Florida (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2012, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 15, 
2013, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and the required supplemental information, as listed in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and individual 
fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, as listed in the table of 
contents, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Daytona Beach, Florida 
March 15, 2013 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
 

As management of the City of Winter Park (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2012.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of 
transmittal. 
 
Financial Highlights  
 
• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 

$140,838,525 (net assets).  Of this amount, $38,725,029 (unrestricted net assets) may be used 
to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 

• The City’s total net assets increased by $8,795,211 (or 6.66%).  The governmental net assets 
increased by $2,538,910 (or 3.81%) and the business-type net assets increased by $6,256,301 
(or 9.56%).   

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$8,953,558, or 21.86% of total expenditures and transfers out for recurring operational costs 
reported in other funds as compared to 24.64% in the prior year.  Unassigned fund balance in 
the General Fund decreased by $599,546 in fiscal year 2012. 

• The balance owed to other funds by the Electric Services Fund was eliminated in the current 
year.  This balance was $2,995,087 in the prior year.  

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements.  The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 
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The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash 
flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 
vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the City include 
general government, communications, financial services, planning, community redevelopment 
agency, public works, police, fire, and parks and recreation and culture and community services.  
The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer and electric services. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental financial statements focus on 
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City maintains fourteen individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately 
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Community Redevelopment 
Fund, which are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other twelve governmental funds 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these 
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 
report. 
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The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and certain Special Revenue 
Funds.  Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for the General Fund and each 
major Special Revenue Fund that adopts a budget to demonstrate compliance with the budget 
and are presented as required supplemental information.  Budgetary comparisons for nonmajor 
special revenue funds are presented in the combining statements. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds.  Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water 
and sewer and electric services.  Internal service funds are an accounting device used to 
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions.  The City uses 
internal service funds to account for its fleet maintenance operations, vehicle replacement 
funding, and insurance.  Because services accounted for in internal service funds predominately 
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide 
separate information for the Water and Sewer Fund and Electric Services Fund.  The Water and 
Sewer Fund and Electric Services Fund are considered to be major funds of the City.  The 
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund 
financial statements.  Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form 
of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
Fiduciary funds.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the City.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.  The 
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.   
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary 
comparisons and the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its 
employees and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) obligations.   
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental and 
internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary 
information.   
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Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position.  In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $140,838,525 at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year. 
 
A significant portion of the City’s net assets (65.23%) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment) and other assets (goodwill, sewer capacity 
rights, etc.), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The City 
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of 
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities.   
 
       
  Net Assets 
  Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Total 
  2012  2011  2012  2011  2012  2011 
Current assets $ 30,742,868 $ 33,657,273 $ 51,176,758 $ 44,674,426 $ 81,919,626 $ 78,331,699 
Capital and other assets  80,814,641  78,090,534  175,827,239  177,443,790  256,641,880  255,534,324 
    Total assets  111,557,509  111,747,807  227,003,997  222,118,216  338,561,506  333,866,023 
Current and other liabilities  9,288,532  9,595,307  18,436,499  16,138,785  27,725,031  25,734,092 
Long-term liabilities  33,100,727  35,523,160  136,897,223  140,565,457  169,997,950  176,088,617 
    Total liabilities  42,389,259  45,118,467  155,333,722  156,704,242  197,722,981  201,822,709 
Net assets:             
Invested in capital assets, net of             
related debt  50,151,230  44,104,358  41,715,121  41,405,685  91,866,351  85,510,043 
Restricted  3,819,595  4,064,284  6,427,550  6,059,347  10,247,145  10,123,631 
Unrestricted  15,197,425  18,460,698  23,527,604  17,948,942  38,725,029  36,409,640 

    Total net assets $ 69,168,250 $ 66,629,340 $ 71,670,275 $ 65,413,974 $ 140,838,525 $ 132,043,314 
             

 
An additional portion of the City’s net assets (7.27%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining 27.50% is unrestricted and may 
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 
 
Unrestricted net assets of the City’s governmental activities decreased from $18,460,698 to 
$15,197,425.  Fund Balance of the General Fund decreased by $669,677 for reasons discussed 
below.  Unrestricted net assets set aside in the Capital Projects Fund decreased by $1,686,761 
primarily as a result of investments in City Hall upgrades.  The increase in the net Other Post 
Employment Benefits Obligation liability of $687,326 further reduced unrestricted net assets in 
governmental activities. 
 
Unrestricted net assets of the City’s business-type activities column increased from $17,948,942 
to $23,527,604.  $4,744,246 of this improvement came in the Electric Services Fund primarily as 
a result of lower costs of purchased power as discussed below.   
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The changes in net assets displayed below shows the governmental and business-type activities 
during the fiscal year.   
 
  Changes in Net Assets 
  Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Total 
  2012  2011  2012  2011  2012  2011 
Revenues:             
Program revenues:             
  Charges for services $ 13,854,046 $ 12,007,554 $ 73,435,502 $ 80,015,162 $ 87,289,548 $ 92,022,716
  Operating grants and             
   contributions  1,304,045  1,295,306  -  -  1,304,045  1,295,306
  Capital grants and            
   contributions  584,322  2,039,034  429,345  1,192,206  1,013,667  3,231,240
General revenues:           
  Property taxes  17,321,497  18,002,304  -  -  17,321,497  18,002,304
  Franchise fees  1,080,258  1,103,636  -  -  1,080,258  1,103,636
  Utility taxes  6,597,923  6,865,087  -  -  6,597,923  6,865,087
  Intergovernmental revenues  4,453,156  4,618,607  -  -  4,453,156  4,618,607
  Investment earnings  432,768  518,879  434,155  443,258  866,923  962,137
  Other  871,360  611,673  136,091  1,317,402  1,007,451  1,929,075

    Total revenues  46,499,375  47,062,080  74,435,093  82,968,028  120,934,468  130,030,108
Expenses:             
  General government  1,435,102  1,732,952  -  -  1,435,102  1,732,952
  Communications  221,754  182,525  -  -  221,754  182,525
  Finance  443,962  415,070  -  -  443,962  415,070
  Planning   624,632  418,942  -  -  624,632  418,942
  Building & code enforcement  1,288,129  1,290,115      1,288,129  1,290,115
  Community redevelopment             
    agency  896,561  1,176,585  -  -  896,561  1,176,585
  Public works  10,660,808  10,726,522  -  -  10,660,808  10,726,522
  Police  12,786,524  12,399,481  -  -  12,786,524  12,399,481
  Fire  10,179,839  10,161,440  -  -  10,179,839  10,161,440
  Parks and recreation  7,082,497  6,534,841  -  -  7,082,497  6,534,841
  Cultural &                 
    community services  1,550,212  1,411,212  -  -  1,550,212  1,411,212
  Interest on long-term debt  1,244,371  1,489,669  -  -  1,244,371  1,489,669
  Water and sewer  -  -  25,142,530  24,204,194  25,142,530  24,204,194
  Electric services  -  -  38,582,336  44,740,659  38,582,336  44,740,659
  Golf course  -  -  -  561,269  -  561,269

    Total expenses  48,414,391  47,939,354  63,724,866  69,506,122  112,139,257  117,445,476
Change in net assets             
  before transfers  (1,915,016)  (877,274)  10,710,227  13,461,906  8,795,211  12,584,632
Transfers  4,453,926  3,959,424  (4,453,926)  (3,959,424)  -  -
Change in net assets  2,538,910  3,082,150  6,256,301  9,502,482  8,795,211  12,584,632
Net assets – beginning, as 
restated 

 
66,629,340  63,547,190  65,413,974  55,911,492 

 
132,043,314 

 
119,458,682

Net assets – ending $ 69,168,250 $ 66,629,340 $ 71,670,275 $ 65,413,974 $ 140,838,525 $ 132,043,314
             

 
Governmental activities.  Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $2,538,910 
as compared to an increase of $3,082,150 in the prior year.  Explanations for some of the 
significant variances from the prior year are as follows: 
 
Charges for services increased as a result of several different factors: 
 

1. FY 2012 was the first full year of red light traffic cameras being in service.  This 
increased charges for services revenue by $507,715.   

2. Increased construction activity improved permit revenues by $426,240.  Large projects 
permitted in 2012 included the Bush Science Center at Rollins College and the Alfond 
Inn also by Rollins College. 
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3. In prior years, golf course operations were reported in a separate enterprise fund.  
Beginning in the current year, golf course operations were brought into the General Fund.  
This increased revenue in governmental activities by $388,529.  

4. The new Winter Park Community Center opened at the end of September 2011.  Rental 
revenues from this facility in FY 2012 totaled $126,895. 

Capital contributions for the prior year included grant funding for several projects.  The most 
significant ones were air conditioning and lighting improvements to City Hall and other City 
facilities ($270,826), resurfacing and other road improvements ($1,437,148), and stormwater 
infrastructure improvements ($136,281). 
 
Property tax revenues declined due to a 3.78% reduction in taxable valuation of property.  The 
operating millage rate was 4.0923 mills in both the current and prior years. 
 
Two factors were most significant in reducing general government expenses.  First, legal 
services were $107,785 less in the current year and second, election costs were $34,845 less as 
we were able to include the city election on the presidential preference primary ballot. 
 
Parks and recreation expenses increased since we had a full year of operating the new Winter 
Park Community Center in the current year.  In the prior year, programs were held in the Azalea 
Lane Recreation Center on a much smaller scale.  Recreation costs in Parks and Recreation 
increased in total by $357,746. 
 
Planning expenses in the prior year included costs to complete the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Net transfers from business-type activities to governmental activities were reduced by an 
$866,405 transfer from the General Fund to the Golf Course Enterprise Fund in the prior year.  
The purpose of this transfer was to eliminate the deficit net asset balance as of September 30, 
2011 in the Golf Course Enterprise Fund.  Beginning in FY 2012, golf course operations have 
been accounted for in the General Fund.   
 
Transfers from the Water and Sewer Fund and Electric Services Fund to the General Fund were 
both higher in the prior year, $62,456 and $354,447 higher, respectively.  Water and Sewer Fund 
transfers are based on non-sewer revenues for the thirty six month period ended March 31, 2011 
which were lower than the corresponding period ended March 31, 2010.  The transfer from the 
Electric Services Fund is the franchise fee equivalent the City formerly received from Progress 
Energy when it owned the distribution system.  This fee is down as a result of both lower overall 
kWh sales and much lower fuel cost recovery revenues.   
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Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $6,256,301 
as compared to an increase of $9,502,482 in the prior year.  Explanations for some of the 
significant variances from the prior year are as follows: 
 
Charges for services in the Electric Services Fund were $6,999,305 less than the prior year.  
Although total sales of kWh were down 2.3% most of the decrease was in fuel cost recovery 
revenues.  These revenues declined by $4,814,575 as a result of lower fuel costs.   
 
Charges for services in the Water and Sewer Fund increased by $851,018 as a result of water 
sales that increased by 2.2%.   
 
Capital grants and contributions in the prior year included large water and sewer impact fees 
from projects such as the expansion of Winter Park Towers (a retirement community). 
 
Other revenue in the prior year included $1,322,722 from Progress Energy in the form of 
Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL) insurance payments to reimburse the City for 
additional fuel costs paid to Progress Energy as a result of CR3 (a nuclear reactor) being out of 
production due to a crack in the steam generator’s containment wall.  The City passed on the 
higher costs of fuel as they were incurred and later reduced fuel cost recovery rates for the 
insurance reimbursements received.  Fuel cost recovery rates are adjusted up or down as 
necessary on a quarterly basis to match fuel cost recovery revenues as closely as possible with 
fuel cost expenses.  Other revenue in the current year included $104,565 in NEIL insurance 
payments. 
 
The cost of purchasing bulk power in the Electric Services Fund decreased by $6,432,394 due to 
a combination of favorable bulk power contracts with Progress Energy and Seminole Electric 
and lower natural gas prices.  The cost of purchasing power decreased from an average of $67.90 
per mWh in the prior year to $55.17 per mWh in the current year.   
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Major Governmental Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in 
assessing the City’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as 
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal 
year.  The City maintains two major governmental funds: the General Fund and the Community 
Redevelopment Fund. 
 
General Fund.  The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  At the end of the 
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $8,953,558, while total 
fund balance was $9,658,543.  As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to 
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to the fund’s total current 
expenditures.  Unassigned fund balance represents 21.86% of total expenditures and transfers out 
for recurring operational costs reported in other funds, while total fund balance represents 
23.59% of that same amount.  Total fund balance includes non-spendable balances such as 
inventory ($118,662), prepaid items ($2,247) and balances assigned via purchase order 
commitments that were re-appropriated in FY 2013 ($584,076). 
 
The General Fund’s fund balance decreased by $669,677 during the current fiscal year.  Reduced 
electric service rates and lower sales of kWh in the Electric Services Fund resulted in decreases 
of electric franchise fee and utility tax revenues in the General Fund of $354,447 and $186,360, 
respectively.  The following chart presents the General Fund’s unassigned fund balance as a 
percentage of total expenditures and transfers out for recurring operational costs reported in other 
funds for each of the past ten years. 
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The Government Finance Officers Association recommends, at a minimum, that general-purpose 
governments maintain unassigned fund balance in their general fund of no less than one to two 
months of regular general fund operating expenditures (or 8.33 – 16.67%).  The City’s 
Administrative Policy sets a General Fund Balance goal of 30% of expenditures and transfers out 
for recurring operating costs reported in other funds. 
 
The following graph presents the General Fund’s largest revenue sources over the past five 
years, excluding transfers in, which can identify growth trends.  These revenue sources 
comprised approximately 90% of General Fund revenues each year.  For purposes of this graph, 
electric franchise fees reported as revenue in the Electric Services Fund and subsequently 
transferred to the General Fund were included in the franchise fee revenue below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The property tax is by far the most significant single revenue source over which the City can 
exercise some control.  The City’s operating millage rate was increased from 3.9950 mills to 
4.0923 mills in FY 2009 where it has remained since.  The decreases in property tax revenue 
since 2008 above are all due to property tax reform and deterioration in assessed valuation of 
property.   
 
Both electric utility tax and franchise fees have decreased since peaking in 2010 as a result of 
lower kWh sales and lower electric rates.  Building permit revenues have increased markedly as 
construction activity has increased over the past two years.  While not as high as the peak in 
2006, permit revenues are higher than any other point in the past five years.   
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Community Redevelopment Agency.  Tax increment revenues decreased by $219,474 due to a 
4.79% decrease in taxable valuation of property within the Community Redevelopment Area.  
Valuation has decreased by 21.92% over the past three years.  As a result, the CRA has not been 
able to invest as much in pay-as-you-go capital projects such as streetscaping improvements as it 
had in the past.   
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Final amended appropriations for the General Fund were $42,460,433 and actual expenditures 
were $42,243,349.   
 
  Budgeted Amounts       
  

Original 

 

Final  Actual  

 Final vs. 
Original 
Budget 

 Final 
Budget vs. 

Actual 
General administration $ 1,814,276 $ 1,837,113 $ 1,706,778 $ 22,837 $ 130,335 
Communications  178,637  176,434  170,485  (2,203)  5,949 
Financial services  365,936  365,936  374,810  -  (8,874) 
Planning  645,049  708,957  529,980  63,908  178,977 
Building and code enforcement  1,289,385  1,292,765  1,293,544  3,380  (779) 
Public works  6,095,136  6,134,757  6,172,290  39,621  (37,533) 
Police  11,946,362  11,836,252  11,626,755  (110,110)  209,497 
Fire  9,334,614  9,351,829  9,799,706  17,215  (447,877) 
Parks and recreation  6,427,761  6,452,638  6,462,249  24,877  (9,611) 
Culture and community services  1,550,212  1,550,212  1,550,212  -  - 
Non-departmental  197,000  197,000  -  -  197,000 
Transfers to other funds  2,466,540  2,556,540  2,556,540  90,000  - 
Total $ 42,310,908 $ 42,460,433 $ 42,243,349 $ 149,525 $ 217,084 
           

 
The General Fund budget was increased by $149,525 from the original budget to the final 
budget.  The following table summarizes these adjustments: 
 
   
Increase for open purchase orders re-appropriated in the following fiscal year $ 636,911 
Mid-year budget adjustment to address projected shortfalls in revenues  (598,386) 
Contingency allocated for spending in the current year  90,000 
Appropriate projected overtime reimbursement to be received from Immigrations and Customs Enforcement program  15,000 
Appropriate fire inspection training fees revenues received in excess of original budget estimate  6,000 
Total increase in General Fund budget $ 149,525 
   

 
The variance between the final budget and actual expenditures for the general fund for the year 
was $217,084.  The positive variance in Planning is primarily due to budgetary savings in 
Economic Development activities.  Savings in the Police Department were achieved largely 
through vacant positions.  Extra expenditures in the Fire Department were due to overtime costs.  
The non-departmental budget of $197,000 is for commuter rail costs.  The City will not have to 
actually fund these costs until after the first seven years of commuter rail operation (which have 
not yet begun).  The purpose of the non-departmental budget allocation is to prepare the City for 
having to fund its maximum cost participation amount of $350,000 following the first seven 
years of operation.  This budget line will be increased by $17,000 each year until it reaches 
$350,000. 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of September 30, 2012, amounts to $254,681,051 (net of accumulated depreciation).  
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and 
equipment, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, streets and drainage, water and sewer transmission 
lines and facilities and construction in progress.   
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 

• $226,327 was invested to complete construction of the new Winter Park Community 
Center.   

• Air conditioning and lighting in City Hall and other City facilities were upgraded 
recently.  These projects were completed in the current year with additional funding of 
$1,654,900.  City Hall facilities were also upgraded with fresh paint, carpeting, 
landscaping and other upgrades.  $635,584 was spent in the current year and the project 
was completed in FY 2013. 

• Renovation of the Winter Park Golf Pro Shop was completed in the current year at the 
cost of an additional $148,916.   

• Implementation of the Ward Park Master Plan began in the current year with the 
investment of $447,627.  

• A multi-year project to upgrade the lighting at the athletic fields and tennis center began 
in FY 2011.  $151,822 was invested in this project in the current year. 

• Significant stormwater projects underway in the current year included retrofitting 
stormwater outfalls at Morse Boulevard ($203,086) and Nicolet Avenue drainage 
improvements ($281,682). 

• Routine Water and Sewer system improvements in the current year included water main 
upgrades ($668,696), sewer main upgrades ($388,969), rehabilitation of sewer manholes 
($75,828), short line sewer repairs ($196,051) and lift station repairs ($69,735). 

• The most significant Water and Sewer system project is the extension of sewer service 
along Fairbanks Avenue from 17-92 to I-4.  $482,266 was invested in this project in the 
current year. 

• The undergrounding of power lines along Temple Drive was completed with a current 
year investment of $826,858. 

• The T-2 transformer at the Canton Avenue Electric Substation was replaced at a cost of 
$708,366. 

• $1,802,284 was invested in routine capital improvements of the electric distribution 
system.  These capital expenditures were funded through electric rate revenues. 

• $1,764,646 in replacement vehicles were acquired in the current year.   
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  Capital Assets  
  Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Totals 

  2012  2011  2012  2011  2012  2011 
Land $ 15,136,501 $ 14,831,537 $ 12,194,774 $ 12,194,774 $ 27,331,275 $ 27,026,311 
Buildings and production           
facilities  40,469,360  28,627,489  3,506,065  3,506,065  43,975,425  32,133,554 
Improvements other than             
buildings  15,976,182  15,866,823  198,482,259  192,800,833  214,458,441  208,667,656 
Machinery and equipment  18,394,104  17,998,296  6,006,050  5,870,498  24,400,154  23,868,794 
Furniture and fixtures  716,574  716,574  42,657  42,657  759,231  759,231 
Vehicles  17,509,762  16,826,880  -  -  17,509,762  16,826,880 
Streets and drainage  57,486,548  53,353,219  -  -  57,486,548  53,353,219 
System acquisition costs  -  -  19,844,093  19,844,093  19,844,093  19,844,093 
Sewer contract costs  -  -  3,394,035  3,394,035  3,394,035  3,394,035 
Sewer capacity rights  -  -  19,464,854  19,183,838  19,464,854  19,183,838 
Construction in progress  3,164,606  15,039,568  2,108,606  2,091,938  5,273,212  17,131,506 
Less:  accum. depreciation   (88,282,963)   (85,440,045)  (90,933,016)  (83,304,773)  (179,215,979)  (168,744,818) 

Net capital assets $ 80,570,674 $ 77,820,341 $ 174,110,377 $ 175,623,958 $ 254,681,051 $ 253,444,299 
             

 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 in the notes to the 
financial statements.  
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt 
outstanding of $180,469,514.  Of this amount, $7,760,000 comprises debt backed by the full 
faith and credit of the City and the remainder represents bonds secured solely by specified 
revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds). 
 
 

  Outstanding Debt 
  General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 
  Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Total 
  2012  2011  2012  2011  2012  2011 
General obligation 
bonds 

$ 7,760,000 $ 8,700,000 $ - $ - $ 7,760,000 $ 8,700,000 

Revenue bonds  21,029,514  22,611,200  151,680,000  156,580,000  172,709,514  179,191,200 
Total bonds $ 28,789,514 $ 31,311,200 $ 151,680,000 $ 156,580,000 $ 180,469,514 $ 187,891,200 

             
 
In the current year, the City completed the following bond transactions: 
 
In October 2011, the City issued $14,155,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2011 for the purpose of refunding $14,940,000 of Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2002 maturing after December 1, 2012 for a net present value savings of $1,569,149. 
 
The City’s charter does require voter referendum for the following categories of bonds: 
 

• General obligation bonds 
• Revenue bonds intended to finance enterprises or projects which involve the purchase, 

lease and/or acquisition of real property, with the exception of property for parks. 
• Revenue bonds which pledge specific non-ad valorem taxes as the primary source(s) to 

pay the principal and interest and which have a principal value in excess of one million 
dollars.  This dollar limitation is adjusted annually as of the end of the fiscal year in 
accordance with changes in the cost-of-living index as published by the federal 
government.  This limitation, as adjusted, was $2,286,630 at the close of the most recent 
fiscal year. 
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The City received the following recent bond ratings: 
 
 Moody’s 

Investor Services
Fitch 

Ratings 
Standard & 

Poor’s 
 
General Obligation Bonds Aa1 - - 
Electric Revenue Bonds Aa3 AA- - 
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds Aa2 AA- AA- 

 
Additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities can be found in Notes 7 to 15 in the 
notes to the financial statements. 
 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
City staff monitors economic indicators on a continual basis.  Building permit revenues have 
increased significantly over the past two years after declining for four years following peak 
construction activity of 2006.  Property tax valuations declined for the fourth year in a row.  
However, the most recent decrease was only 0.32%.   
 
Adjustments to water and sewer rates were implemented effective December 1, 2012.  The newly 
adopted rates are projected to increase water volume revenues by 9.77% and reduce sewer 
volume revenues by 3.09%, with an overall increase in revenues of 4.20%.   The new rates 
eliminated a long standing discrepancy between the rates of residential and commercial 
customers by increasing the rates charged commercial customers to equal those of residential 
customers.   
 
Electric utility rates are anticipated to stay the same throughout fiscal year 2013 with the 
exception of fuel cost recovery rates which are adjusted quarterly to provide fuel cost recovery 
revenues equal to fuel costs.  Non-fuel cost recovery rates have not been increased since October 
1, 2009. 
 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of 
those with an interest in the City’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
Office of the Finance Director, 401 Park Avenue South, Winter Park, Florida 32789. 
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ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 23,137,653    $ 8,949,009          $ 32,086,662         
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,283,224      5,446,904          6,730,128           
Unbilled Service Charges 322,557         5,338,581          5,661,138           
Other Receivables -                    142,686              142,686              
Accrued Interest Receivable 44,345           36,907                81,252                
Internal Balances 783,412         (783,412)             -                         
Due from Other Governments 1,680,131      44                       1,680,175           
Inventories 305,236         2,834,663          3,139,899           
Prepaid Items 74,739           321,282               396,021              
Notes Receivable 83,200           -                          83,200                
Special Assessments Receivable 2,826,288      336,384              3,162,672           
Restricted Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -                    28,110,253        28,110,253         
Accrued Interest Receivable -                    18,992                18,992                
Accounts Receivable - Net -                    465                     465                     

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable 18,301,107    14,303,380        32,604,487         
Depreciable - Net 62,269,567    159,806,997      222,076,564       

Deposits 202,083         424,000              626,083              
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs 243,967         1,716,862          1,960,829           

Total Assets 111,557,509  227,003,997      338,561,506       

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 2,332,557      6,869,266          9,201,823           
Accrued Liabilities 2,434,116      413,558              2,847,674           
Due to Other Governments 115,155         843,240              958,395              
Deposits 135,179         3,357,345          3,492,524           
Accrued Interest Payable 300,673         2,422,611          2,723,284           
Unearned Revenue 354,418         -                          354,418              
Long-term Liabilities:

Due Within One Year:
Current Portion of Notes Payable 1,647,433      -                          1,647,433           
Current Portion of Capital Lease Obligations 204,341         -                          204,341              
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 965,000         4,320,000          5,285,000           
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 799,660         210,479              1,010,139           

Due In More Than One Year:
Notes Payable 19,382,081    -                          19,382,081         
Capital Lease Obligations 1,508,840      -                          1,508,840           
Bonds Payable 6,955,716      136,453,610      143,409,326       
Net Pension Obligation 878,673         -                          878,673              
Other Post Employment Benefits 1,464,509      -                          1,464,509           
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 2,910,908      443,613              3,354,521           

Total Liabilities 42,389,259    155,333,722      197,722,981       

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 50,151,230    41,715,121        91,866,351         
Restricted for:

Capital Projects (expendable) -                    5,836,207          5,836,207           
Renewal & Replacement (expendable) -                    591,343              591,343              
Law Enforcement (expendable) 1,067,152      -                          1,067,152           
Other Purposes (expendable) 2,752,443      -                          2,752,443           

Unrestricted 15,197,425    23,527,604        38,725,029         
Total Net Assets $ 69,168,250    $ 71,670,275        $ 140,838,525       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2012

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total
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Indirect Operating Capital
Expenses Grants and Grants and

Expenses Allocation Contributions Contributions

Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 2,615,917      $ (1,180,815)     $ $ -                        $ -                        
Communications 436,074         (214,320)        -                        -                        
Financial Services 813,325         (369,363)        -                        -                        
Planning 809,113         (184,481)        -                        -                        
Building and Code Enforcement 1,288,129      -                     -                        -                        
Community Redevelopment Agency 896,561         -                     -                        -                        
Public Works 11,457,849    (797,041)        208,843            565,073            
Police 12,786,524    -                     1,036,375        19,249              
Fire 10,179,839    -                     58,827              -                        
Parks and Recreation 7,176,077      (93,580)          -                        -                        
Cultural and Community Services 1,550,212      -                     -                        -                        
Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,244,371      -                     -                        -                        

Total Governmental Activities 51,253,991    (2,839,600)     1,304,045        584,322            

Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer 22,829,430    2,313,100      -                        429,345            
Electric Services 38,055,836    526,500         -                        -                        

Total Business-type Activities 60,885,266    2,839,600      -                        429,345            

$ 112,139,257  $ -                     $ $ 1,304,045        $ 1,013,667        

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Franchise Fees
Utility Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues, unrestricted
Investment  Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers 
Total General Revenues and Transfers
   Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

27,401,520      
46,033,982      

73,435,502      

Program Revenues

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

2,199,513        

13,854,046      

229,527           

1,228,860        

-                       

1,537,583        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Charges for
Services

714                  

87,289,548      

-                       
-                       

-                       
4,070               

2,269,925        

6,383,854        
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ (1,434,388)          $ -                          $ (1,434,388)            
(221,754)             -                          (221,754)               
(439,892)             -                          (439,892)               
(395,105)             -                          (395,105)               
981,796              -                          981,796                

(896,561)             -                          (896,561)               
(3,503,038)          -                          (3,503,038)            

(10,193,317)        -                          (10,193,317)          
(8,892,152)          -                          (8,892,152)            
(4,882,984)          -                          (4,882,984)            
(1,550,212)          -                          (1,550,212)            
(1,244,371)          -                          (1,244,371)            

(32,671,978)        -                          (32,671,978)          

-                          2,688,335           2,688,335             
-                          7,451,646           7,451,646             

-                          10,139,981         10,139,981           

(32,671,978)        10,139,981         (22,531,997)          

17,321,497         -                          17,321,497           
1,080,258           -                          1,080,258             
6,597,923           -                          6,597,923             
4,453,156           -                          4,453,156             

432,768              434,155              866,923                
871,360              136,091              1,007,451             

4,453,926           (4,453,926)         -                            
35,210,888         (3,883,680)         31,327,208           

2,538,910           6,256,301           8,795,211             
66,629,340         65,413,974         132,043,314         

$ 69,168,250         $ 71,670,275         $ 140,838,525         
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Other Total
Community Governmental

General Redevelopment Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 9,726,008           $ 2,591,115           $ 8,155,098           $ 20,472,221         
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,008,920           20,234                214,005              1,243,159           
Unbilled Service Charges 134,070              -                          188,487              322,557              
Accrued Interest Receivable 23,372                5,034                  10,761                39,167                
Due from Other Funds 214,102              -                          -                          214,102              
Due from Other Governments 1,177,225           -                          502,906              1,680,131           
Inventories 118,662              -                          42,125                160,787              
Prepaid Items 2,247                  -                          27,492                29,739                
Note Receivable -                          -                          83,200                83,200                
Special Assessments Receivable -                          -                          2,826,288           2,826,288           

Total Assets $ 12,404,606       $ 2,616,383         $ 12,050,362         $ 27,071,351       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 1,048,641           $ 9,224                  $ 985,508              $ 2,043,373           
Accrued Liabilities 1,107,043           11,467                51,061                1,169,571           
Due to Other Funds -                          -                          214,102              214,102              
Due to Other Governments 100,782              -                          -                          100,782              
Deposits 135,179              -                          -                          135,179              
Deferred/Unearned Revenue 354,418              16,034                2,562,611           2,933,063           

Total Liabilities 2,746,063           36,725                3,814,241           6,597,029           

Fund Balances:
Non Spendable

Inventories 118,662              -                          42,125                160,787              
Prepaid Items 2,247                  -                          27,492                29,739                

Spendable
Restricted

Community Redevelopment -                          2,579,658           -                          2,579,658           
Public Safety -                          -                          1,252,377           1,252,377           
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks -                          -                          232,929              232,929              
Community Enhancement Items -                          -                          286,864              286,864              

Committed
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks -                          -                          2,153,467           2,153,467           
Construction Projects -                          -                          3,922,466           3,922,466           

Assigned
Purchases on Order 584,076              -                          -                          584,076              
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks -                          -                          145,384              145,384              
Special Assessments -                          -                          173,017              173,017              

Unassigned 8,953,558           -                          -                          8,953,558           

Total Fund Balances 9,658,543           2,579,658           8,236,121           20,474,322         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 12,404,606       $ 2,616,383         $ 12,050,362         $ 27,071,351       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
September 30, 2012
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Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 20,474,322     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets are different because:

Receivables not expected to be received within 180 days of fiscal year end are not considered as 
"available" revenue in the governmental funds, and therefore, reported as deferred revenue.  In the
Statement of Net Assets, which is presented on the accrual basis, no deferral is reported since the 
revenue is fully recognized in the Statement of Activities 2,578,645       

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental Capital Assets $ 147,053,311  
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (71,668,459)   75,384,852     

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental Bonds Payable (7,997,748)     
Unamortized Issue Costs on Bonds Payable 243,967          
Deferred Amount on Refunding 77,032            
Governmental Notes Payable (21,029,514)   
Capital Lease Obligations (1,652,288)     
Accrued Interest Payable on Long-Term Liabilities (300,673)        
Net Pension Obligation (878,673)        
Compensated Absences (3,609,122)     (35,147,019)    

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs 
of certain activities to individual funds.

         
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 5,877,450       

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 69,168,250   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

September 30, 2012

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds
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Other Total
Community Governmental

General Redevelopment Funds Funds
REVENUES

Taxes:
Property Taxes $ 14,031,034    $ 2,090,103          $ 1,187,893         $ 17,309,030    
Utility Taxes 6,597,925      -                         -                        6,597,925      

Franchise Fees 1,080,258      -                         -                        1,080,258      
Fines and Forfeitures 891,649         -                         328,218            1,219,867      
Licenses and Permits 2,390,825      -                         200,829            2,591,654      
Intergovernmental:

Sales Tax 3,610,003      -                         -                        3,610,003      
Local Option Gas Tax 938,926         -                         -                        938,926         
Other Intergovernmental 1,620,854      -                         2,048,618         3,669,472      

Charges for Services 5,002,708      140,594             3,083,803         8,227,105      
Other 337,798         92,757               1,245,534         1,676,089      

Total Revenues 36,501,980    2,323,454          8,094,895         46,920,329    

EXPENDITURES  
Current:

General Administration 1,706,778      -                         -                        1,706,778      
Communications 170,485         -                         -                        170,485         
Financial Services 374,810         -                         -                        374,810         
Planning 529,980         878,918             88,029              1,496,927      
Building and Code Enforcement 1,293,544      -                         -                        1,293,544      
Public Works 6,172,290      -                         2,398,228         8,570,518      
Police 11,626,755    -                         1,458,434         13,085,189    
Fire 9,799,706      -                         438,835            10,238,541    
Parks and Recreation 6,462,249      -                         275,464            6,737,713      
Cultural and Community Services 1,550,212      17,668               -                        1,567,880      

Debt Service:
Principal -                     872,234             2,068,644         2,940,878      
Interest and Other Charges -                     683,013             570,326            1,253,339      

Capital Improvements -                     294,613             4,645,666         4,940,279      
Total Expenditures 39,686,809    2,746,446          11,943,626       54,376,881    

Deficiency of Revenues
   Over Expenditures (3,184,829)     (422,992)            (3,848,731)        (7,456,552)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)
Transfers In 5,071,692      -                         2,868,036         7,939,728      
Transfers Out (2,556,540)     -                         (604,262)           (3,160,802)     

Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 2,515,152      -                         2,263,774         4,778,926      

Net Change in Fund Balances (669,677)        (422,992)            (1,584,957)        (2,677,626)     

Fund Balances - Beginning 10,328,220    3,002,650          9,821,078         23,151,948    

Fund Balances - Ending $ 9,658,543    $ 2,579,658        $ 8,236,121         $ 20,474,322  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (2,677,626)     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Special assessment revenues in the governmental funds were recognized as revenues in 
prior periods in the government-wide financial statements since they are on the accrual
basis of accounting (457,798)        

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of these assets is depreciated over their useful lives.

Expenditures for Capital Assets $ 5,254,558          
Less:  Current Year Depreciation (3,293,275)         1,961,283       

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.  Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Change in Accrued Interest on Governmental Debt 23,210               
Amortization of Bond Premium 28,292               
Amortization of Bond Discount (1,863)                
Amortization of Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding (14,445)              
Amortization of Issuance Costs (26,226)              
Principal Payments on General Obligation Bonds 940,000             
Principal Payments on Notes Payable 1,055,276          
Principal Payments on Community Redevelopment Debt 872,234             
Principal Payments on Capital Lease Obligations 73,368               2,949,846       

Some expenses in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in Net Pension Obligation 391,009          
Change in Long-term Compensated Absences (107,738)        

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds.

Change in net assets of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Actitivies. 479,934          

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 2,538,910       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
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Water and Electric
Sewer Services Total Service Funds

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 6,706,819      $ 2,175,388      $ 8,882,207      $ 2,665,432      
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 66,802           -                     66,802           -                     
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,578,035      3,868,869      5,446,904      40,065           
Unbilled Service Charges 2,066,447      3,272,134      5,338,581      -                     
Other Receivables -                     142,686         142,686         -                     
Accrued Interest Receivable 22,272           14,635           36,907           5,178             
Due from Other Governments 44                  -                     44                  -                     
Inventories 1,206,295      1,628,368      2,834,663      144,449         
Prepaid Items 251,114         70,168           321,282         45,000           

Total current assets 11,897,828    11,172,248    23,070,076    2,900,124      

Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments:   
Sinking Funds 3,393,218      3,178,882      6,572,100      -                     
Renewal and Replacement Funds 601,696         -                     601,696         -                     
Impact Fee Funds 5,926,811      -                     5,926,811      -                     
Capital Project Funds 3,009,882      313,671         3,323,553      -                     
Customer Deposits 1,532,921      1,837,941      3,370,862      -                     

Investments:
Sinking Funds 1,801,149      2,512,532      4,313,681      -                     
Capital Project Funds 2,001,450      2,000,100      4,001,550      -                     

Accrued Interest Receivable:
Impact Fee Funds 11,228           -                     11,228           -                     
Renewal and Replacement Funds 1,618             -                     1,618             -                     
Capital Project Funds 6,146             -                     6,146             -                     

Accounts Receivable - Net:
Impact Fee Funds 465                -                     465                -                     

Special Assessments Receivable -                     336,384         336,384         -                     
Capital Assets:

Non-depreciable 4,216,237      10,087,143    14,303,380    -                     
Depreciable - Net 98,880,541    60,926,456    159,806,997  5,185,822      

Other Assets:
Deposits 274,000         150,000         424,000         202,083         
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs 773,980         942,882         1,716,862      -                     

Total non-current assets 122,431,342  82,285,991    204,717,333  5,387,905      

Total Assets 134,329,170  93,458,239    227,787,409  8,288,029      

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 819,934         6,049,332      6,869,266      289,184         
Accrued Liabilities 382,268         31,290           413,558         1,264,545      
Due to Other Governments 729,463         113,777         843,240         13,414           
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 186,452         24,027           210,479         26,447           
Accrued Interest Payable 1,110,567      1,312,044      2,422,611      -                     
Current Portion of Capital Lease Obligations -                     -                     -                     56,457           
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds Payable 2,590,000      1,730,000      4,320,000      -                     
Customer Deposits 1,519,404      1,837,941      3,357,345      -                     

Total current liabilities 7,338,088      11,098,411    18,436,499    1,650,047      

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital Lease Obligations After One Year -                     -                     -                     4,436             
Bonds Payable 67,805,137    68,648,473    136,453,610  -                     
Other Post Employment Benefits -                     -                     -                     1,464,509      
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 415,185         28,428           443,613         74,999           

Total noncurrent liabilities 68,220,322    68,676,901    136,897,223  1,543,944      

Total Liabilities 75,558,410    79,775,312    155,333,722  3,193,991      

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 38,486,953    3,228,168      41,715,121    5,124,929      
Restricted for:

Capital Projects (expendable) 5,836,207      -                     5,836,207      -                     
Renewal and Replacement (expendable) 591,343         -                     591,343         -                     

Unrestricted (Deficit) 13,856,257    10,454,759    24,311,016    (30,891)          

Total Net Assets $ 58,770,760  $ 13,682,927  72,453,687  $ 5,094,038      

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds (783,412)        

Net assets of business-type activities $ 71,670,275  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2012

Internal
ActivitiesEnterprise Funds

GovernmentalBusiness-type Activities
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Water and Electric
Sewer Services Total Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 27,401,520     $ 46,033,982     $ 73,435,502     $ 10,493,130     

Total Operating Revenues 27,401,520     46,033,982     73,435,502     10,493,130     

Operating Expenses:
General and Administrative 1,716,877       981,451          2,698,328       -                     
Operations 14,938,481     31,303,549     46,242,030     10,099,536     
Depreciation and Amortization 5,164,410       3,644,520       8,808,930       949,050          

Total Operating Expenses 21,819,768     35,929,520     57,749,288     11,048,586     

Operating Income (Loss) 5,581,752       10,104,462     15,686,214     (555,456)        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Earnings 376,911          57,244            434,155          37,863            
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets 400                 2,655              3,055              535,055          
Interest and Fiscal Charges (2,612,285)     (2,579,881)     (5,192,166)     -                     
Miscellaneous Revenue 6,853              126,183          133,036          4,060              

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (2,228,121)     (2,393,799)     (4,621,920)     576,978          

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 3,353,631       7,710,663       11,064,294     21,522            

Contributions and Transfers:
Capital Contributions 429,345          -                     429,345          -                     
Transfers Out (1,916,096)     (2,537,830)     (4,453,926)     (325,000)        

Total Contributions and Transfers (1,486,751)     (2,537,830)     (4,024,581)     (325,000)        

Change in Net Assets 1,866,880       5,172,833       7,039,713       (303,478)        

Total Net Assets - Beginning 56,903,880     8,510,094       5,397,516       

Total Net Assets - Ending $ 58,770,760   $ 13,682,927   $ 5,094,038     

(783,412)        

Change in net assets of business-type actitivies $ 6,256,301       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Internal
Activities

GovernmentalBusiness-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

 Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund 
activities related to enterprise funds 
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Governmental

Water and Electric
Sewer Services Total Service Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers $ 27,099,522    $ 46,206,022    $ 73,305,544    $ 278,239             

Receipts from Interfund Services Provided -                    -                    -                    10,370,957         

Repayment of Loans from Other Funds 1,105,737      -                    1,105,737      188,267             

Payments to Suppliers (9,075,986)     (30,258,325)   (39,334,311)   (2,699,684)         

Payments to Employees (5,108,760)     (722,083)        (5,830,843)     (811,973)            

Payments for Interfund Services Used (2,104,206)     (154,155)        (2,258,361)     (175,471)            

Repayment of Loans to Other Funds -                    (2,909,166)     (2,909,166)     (151,208)            

Claims Paid -                    -                    -                    (5,747,737)         

Other Receipts 6,853             126,183         133,036         4,060                 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 11,923,160    12,288,476    24,211,636    1,255,450           

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers Out (1,916,096)     (2,537,830)     (4,453,926)     (325,000)            

Net Cash Used in Noncapital 
Financing Activities (1,916,096)     (2,537,830)     (4,453,926)     (325,000)            

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Proceeds from Sale of Assets 400                2,655             3,055             567,088             

Purchases of Capital Assets (1,734,297)     (3,911,572)     (5,645,869)     (1,668,557)         

Proceeds from Debt Issued 14,683,083    -                    14,683,083    -                         

Debt Refunded (15,093,530)   -                    (15,093,530)   -                         

Principal Payments - Capital Debt (2,495,000)     (1,620,000)     (4,115,000)     (46,019)              

Interest Paid (3,150,076)     (2,747,512)     (5,897,588)     -                         

Impact Fees Collected 429,345         -                    429,345         -                         

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
Financing Activities (7,360,075)     (8,276,429)     (15,636,504)   (1,147,488)         

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investments (9,400,000)     (5,500,000)     (14,900,000)   -                         

Proceeds from Sales & Maturities of Investments 9,400,000      4,500,000      13,900,000    -                         

Interest on Investments 414,569         48,623           463,192         46,700               

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 414,569         (951,377)        (536,808)        46,700               

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and 
Cash Equivalents 3,061,558      522,840         3,584,398      (170,338)            

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 18,176,591    6,983,042      25,159,633    2,835,770           

$ 21,238,149  $ 7,505,882    $ 28,744,031  $ 2,665,432           

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 5,581,752      $ 10,104,462    $ 15,686,214    $ (555,456)            

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 5,164,410      3,644,520      8,808,930      949,050             

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts Receivable (243,781)        9,167             (234,614)        (18,471)              

Unbilled Service Charges (103,889)        122,298         18,409           -                         

Due from Other Funds 1,105,737      85,921           1,191,658      188,267             

Due From Other Governments -                    -                    -                    174,537             

Inventories (121,074)        (141,536)        (262,610)        (14,724)              

Prepaid Items (113)              (70,168)          (70,281)          -                         

Special Assessments Receivable -                    (29,684)          (29,684)          -                         

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 543,124         1,414,626      1,957,750      (28,652)              

Accrued Liabilities 14,605           (634)              13,971           693                    

Due to Other Funds (348,174)        (2,995,087)     (3,343,261)     (151,208)            

Due to Other Governments 305,688         (53,545)          252,143         13,414               

Accumulated Unused Compensated

Absences (21,868)          1,694             (20,174)          6,614                 

Customer Deposits 39,890           70,259           110,149         -                         

Other Post Employment Benefits -                    -                    -                    687,326             

Other Receipts 6,853             126,183         133,036         4,060                 

$ 11,923,160  $ 12,288,476  $ 24,211,636  $ 1,255,450           

Note:  There were no significant non-cash transactions.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Internal
Activities

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

Employee

ASSETS
Cash and Short-term Investments $ 2,225,763     
Investments, at Fair Value

Fixed Income Mutual Funds 3,485,745     
Equity Mutual Funds 9,705,614     
Common Collective Trusts 53,248,984   
Stocks 1,134,143     
Corporate Bonds 3,489,860     
Accrued Income 32,812          

Total Investments 71,097,158   

Total Assets 73,322,921   

NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $ 73,322,921   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Funds
Retirement

September 30, 2012
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Employee
Retirement

Funds
ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Employer Contributions $ 3,691,678    
Employee Contributions 600,890       

Total Contributions 4,292,568    

Investment Income:
Net Increase in Fair Value

 of Investments 9,832,845    
Interest and Dividends 677,100       

 10,509,945  
Less Investment Expenses:

Investment Management Fees 111,857       
Custodian Fees 74,109         

Net Investment Income 10,323,979  

Total Additions 14,616,547  

DEDUCTIONS
Employee Benefits 3,534,564    
Refunds of Contributions 29,495         
Administrative Expense 132,046       

Total Deductions 3,696,105    

Change in Net Assets 10,920,442  

Net Assets - Beginning 62,402,479  

Net Assets - Ending $ 73,322,921  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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The City of Winter Park, Florida 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2012 
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THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

September 30, 2012 
 

 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
The City of Winter Park (the “City”), which was established by a special act of the Florida 
Legislature on April 8, 1882 and incorporated October 12, 1887, operates under the 
Commission - City Manager form of government.  The City is located in the center of the State 
of Florida in the northern section of Orange County (the “County”). 
 
The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
as applied to governmental units.  The more significant accounting policies used by the City are 
described below. 
 
A. REPORTING ENTITY: 
 
The City is a municipal corporation with a five member commission including the mayor, who 
acts as the presiding officer of the commission, with a vice mayor serving in his absence. 
 
The City provides a full range of municipal services including police and fire protection, public 
works activities, parks and recreational facilities, planning and development, financial services 
and general administrative services.  In addition, the City operates two enterprise funds:  water 
and sewer services and electric services. 
 
In evaluating the City (the primary government) as a reporting entity, all potential component 
units that may or may not fall within the financial accountability of the City have been 
addressed.  Financial accountability is present if the City Commission (the “Commission”) 
appoints a voting majority of a component unit's governing body and has the ability to impose its 
will on the organization or if there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the City. 
 
The accompanying financial statements present all the fund types of the City and its component 
unit. The blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the 
City’s operations.   
 
Blended Component Unit: 
 
The Community Redevelopment Agency is governed by the City’s five-member commission.  
Pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 163, Part III of the Florida Statutes, the City, with the 
consent of Orange County, created a Community Redevelopment Area (CRA) through City 
Resolution No. 1528, adopted on January 11, 1994 to foster improvements in the Westside and 
Central Business Districts of the City.  The CRA uses future tax increment revenue to fund a 
variety of improvement projects. The CRA is reported as a special revenue fund. 
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The City of Winter Park, Florida 
Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2012   

 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City and its component 
unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and sewer, electric and 
various other functions of the City.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs 
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.  Governmental activities, 
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
 
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT PRESENTATION: 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary 
fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the City considers property tax revenues to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  All other governmental 
revenues are considered available if they are collected within 180 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period.  For special assessments receivable, only the portion due within the subsequent 
fiscal year is considered to be available for recognition as revenue in the current period.  
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are 
recorded only when payment is due. 
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Franchise and utility taxes, state revenue sharing, charges for garbage and stormwater service, 
fines and forfeitures and investment earnings associated with the current fiscal period are 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current 
fiscal period.  
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
The City utilizes an indirect cost allocation system to allocate costs incurred in the General Fund 
that are indirect expenses of other funds.  Reimbursements to the General Fund are recorded as 
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the General 
Fund.  These reimbursements are presented in the Indirect Expenses Allocation column of the 
Statement of Activities.  The Expenses column of this statement includes only the direct 
expenses of each function.  
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The 
principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise and internal service funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprise and internal service funds 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets and 
amortization of intangible assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Major Governmental Funds: 
 
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Community Redevelopment Fund accounts for the activities funded by tax increment 
revenues from the Community Redevelopment Area. 
 
Non-Major Governmental Fund Types: 
 
Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are restricted by law or 
administrative action to expenditures for specific purposes.  Non-major special revenue funds 
include the Designations Trust Fund, Stormwater Utility Fund, Affordable Housing Fund, Law 
Enforcement Trust Fund, Grant Fund, Parks Impact Fees Fund, Help Our Park Expand Fund, 
Police and Firefighter Premium Tax Trust Fund and Cemetery Trust Fund. 
 
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of 
principal and interest on, certain general long-term debt. 
 
Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources segregated for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities.  Non-major capital projects funds include the Capital 
Projects Fund and Stormwater Capital Projects Fund. 

48



The City of Winter Park, Florida 
Notes to Financial Statements - September 30, 2012   

 

Major Proprietary Funds: 
 
The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer service to customers 
both inside the City limits and to the west, north and east of the City. 
 
The Electric Services Fund accounts for the provision of electric service to certain areas within 
the City limits.   
 
Non-Major Proprietary Funds: 
 
Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one 
department to other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.  Internal service 
funds include the Fleet Maintenance Fund, Vehicle Replacement Fund, Employee Insurance 
Fund and General Insurance Fund. 
 
Electric Rate Structure: 
 
The City’s electric service rates are set in accordance with the “rate structures” established by the 
Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC).  The FPSC has the jurisdiction to regulate electric 
“rate structures” of municipal utilities in Florida.  A rate structure is defined as the rate 
relationship between customer class and among customers within rate classes and is 
distinguishable from the total amount of revenue requirements a utility may receive from rates. 
 
Fiduciary Fund Types: 
 
Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Police and Firefighter Pension Trust Funds, 
which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to qualified public safety employees. 
 
 
D. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY: 
 
1) Budgetary information: 
 
The City’s budgetary procedures and a comparison of budget to actual data are presented in the 
Required Supplemental Information section for the General and budgeted major Special Revenue 
Fund (Community Redevelopment Fund).   
 
Expenditures of the Grant non-major special revenue fund exceeded the annual budget by 
$59,097.  Revenues of this fund exceeded the annual budget by $51,883. 
 
Expenditures of the Cemetery Trust non-major special revenue fund exceeded the annual budget 
by $17,662.  Revenues of this fund exceeded the budget by $122,122. 
 
2) Deficit fund balances: 
 
The Fleet Maintenance Fund is accounted for as an internal service fund.  At September 30, 
2012, this fund had a $10,057 deficit net assets balance.  This deficit is expected to be liquidated 
in future years through charges to user departments. 
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The Employee Insurance Fund is accounted for as an internal service fund.  At September 30, 
2012, this fund had a $549,135 deficit net assets balance as a result of the net other post-
employment benefits liability of $1,464,509.  This deficit is expected to be liquidated by future 
contributions to fund post-employment health insurance benefits.  
 
The General Insurance Fund is accounted for as an internal service fund.  At September 30, 
2012, this fund had a $234,454 deficit net assets balance.  This deficit is expected to be 
liquidated in future years through charges to user departments. 
 
 
E.  USE OF ESTIMATES: 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities as of the financial statement date and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses or expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 
 
F. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS: 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The City’s cash management pool allows individual funds to, at any time, deposit additional cash 
or make withdrawals without prior notice or penalty, and thus, the City is managing an internal 
investment pool which is considered by GASB to be a cash equivalent.  As such, each 
participating fund’s portion of the pool is reported as “Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments” 
in the governmental and proprietary funds’ balance sheets.  Certain cash and investments for the 
Community Redevelopment, Water and Sewer and Electric Services Funds are held separately 
and not included in the pool.   
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City classifies its cash management pool 
(including restricted assets) along with the separate Water and Sewer and Electric Services 
Funds cash accounts as cash and cash equivalents.  
 
Individual funds with credit balances at year-end were reclassified to Due to Other Funds for 
reporting purposes with an offsetting Due from Other Funds in the General, Community 
Redevelopment, Designations Trust, Cemetery Trust, Capital Projects, Stormwater Capital 
Projects, Water and Sewer, Electric Services, Vehicle Replacement and Employee Insurance 
Funds.   
 
Deposits 
 
Deposits consist of interest bearing demand accounts.  All deposits with financial institutions 
were 100% insured by Federal depository insurance or by collateral pursuant to the Public 
Depository Security Act of the State of Florida.  The carrying amount of the demand deposits 
and cash on hand at September 30, 2012 was $9,472,237 (excluding Pension Trust Funds). 
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Investments 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, with the exception of investments in the State Board of 
Administration’s Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA), an external 2a7-like fund 
which is presented at share price.  All fair market valuations are based on quoted market prices.  
SBA pool shares are based on amortized cost of the SBA’s underlying portfolio, which 
approximates fair market value. 
 
The City’s investment policy is governed by an ordinance adopted by the City Commission.  
Allowable investments include, the SBA, United States Government Securities, United States 
Government Agencies (full faith and credit of the United States Government), Federal 
Instrumentalities (United States Government sponsored agencies which are non-full faith and 
credit), Non-Negotiable Interest Bearing Time Certificates of Deposit, Repurchase Agreements, 
Banker’s Acceptances, Commercial Paper, State and/or Local Government Taxable and/or Tax-
Exempt Debt, Registered Investment Companies (Money Market Mutual Funds) and 
Intergovernmental Investment Pools. 
 
The following is a summary of cash and investments held by the City at September 30, 2012: 
 

   Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Investment Type  
Fair 

Value  
Less 

Than 1  1 - 5  6 - 10  
More 

Than 10 
Government National Mortgage Assoc $ 4,175,344 $ - $ 18,130 $ - $ 4,157,214 
Federal Farm Credit Bank  7,929,594  -  3,006,220  4,923,374  - 
Federal Home Loan Bank  9,878,580  -  865,360  9,013,220  - 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp  9,457,047  -  1,003,050  8,246,731  207,266 
Federal National Mortgage Association  10,949,959  -  3,001,300  7,543,265  405,394 
Local Government Surplus Trust Fund  18,923  18,923  -  -  - 
Pooled Investments  42,409,447  18,923  7,894,060  29,726,590  4,769,874 
Carrying amount of deposits  9,472,237  9,472,237  -  -  - 
Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments  51,881,684  9,491,160  7,894,060  29,726,590  4,769,874 
Federal Farm Credit Bank  2,000,100  -  2,000,100  -  - 
Federal Home Loan Bank  2,801,359  -  2,801,359  -  - 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp  1,001,239  -  1,001,239  -  - 
Federal National Mortgage Association  2,512,533  -  -  2,512,533  - 
Other Investments  8,315,231  -  5,802,698  2,512,533  - 
Total Cash and Investments $ 60,196,915 $ 9,491,160 $ 13,696,758 $ 32,239,123 $ 4,769,874 

           
 
 

Police Officers’ Pension 
   Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Investment Type  
Fair 

Value  
Less 

Than 1  1 - 5  6 - 10  
More 

Than 10 
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 1,643,029 $ - $ 563,395 $ 563,723 $ 515,911 
Equity Mutual Funds  4,827,455  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 
Common Collective Trusts  26,734,685  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 
Stocks  451,532  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 
Corporate Bonds  1,299,194  75,349  791,763  58,259  373,823 
Pooled Investments  34,955,895  75,349  1,355,158  621,982  889,734 
Carrying amount of deposits  1,045,712  -  -  -  - 
Total Cash and Investments $ 36,001,607 $ 75,349 $ 1,355,158 $ 621,982 $ 889,734 
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Firefighters’ Pension 
   Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Investment Type  
Fair 

Value  
Less 

Than 1  1 - 5  6 - 10  
More 

Than 10 
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 1,842,716 $ - $ 631,867 $ 632,236 $ 578,613 
Equity Mutual Funds  4,878,159  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 
Common Collective Trusts  26,514,299  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 
Stocks  682,611  N/A  N/A  N/A  N/A 
Corporate Bonds  2,190,666  198,928  1,078,977  166,386  746,375 
Pooled Investments  36,108,451  198,928  1,710,844  798,622  1,324,988 
Carrying amount of deposits  1,180,051  -  -  -  - 
Total Cash and Investments $ 37,288,502 $ 198,928 $ 1,710,844 $ 798,622 $ 1,324,988 
           

 
Interest Rate Risk - To mitigate interest rate risk, the City's investment policy requires that the 
investment strategy provide sufficient liquidity to meet the City’s operating, payroll and capital 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.  Investments of current operating funds are to 
have maturities not exceeding twelve months. 
 
Credit Risk - Although the City’s investment policy does not address specific investment-
related risk, to mitigate credit risk, the City primarily invests in the U.S. Government Securities 
and the State of Florida local government surplus trust fund pool as well as other investments 
allowed in the investment ordinance referred to above.  Credit quality distribution for 
investments, with credit exposure as a percentage of total investments, are as follows at 
September 30, 2012: 
 

Investment Type  

 
Standard & 

Poor’s Ratings  
Moody’s  
Ratings  

Percentage 
of Total 

Pooled Investments       
Government National Mortgage Assoc  Not Rated  Not Rated  8% 
Federal Farm Credit Bank  AA+  Aaa  16% 
Federal Home Loan Bank  AA+  Aaa  19% 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp  AA+  Aaa  19% 
Federal National Mortgage Association  AA+  Aaa  22% 
Local Government Surplus Trust Fund  AAAm  Not Rated  0% 
Other Investments  
Federal Farm Credit Bank  AA+  Aaa  4% 
Federal Home Loan Bank  AA+  Aaa  5% 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp  AA+  Aaa  2% 
Federal National Mortgage Association  AA+  Aaa  5% 
       

 
Credit Ratings for Investments in Debt Securities by the Police Officers’ Pension 

 
 

 
Amount 
Invested 

Standard & 
Poor’s 

Ratings 
Percentage 

of Total 
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 1,387,538 AAA 47.16% 
  190,098 AA 6.46% 
  65,393 Other 2.22% 
Total Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 1,643,029   
     
Corporate Bonds $ 149,955 A 5.10% 
  141,813 B 4.82% 
  348,365 BB 11.84% 
  160,334 BBB 5.45% 
  498,727 Not Rated 16.95% 
Total Corporate Bonds $ 1,299,194   
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Credit Ratings for Investments in Debt Securities by the Firefighters’ Pension 

 
 

 
Amount 
Invested 

Standard & 
Poor’s 

Ratings 
Percentage 

of Total 
Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 1,556,174 AAA 38.58% 
  213,202 AA 5.29% 
  73,340 Other 1.82% 
Total Fixed Income Mutual Funds $ 1,842,716   
     
Corporate Bonds $ 306,945 A 7.61% 
  295,310 B 7.32% 
  524,309 BB 13.00% 
  334,538 BBB 8.29% 
  729,564 Not Rated 18.09% 
Total Corporate Bonds $ 2,190,666   
     

 
Custodial Risk – To mitigate custodial risk, broker/dealers must provide audited financial 
statements, proof of National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD) certification and proof 
of state registration.  Securities transactions between a financial institution or broker/dealer and 
the custodian involving purchase or sale of securities by transfer of money or securities must be 
made on a “delivery vs. payment” basis, if applicable, to ensure that the custodian will have the 
security or money, as appropriate, on hand at the conclusion of the transaction. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - The City's investment policy requires that investments be 
diversified by security type and institution.  Specific limitations as to the percentage of the 
portfolio and length of maturity for each type of investment are addressed in the policy. 
 
 
G. RECEIVABLES: 
 
Utility operating revenues are generally recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered 
monthly.  The amount of services delivered for the period from the last billing date to September 
30th is estimated and accrued at year-end.   
 
 
H. PROPERTY TAXES: 
 
Under Florida Law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all City property taxes 
are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector.  The 
laws of the State regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent property 
valuation method statewide. State Statutes permit cities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 
ten (10) mills.  The operating millage rate in effect for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 
was 4.0923.  A debt service millage was also in effect of 0.3243 mills. 
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All property is assessed according to its fair market value on January 1 of each year and at that 
time a lien is placed on the property for the taxes.  The tax levy of the City is established by the 
City Commission prior to October 1 of each year and the Orange County Property Appraiser 
incorporates the City’s millage into the total tax levy, which also includes Orange County, the 
Orange County School Board and the St. Johns Water Management District’s tax requirements.   
 
All taxes are billed on November 1 of each year or as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is 
certified and delivered to the Tax Collector.  All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 
following the year in which they are assessed.  Discounts are allowed for early payment at the 
rate of 4% in the month of November, 3% in the month of December, 2% in the month of 
January and 1% in the month of February.  The taxes paid in March are without discount. 
 
On or prior to June 1 following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real 
property.  Application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the 
certificate holder after a period of two years.  Unsold certificates are held by the County. 
 
 
I.  INVENTORIES: 

 
Inventories in the General Fund and Stormwater Utility Fund (Special Revenue) are stated at cost 
using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method and inventories in the Water and Sewer Fund and 
Electric Services Fund (Enterprise) and Fleet Maintenance Fund (Internal Service) are stated at 
the lower of cost (determined on the moving average method) or market.  Inventories are charged 
as expenditures/expenses when used. 
 
 Inventories of the General Fund consist of fuel, office supplies and other operating supplies. 
 Inventories of the Stormwater Utility Fund consist of aquatic weed control chemicals. 
 Inventories of the Water and Sewer Fund consist of maintenance parts, supplies and water 

meters. 
 Inventories of the Electric Services Fund consist of cable, meters, transformers and supplies. 
 Inventories of the Fleet Maintenance Fund consist of maintenance parts, tires, fuels and 

supplies. 
 
 
J. PREPAID ITEMS: 
 
Prepaid items represent payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond September 
30, 2012.  The costs of governmental fund type prepaid items are recorded using the 
consumption method, that is, as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 
 
 
K. CAPITAL ASSETS: 
 
Property, plant and equipment purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost.  Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date received.  The 
City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of two years.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.   
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
useful lives: 
 
 

Years 
 
Classification 

 
7 - 50 

 
Buildings 

 
10 - 50 

 
Streets and drainage 

 
10 - 50 

 
Improvements other than buildings 

 
2 - 20 

 
Machinery and furniture 

 
2 - 10 

 
Vehicles (including heavy equipment) 

 
30 - 50 

 
Water & sewer lines 

 
30 - 50 

 
Electric 
 

  
 

 
System acquisition costs represent the 1981 acquisition of General Waterworks Corporation's 
operating assets, consisting primarily of the water utility within the City and a water and sewer 
system providing services to areas outlying the City's boundaries.  The purchase method was 
utilized to account for this transaction.  The system acquisition costs are amortized using the 
straight-line method over forty (40) years. 
 
The City’s payment to Progress Energy Florida for the electric distribution system in the City 
limits for going concern and stranded costs are reported as system acquisition costs and are being 
amortized over the term of the bonds issued to finance this acquisition. 
 
Capacity rights and sewer contract costs consist of purchased rights to specified percentages in 
existing and future water and sewer treatment capacity as described in Note 19.  The capacity 
rights are recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-line method over a period of 13 to 
30 years. 
 
The City’s payment to South Seminole-North Orange County Wastewater Transmission 
Authority for its share of infrastructure improvements is reported as sewer capacity rights and is 
being amortized over the term of the bonds issued to finance this payment.  The City is party to 
an intergovernmental agreement, which formed the South Seminole-North Orange County 
Wastewater Transmission Authority.  The Authority owns and operates the pipeline that takes 
the City's and other participants' sewage flows to the Iron Bridge Regional Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 
 
 
L. INTANGIBLES: 
 
Bond issuance costs for government-wide and proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized 
over the term of the bonds using either the bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the 
effective interest method or the effective interest method.   
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M. DEFERRED/UNEARNED REVENUES: 
 
Deferred revenues are recorded on the governmental fund balance sheet in the amount of 
$2,933,063.  Of this amount, $2,578,645 represents amounts that are deferred solely because 
they are not yet considered to be available.  The remaining $354,418 is shown as unearned 
revenue on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.  These amounts include unearned 
revenues for golf course memberships collected in advance and occupational license fees 
collected before year-end but not due until October 1.  
 
 
N. LONG-TERM DEBT: 
 
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of 
net assets. 
 
 
O. ACCUMULATED UNUSED COMPENSATED ABSENCES: 
 
The City records the vested portion of accumulated unused compensated absences at year-end 
based on each employee's accumulated unused hours and rate of pay, including the City’s share 
of Social Security, Medicare taxes and Retirement.  All compensated absences are accrued when 
earned by employees in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  A 
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for 
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 
 
 
P. PENSION PLANS: 
 
The City sponsors and administers three pension plans covering substantially all the full-time 
employees.  The City’s policy is to fund the annual pension costs in the annual budget. 
 
Employees of the Police and Fire Departments are enrolled in separate defined benefit pension 
plans adopted by the City effective August 4, 1959 for the police officers and January 1, 1959 for 
the firefighters.  Annual costs of the pension plans are actuarially computed and include 
amortization of past service costs over a period of thirty (30) years.   
 
The City accounts for its pension plans in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB), Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and 
Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers.  These statements require the recording 
of defined benefit plan investments at market value.   
 
General employees are enrolled in a defined contribution 401(a) pension plan established 
January 1, 1992, as described in Note 17(C).  The assets, liabilities, fund equity and operations of 
this plan are not presented on the City’s financial statements as the plan is independently 
administered. 
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Q. CATEGORIES AND CLASSIFICATION OF FUND BALANCE: 
 
Fund balance classifications are Non Spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and 
Unassigned.  These classifications reflect not only the nature of the funds, but also provide 
clarity to the level of restriction placed upon fund balance.  Fund balance can have different 
levels of restraint, such as external versus internal compliance requirements.  The City classifies 
governmental fund balances as follows: 
 
Non Spendable – includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in 
spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints. 
 
Spendable Fund Balance 
 

 Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes 
which are externally imposed by providers, such as donors or amounts constrained by 
enabling legislation. 

 
 Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes 

determined by formal action of the highest level of decision making authority.  A 
commitment can only be modified or removed by the same formal action. 

  
 Assigned – amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose.  Intent may be 

expressed by the City Commission or as delegated to the City Manager.   
 

 Unassigned – includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which has 
not been classified within the other above mentioned categories.  Unassigned fund 
balance also includes negative residual fund balances in other funds. 

 
The City uses restricted amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available.  Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned 
amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made. 
 
The City does not have a minimum fund balance policy.  As part of its Administrative Policy, the 
City Commission set a goal of working towards an unassigned fund balance in the General Fund 
equaling thirty percent of the annual General Fund expenditures and transfers out for recurring 
operating costs reported in other funds.   
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R. NET ASSETS INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF RELATED DEBT: 
 
Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt consisted of the following 
components as of September 30, 2012: 
 
  Governmental 

Activities 
 Business-type 

Activities 
Capital assets, net $ 80,570,674 $ 174,110,377 
Related debt, net  (30,419,444)  (139,056,748) 
Unspent proceeds from capital 
related debt 

 
-

 
6,661,492 

Totals $ 50,151,230 $ 41,715,121 
     
 
 
S. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
 
Restricted net assets are subject to restrictions that are either (1) externally imposed by 
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 
 
 

2. Receivables 
 
The accounts receivable and allowance for uncollectibles at September 30, 2012 were as follows: 
 
  Accounts 

Receivable 
 Allowance for 

Uncollectibles 
 

Net 
General Fund $ 2,236,206 $ 1,227,286 $ 1,008,920
       
 Community Redevelopment Fund 20,234 -  20,234
       
Non-Major Governmental Funds:   
   Designations Trust Fund 24,261 24,191  70
   Stormwater Utility Fund 211,964 -  211,964
    Debt Service Fund 1,971 -  1,971
       
Enterprise Funds:   
   Water and Sewer Fund 1,743,468 165,433  1,578,035
   Electric Services Fund 3,947,446 78,577  3,868,869
       
Internal Service Funds:   
   Fleet Maintenance Fund 12,222 -  12,222
   Employee Insurance Fund 27,843 -  27,843
Totals $ 8,225,615 $ 1,495,487 $ 6,730,128
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3. Special Assessments Receivable 
 
Special assessments receivable consist of assessments for street bricking and other streetscaping 
improvements in the governmental funds and undergrounding of electric and cable utilities in the 
Electric Services Fund.    Owners of properties benefitting from the improvements are given the 
option of paying their share of the project cost either in a lump sum at the completion of the 
project or over a certain time.  Assessments are billed to property owners through the property 
tax bill as non-ad valorem assessments.  Special assessments receivable at September 30, 2012 
were as follows: 
 

  Principal     
 Interest 

Rate 
Current 

Receivable
Deferred 

Receivable
Interest 

Receivable Total 
Governmental Activities:          
   Non-Major Governmental Funds          
      Designations Trust Fund:          
         Street bricking improvements 6.00% $ 148,474 $ 264,928 $ 35,350 $ 448,752
      Debt Service Fund:          
         Park Avenue Improvements 3.49% 51,645 413,159 66,277 531,081
         Orange Avenue Improvements 4.35% 92,934 1,301,081 452,440 1,846,455
  $ 144,579 $ 1,714,240 $ 518,717 $ 2,377,536
Business-Type Activities:        
   Major Funds        
      Electric Services Fund:        
         Undergrounding electric and 

cable utilities 4.00% $ 236,956 $ - $ 99,428 $ 336,384
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4. Capital Assets 
 
The following is a summary of changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30, 
2012: 
 

  Beginning 
Balance 

 
Increases 

 
Decreases 

 Ending  
Balance 

Governmental Activities:         
Capital assets, not being depreciated:         
Land $ 14,831,537 $ 304,964 $ - $ 15,136,501 
Construction in progress  15,039,568  5,075,671  (16,950,633)  3,164,606 
   Total capital assets, not being depreciated  29,871,105  5,380,635  (16,950,633)  18,301,107 
Capital assets, being depreciated:         
Buildings  28,627,489  12,381,871  (540,000)  40,469,360 
Improvements other than buildings  15,866,823  109,359  -  15,976,182 
Machinery and equipment  17,998,296  463,413  (67,605)  18,394,104 
Furniture and fixtures  716,574  -  -  716,574 
Vehicles  16,826,880  1,764,655  (1,081,773)  17,509,762 
Streets and drainage  53,353,219  4,133,329  -  57,486,548 
   Total capital assets being depreciated  133,389,281  18,852,627  (1,689,378)  150,552,530 
Less accumulated depreciation for:         
Buildings  (15,301,471)  (1,152,687)  282,074  (16,172,084) 
Improvements other than buildings  (10,808,351)  (657,406)  -  (11,465,757) 
Machinery and equipment  (13,936,948)  (704,024)  64,365  (14,576,607) 
Furniture and fixtures  (610,844)  (47,394)  -  (658,238) 
Vehicles  (12,969,056)  (844,367)  1,052,969  (12,760,454) 
Streets and drainage  (31,813,375)  (836,448)  -  (32,649,823) 
   Total accumulated depreciation  (85,440,045)  (4,242,326)  1,399,408  (88,282,963) 
   Total capital assets, being depreciated, net  47,949,236    14,610,301  (289,970)     62,269,567 
Governmental activities capital         
    assets, net $ 77,820,341 $ 19,990,936 $ (17,240,603) $ 80,570,674 
Business-type Activities:         
Capital assets, not being depreciated:         
Land $ 12,194,774 $ - $ - $ 12,194,774 
Construction in progress  2,091,938  4,242,423  (4,225,755)  2,108,606 
   Total capital assets, not being depreciated  14,286,712  4,242,423  (4,225,755)  14,303,380 
Capital assets, being depreciated:         
Buildings and production facilities  3,506,065  -  -  3,506,065 
Machinery and equipment  5,870,498  137,147  (1,595)  6,006,050 
Furniture and fixtures  42,657  -  -  42,657 
Improvements other than buildings  192,800,833  6,178,502  (497,076)  198,482,259 
System acquisition costs  19,844,093  -  -  19,844,093 
Sewer contract costs  3,394,035  -  -  3,394,035 
Sewer capacity rights  19,183,838  281,016  -  19,464,854 
   Total capital assets, being depreciated  244,642,019  6,596,665  (498,671)  250,740,013 
Less accumulated depreciation for:         
Buildings and production facilities  (2,879,587)  (54,243)  -  (2,933,830) 
Machinery and equipment  (5,158,189)  (292,495)  1,595  (5,449,089) 
Furniture and fixtures  (41,899)  (115)  -  (42,014) 
Improvements other than buildings  (63,475,346)  (5,891,766)  -  (69,367,112) 
System acquisition costs  (4,271,917)  (660,177)  -  (4,932,094) 
Sewer contract costs  (3,085,236)  (77,199)  -  (3,162,435) 
Sewer capacity rights  (4,392,599)  (653,843)  -  (5,046,442) 
   Total accumulated depreciation, net  (83,304,773)  (7,629,838)  1,595  (90,933,016) 
   Total capital assets, being depreciated, net  161,337,246  (1,033,173)  (497,076)  159,806,997 
         
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 175,623,958 $ 3,209,250 $ (4,722,831) $ 174,110,377 
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Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 
 

 
 
  

Planning and development $ 2,319
Public works  1,988,816
Police  294,786
Fire  650,238
Parks  357,117
Capital assets held by the City’s internal service funds are charged  
    to the various functions based on their usage of the assets  949,050
  
Total depreciation expense $ 4,242,326
  

 
 
5. Other Assets 
 
Changes in other assets consisting of unamortized bond issue costs were as follows: 
 

  Beginning 
Balance 

 
Increases 

 
Decreases 

 Ending  
Balance 

Governmental 
Activities $ 270,193 $ - $ (26,226) $ 243,967 
Business-Type 
Activities  1,819,832  163,373  (266,343)  1,716,862 
Total Bond Issue 
Costs $ 2,090,025 $ 163,373 $ (292,569) $ 1,960,829 

         
  
 

6. Interfund Balances  
 
Interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 2012 consist of: 
 

  Due From 
Other 
Funds 

 Due To 
Other 
Funds 

 

Major Funds:   
  General Fund $ 214,102 $      -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds  - 214,102
 
Totals $ 214,102 $ 214,102
  

 
The Due to Other Funds balances reported in the fund financial statements represent temporary 
interfund loans to cover credit cash balances in the individual funds at year-end with offsetting 
Due from Other Funds in the lending funds.   
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7. General Obligation Bonds 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004 and Series 2011, are general obligations of the City and 
are payable from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the revenues received from the levy 
and collection by the City of voted debt service millage on all the taxable property within the 
City. 
 
Proceeds of such tax are deposited, as received, into the Sinking Fund and applied solely for the 
purpose of paying the principal and interest as they become due. 
 
A.  SERIES 2004: 
 
The proceeds from the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004, issuance were used to refund the 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 1996, which refunded Bond Anticipation Notes used for the 
acquisition of the green space known as the Winter Park Golf Course. 
 
B.  SERIES 2011: 
 
The proceeds from the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011, issuance were used to refund the 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001, which were used to finance construction of a new Public 
Safety Complex.   
 
C.  GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
  

 
 
  Original 

 
Amount  

 
 

Interest Rates Final  Amount 
 

Outstanding  
Description 

 
 and Dates Maturity Issued 

 
at 9/30/2012  

 
Series 2004 

 
 

2.00% to 3.80% 
1/1; 7/1 

 
 

7/01/16 

 
 

$3,795,000 
 

 
 
 

$1,420,000 
  

Series 2011 
 

2.50% to 3.00%   
 
  

 
 

1/1; 7/1 7/01/21 $6,955,000 
 

$6,340,000 
 
D.  EARLY REDEMPTION: 
 

 
Description 

 
Call Date Call Rate 

 
Series 2004 
 
Series 2011 

Not subject to 
redemption 

Not subject to 
redemption 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 
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8. Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Notes 
 
The Capital Improvement Note, Series 2006, is a special obligation of the City payable from the 
monies budgeted and appropriated by the City Commission for such purpose in each year from 
legally available non-ad valorem revenues.  The proceeds from this note were used to finance the 
purchase of several large vehicles, the City’s share of the cost of the Howell Branch Nature 
Preserve, upgrade communications equipment and street bricking. 
 
The Orange Avenue Revenue Improvement Note, Series 2007, is also a special obligation of the 
City payable from the monies budgeted and appropriated by the City Commission for such 
purpose in each year from legally available non-ad valorem revenues.  The proceeds from this 
note were used to finance streetscaping improvements on Orange Avenue. 

The Park Avenue Revenue Improvement Note, Series 2010, is also a special obligation of the 
City payable from the monies budgeted and appropriated by the City Commission for such 
purpose in each year from legally available non-ad valorem revenues.  The proceeds from the 
Park Avenue Revenue Improvement Note, Series 2010 were used for a current refunding of the 
Park Avenue Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1998, which were used to finance 
enhancements to the downtown area of Park Avenue.   
 
NON-AD VALOREM REVENUE NOTES CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Description 
Interest Rates 

and Dates Final Maturity
Original 

Amount Issued 

Amount 
Outstanding at 

9/30/2012 
Series 2006 3.62%; 1/1; 7/1 07/01/16 $4,360,000 $1,944,632 

Series 2007 4.348%; 6/1; 12/1 12/01/27 $2,230,000 $1,925,000 

Series 2010 3.49%; 1/1; 7/1 07/01/21 $2,370,000 $1,995,000 

 
B. EARLY REDEMPTION: 
 

Description Call Date Call Rate 
Series 2006 Note may be prepaid  15% of balance outstanding may be prepaid on any 

January 1 without penalty; all or a portion of the 
Note may be prepaid at anytime with a fee to 
compensate the underwriter based on market 

conditions at the time of such prepayment 
Series 2007 Note may be prepaid Outstanding principal may be prepaid in whole 

prior to the respective payment dates at any time on 
or after the fifth anniversary of the date of issuance 
at par plus accrued interest to date of prepayment 

without prepayment premium or penalty 
Series 2010 Not subject to 

redemption 
N/A 
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9. Community Redevelopment Agency Notes 
 
The Community Redevelopment Agency Notes are special obligations of the City’s CRA 
payable from tax increment revenues of the CRA.  The proceeds from these notes were used to 
finance capital enhancements and social programs within the CRA.  The bank providing 
financing for the Series 2003 notes has the option of requiring prepayment of the bonds at the 
price of par and accrued interest on the 10th anniversary of the bonds (10/29/13 for Series 2003-1 
and 12/30/13 for Series 2003-2).   
 
Total principal and interest remaining on the notes is $19,872,662, payable through January 
2026.  For the current year, principal and interest paid and total incremental tax revenue was 
$1,555,247 and $2,090,103, respectively. 
 
A. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY NOTES CONSIST OF THE 

FOLLOWING: 
 

Description 
Interest Rates 

and Dates Final Maturity
Original 

Amount Issued 

Amount 
Outstanding at 

9/30/2012 
Series 2003-1 3.84%,  

1/1; 7/1  
1/01/23 $3,165,000 $2,085,000 

Series 2003-2 3.78%,  
1/1; 7/1  

1/01/23 $2,950,000 $1,955,000 

Series 2005-1 3.995%,  
1/1; 7/1  

1/01/25 $807,310   $613,918 

Series 2005-2 5.91%,  
1/1; 7/1  

1/01/25 $1,799,690 $1,425,964 

Series 2006 3.89%,  
1/1; 7/1  

1/01/25 $2,155,000 $1,675,000 

Series 2010 4.48%,  
1/1; 7/1  

1/01/26 $8,100,000 $7,410,000 
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B. EARLY REDEMPTION: 
 

Description Call Date Call Rate 
Series 2003-1 Up to 10/29/08 100% plus Prepayment Penalty 

10/30/08 – 10/29/09 101% 
After 10/29/09 100% 

Series 2003-2 Up to 12/30/08 100% plus Prepayment Penalty 
12/31/08 – 12/30/09 101% 

After 12/30/09 100% 
Series 2005-1 After 07/01/14 100% 
Series 2005-2 After 07/01/14 100% 
Series 2006 Not subject to redemption N/A 
Series 2010 Notes may be prepaid 15% of balance outstanding may be prepaid 

on any January 1 without penalty; all or a 
portion of the Notes may be prepaid at 
anytime with a fee to compensate the 

underwriter based on market conditions at the 
time of such prepayment 

 
 

10. Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 
 
A. THE REVENUE BONDS (SERIAL) CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Description 
Interest Rates 

and Dates 
Final 

Maturity 
Original 

Amount Issued 

Amount 
Outstanding 
at 9/30/2012 

Water & Sewer Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2002 

3.00% to 5.38% 
6/1; 12/1 

12/01/21 $25,000,000 $1,290,000

Water & Sewer Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2009 

3.00% to 5.00% 
6/1; 12/1 

12/01/34 $45,685,000 $43,210,000

Water & Sewer Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010 

4.08%          
6/1; 12/1 

12/01/30 $16,500,000 $16,500,000

Water & Sewer Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 

2.00% to 5.00% 
6/1; 12/1 

12/01/21 $14,155,000 $14,155,000

 
The City has pledged future water and sewer customer revenue, net of specified operating 
expenses, to repay the debt above.  Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for major 
improvements to the City’s water treatment plants as well as its share of costs for improvements 
to facilities owned by other entities through which the City participates via interlocal agreements.  
The bonds are payable solely from water and sewer customer revenues and are payable through 
2035.  Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 50 
percent of net revenues.  The total principal and interest remaining on the bonds is $116,974,284.  
Principal and interest paid for the current year and total net revenues were $5,645,076 and 
$11,029,173, respectively. 
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B.  BOND COVENANTS: 
 
The Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, Series 2009, Series 2010 and Series 2011, 
resolutions provide for: 
 
1) ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF VARIOUS FUNDS: 
 
• Revenue Fund records all operating revenues and expenses of the system; 
• Sinking Fund records all debt service requirements which include the Sinking Fund account, 

bond amortization account and reserve account; 
• Renewal and Replacement Fund records all the improvements, extensions and replacements 

of the system; and 
• Construction Fund records the cost of major additions to the system financed by the revenue 

bonds. 
 
2) RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF CASH FROM OPERATIONS IN ORDER OF 

PRIORITY: 
 
• Deposits are made to the Revenue Fund to meet current operations according to the existing 

bond ordinance; 
• Deposits to the Sinking Fund are required each month equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the interest 

becoming due on the next semi-annual interest payment date and one-twelfth (1/12) of the 
principal becoming due on the next principal payment date; 

• Deposits to the Renewal and Replacement Fund are required in each month equal to 
one-twelfth (1/12) of 5% of gross revenues for the preceding fiscal year; however, no such 
monthly deposit shall be required whenever the amount in such fund shall be at least equal to 
5% of the then current net asset value of the system. 

 
3) EARLY REDEMPTION: 
 

 
Description 

 
Call Date Call Rate 

 
Series 2002 

 
12/01/12 and thereafter 100% 

 
Series 2009 

 
12/01/19 and thereafter 100% 

 
Series 2010 

 
Anytime Subject to Prepayment Premium 

prior to 12/22/2020; 100% 
thereafter 

 
Series 2011 

 
Anytime 

 
Not subject to redemption prior to 

stated date of maturity 
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4) INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS: 
 
• Funds are required to be continuously secured in the same manner as state and municipal 

deposits of funds are required to be secured by the Laws of the State of Florida; and 
• All funds deposited shall be continuously invested in direct obligations of, or obligations that 

are guaranteed by, the United States of America, obligations of its several agencies, the Local 
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, obligations guaranteed by the Government National 
Mortgage Association, or time deposits in banks, trust companies or savings and loan 
associations represented by Certificates of Deposit. 

 
 

11. Electric Revenue Bonds 
 
A. THE REVENUE BONDS (SERIAL) CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 

  
 
 
 

 
  Original 

 
Amount  

 
 
 

 
Interest Rates Final Amount 

 
Outstanding  

Description 
 

and Dates Maturity Issued 
 

at 9/30/2012  
Electric Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2005A 

 
Variable rates*; 
Payable weekly 

 
10/01/33 

 

 
$42,025,000 

 

 
 

$16,610,000 
  

Electric Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2007 

 
3.375% to 4.25%; 

4/1; 10/1 
 

10/01/37 
 

 
$22,135,000 

 

 
 

$21,245,000 
  

Electric Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2009A 

  
2.000% to 5.000%;

4/1;10/1 
 

10/01/35 
 
$28,020,000 

 
 

$26,835,000 
 
Electric Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2009B 

  
2.000% to 5.000%;

4/1;10/1 
 

10/01/35 
 
$6,965,000 

 
 

$6,740,000 
 
Electric Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2010 

  
3.20%  

10/01/35 
 
$5,245,000 

 
 

$5,095,000 
 
* Variable rates ranged from 0.380% - .518% for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.  The 
average rate was .428%.  The interest rate is reset weekly and is 175% of the thirty day London 
Interbank Offering Rate. 
 
The City has pledged future electric customer revenue, net of specified operating expenses, to 
repay the debt above.  Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the acquisition of the 
electric utility in 2005, improvements to the system to allow it to function as a stand-alone 
distribution system, and undergrounding of some of the major feeder lines.  The bonds are 
payable solely from electric customer revenues and are payable through 2037.  Annual principal 
and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 50 percent of net revenues.  
The total principal and interest remaining on the bonds is $121,484,423.  Principal and interest 
paid for the current year and total customer net revenues were $4,367,512 and $13,440,647, 
respectively. 
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B.  BOND COVENANTS: 
 
The Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A, Series 2007, Series 2009A, Series 2009B and 2010, 
resolution provides for: 
 
1) ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF VARIOUS FUNDS: 
 
• Revenue Fund accounts for all gross revenues of the electric system; 
• Electric System Operation and Maintenance Fund records all operating revenues and 

expenses of the system; 
• Sinking Fund records all debt service requirements which include the interest account, 

principal, reserve account and bond amortization account; 
• Project Fund records the cost of the project financed by the revenue bonds. 
 
2) RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF CASH FROM OPERATIONS IN ORDER OF 

PRIORITY: 
 
• Deposits are made to the Electric System Operation and Maintenance Fund to meet current 

operations according to the existing bond ordinance; 
• Deposits shall next be used for deposit into the Principal Account in any year immediately 

before a Serial Bond maturity date one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal becoming due on the 
next principal payment date; 

• Deposits to the Renewal and Replacement Fund are required in each month equal to 
one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount recommended by the Director of Electric Utilities, but no 
further deposit shall be required as long as there is on deposit therein the amount 
recommended by the Consulting Engineers for the system for the current fiscal year; 

• The remainder of the revenues on deposit in the Revenue Fund, after all other required 
payments into the funds provided above have been made, together with any deficiencies for 
prior payments, may be used by the City for any lawful purpose. 

 
3) EARLY REDEMPTION: 
 

 
Description 

 
Call Date Call Rate 

 
Series 2005A 

 
On any interest payment date 100% 

 
Series 2007 10/01/17 and thereafter 100% 

 
Series 2009A 10/01/19 and thereafter 

 
100% 

 
Series 2009B 10/01/19 and thereafter 

 
100% 

 
Series 2010 Any payment date 

 
101% 
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4) INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS: 
 
• Funds are required to be continuously secured in the same manner as state and municipal 

deposits of funds are required to be secured by the Laws of the State of Florida; and 
• All monies deposited shall be continuously invested in direct obligations of, or obligations 

that are guaranteed by, the United States of America, obligations of its several agencies, the 
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, obligations guaranteed by the Government 
National Mortgage Association, or time deposits in banks, trust companies or savings and 
loan associations represented by Certificates of Deposit. 

 
 

12. Bonded Indebtedness  
 
A.  FUTURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Debt service requirements for all bonded debt outstanding as of September 30, 2012 are as 
follows: 
 

            
  Governmental Activities 
  General  

Obligation 
Bonds 

 Non-Ad Valorem  
Revenue  

Notes 

 Community 
Redevelopment Agency 

Notes 
  Principal  Interest  Principal  Interest  Principal  Interest 

2013 $ 965,000 $ 235,385 $ 740,541 $ 213,536 $ 906,892 $ 640,391 
2014  995,000  208,245  767,214  185,953  943,855  600,615 
2015  1,020,000  179,520  794,488  157,363  995,145  558,963 
2016  1,055,000  146,400  827,389  127,745  1,031,776  515,408 
2017  700,000  111,750  320,000  106,619  1,073,769  470,123 

2018 – 2022  3,025,000  230,100  1,535,000  341,494  6,112,854  1,597,884 
2023 – 2027  -  -  715,000  116,418  4,100,591  324,396 

2028  -  -  165,000  3,587  -  - 
Totals $ 7,760,000 $ 1,111,400 $ 5,864,632 $ 1,252,715 $ 15,164,882 $ 4,707,780 

             
 

         
  Business-type Activities 
  Water &  

Sewer Bonds 
 Electric Services  

Bonds 
  Principal  Interest  Principal  Interest 

2013 $ 2,590,000 $ 3,277,532 $ 1,730,000 $ 2,684,063 
2014  2,700,000  3,182,863  1,765,000  3,052,558 
2015  2,780,000  3,086,813  1,840,000  2,996,403 
2016  2,890,000  2,973,463  1,880,000  2,931,858 
2017  3,010,000  2,855,463  2,440,000  2,854,525 

2018 – 2022  14,845,000  12,377,929  13,805,000  12,842,515 
2023 – 2027  17,615,000  8,910,103  13,205,000  9,888,229 
2028 – 2032  19,800,000  4,475,493  19,780,000  5,962,898 
2033 – 2037  8,925,000  679,625  17,460,000  1,716,224 

2038  -  -  2,620,000  30,150 
Totals $ 75,155,000 $ 41,819,284 $ 76,525,000 $ 44,959,423 
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B.  CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST 

Interest costs incurred in enterprise funds during construction are capitalized, net of interest 
income from the proceeds of related tax-exempt debt, as part of the cost of the related assets of 
the Water and Sewer and Electric Services Funds. 

Interest costs on long-term debt incurred and capitalized during the year ended September 30, 
2012 were as follows: 

 

  Total Interest 
Costs 

Incurred

 Interest 
Costs 

Capitalized 

 Net 
Interest 
Expense

Business-type Activities:   

Water and Sewer $ 2,887,981 $ 275,696 $ 2,612,285

Electric Services 2,774,572 194,691  2,579,881

Total business-type activities $ 5,662,553 $ 470,387 $ 5,192,166

   
 
 

13.  Bond Refunding Transactions 
 
In October 2011, the City refunded $14,940,000 in outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2002 that mature after the call date of December 1, 2012.  This left $1,290,000 
from the 2002 series bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2012.  This refunding transaction 
was undertaken to achieve net present value savings of $1,569,149 and reduce future debt service 
payments by $1,766,167. 
 
 

14.  Other Long-Term Liabilities 
 
A. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS: 
 
In 2006, the City entered into a capital lease agreement to acquire three large vehicles costing 
$329,599.  As of September 30, 2012, accumulated depreciation on these vehicles was $195,109, 
leaving a net book value of $134,490.   
 
In 2011, the City entered into a capital lease agreement to finance air conditioning and lighting 
improvements for City Hall and other City facilities.  The process of installing these 
improvements was completed in 2011 at a cumulative cost of $2,489,592.  As of September 30, 
2012, accumulated depreciation on these improvements was $24,204, leaving a net book value of 
$2,465,388.  A capital lease obligation in the amount of $1,725,656 is providing a portion of the 
funding for this project. Future principal and interest payments are due as follows: 
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B. NOTES PAYABLE BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 
 
The City has a commitment for a five year line of credit for up to $8,000,000 to finance various 
operational needs of the City of Winter Park’s Electric Utility System.  Any draws on this line of 
credit would be secured by a subordinate lien on the net revenues of the electric system.  As of 
the date of this report, the City had not made any draws on this line of credit.  
 
 

15. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2012 was as follows: 
 

  Beginning    Ending  
 Due 

Within  
  Balance  Additions Reductions Balance   One Year 
Governmental activities:       

General obligation bonds $    8,700,000 $ - $      (940,000) $    7,760,000 $ 965,000
     Unamortized discount  (9,314)  - 1,863 (7,451)                    -
     Unamortized premium  273,492  - (28,293) 245,199  -
     Loss on refunding  (91,477)  - 14,445 (77,032)                    -
Non-ad valorem  
   revenue notes           6,574,083  - (709,451) 5,864,632  740,541
CRA notes  16,037,117  - (872,235) 15,164,882  906,892
Capital lease obligations  2,178,392  - (465,211) 1,713,181  204,341
Compensated absences  3,596,215  1,158,816 (1,044,463) 3,710,568  799,660
 Governmental activity      
      Long-term liabilities $ 37,258,508 $ 1,158,816 $ (4,043,345) $ 34,373,979 $ 3,616,434

     
Business-type activities:     
Bonds payable:     
   Revenue bonds $ 156,580,000 $ 14,155,000 $   (19,055,000) $ 151,680,000 $     4,320,000 
     Unamortized discount  (703,791)  - 48,724 (655,067)                    -
     Unamortized premium  787,164  1,833,919 (325,904) 2,295,179  -
     Loss on refunding  (12,470,289)  (1,115,690) 1,039,477 (12,546,502)                    -
Compensated absences  674,266  315,446 (335,620) 654,092  210,479
   Business-type activity     
      Long-term liabilities $    144,867,350 $ 15,188,675 $   (18,628,323) $    141,427,702 $ 4,530,479

       

  Principal  Interest 
2013 $ 204,341 $ 50,135
2014  156,883 44,168
2015  157,150 39,451
2016  161,999 34,603
2017  166,998 29,605

2018 - 2022  865,810 67,494
Totals $ 1,713,181 $ 265,456
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Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds.  Accordingly, long-term 
liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for the governmental activities.  At 
year end, $101,446 of compensated absences of internal service funds was included in the above 
amounts. Compensated absences for governmental activities will be liquidated in future periods 
by the General Fund, Stormwater Utility Fund, Community Redevelopment Agency, Fleet 
Maintenance Fund and General Insurance Fund. 
 
 

16. Transfers to/from Other Funds 
 
Transfers to/from other funds for the year ended September 30, 2012 were as follows: 
 

Recipient 
Fund 

Transferring 
Fund Amount Purpose 

General Fund: 
General  Water and 

Sewer  
$1,849,600 Contribution of 15% on average annual non-sewer revenues for the 

thirty six months ended March 31, 2011 as stipulated in City 
Ordinance 2752-08  

General Electric 
Services  

2,502,830 Transfer of electric franchise fee equivalent (6% of charges for 
electric service) as stipulated in City Ordinance 2617-05 

General General 
Insurance  

325,000 Return portion of balance accumulated in General Insurance Fund 
in excess of what is estimated to be necessary to pay future claims 

General Cemetery 
Trust  

274,362 Transfer to cover the cost of operating and maintaining Palm and 
Pineywood Cemeteries 

General Designations 
Trust  

119,900 Funding for removal of dead trees ($100,000) and payment from 
Keep Winter Park Beautiful funds for a portion of the cost of the 
Grant Writer/Volunteer Coordinator position in the Parks and 
Recreation Department ($19,900) 

Total transfers to General 
Fund $5,071,692 

 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 
Capital 
Projects  

General  $1,292,477 Funding for various capital projects 

Debt Service  General  1,264,063 Principal and interest due on various debt instruments 
Designations
Trust  

General  210,000 Funding for improvements to Ward Park 

Capital 
Projects  

Water and 
Sewer  

66,496 Funding for future replacement of roofing, air conditioning and 
flooring in facilities used for water and sewer operations at the 
Public Works Complex. 

Capital 
Projects  

Electric 
Services  

35,000 Funding for future replacement of roofing, air conditioning and 
flooring in facilities used for water and sewer operations at the 
Public Works Complex. 

Total transfers to nonmajor 
governmental funds $2,868,036 

 

Total transfers out to other 
funds $7,939,728 
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17. Employee Benefits Plans 
 
A. POLICE AND FIREFIGHTER EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS: 
 
The City maintains two separate single-employer, defined benefit pension plans for police 
officers and firefighters, which are maintained as Pension Trust Funds and included as part of the 
City’s reporting entity.  These pension plans do not issue stand-alone financial reports.  These 
plans also provide for disability and survivor benefits.   
 
The Florida Constitution requires local governments to make the actuarially determined 
contribution.  The Florida Division of Retirement reviews and approves each local government’s 
actuarial report prior to its being appropriated for use for funding purposes.  The funding 
methods and determination of benefits payable are provided in the various acts of the Florida 
Legislature, which created the funds including subsequent amendments thereto.  Additionally, 
the State of Florida collects two locally authorized insurance premium surcharges (one for the 
Police Pension Plan on casualty insurance policies and one for the Firefighter Pension Plan on 
certain real and personal property insurance policies within the corporate limits) which can only 
be distributed after the State has ascertained that the local government has met their actuarial 
funding requirement for the then most recently completed fiscal year. 
 
The investments of the two funds are administered and managed by investment consultants.  
Investments are reported at fair value and are managed by third party money managers.  The 
City’s independent custodian and the individual money managers price each instrument and 
reconcile material differences.  Investments that do not have an established market are reported 
at estimated fair value.  Performance reporting, manager fees, and the City’s asset valuation are 
based on the custodian’s determination of value. 
 

Annual Pension Cost  
and Net Pension Obligation 

  Police 
Pension 

Fund 

 Firefighter 
Pension 

Fund 
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1,683,973  $ 1,705,361 
Interest on net pension obligation (NPO)  46,735  46,099 
Adjustment to ARC  (38,774)  (36,072) 
Annual pension cost (APC)  1,691,934  1,715,388 
City and State contributions  (1,837,683)  (1,852,280)
Decrease in NPO  (145,749)  (136,892)
NPO beginning of year  566,490  594,824 
NPO end of year $ 420,741 $ 457,932 
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Three-Year Trend Information  
 Police Pension Fund 

 
 

Fiscal Year Ending 

 
Annual Pension 

Cost (APC) 
Percentage of APC 

Contributed 
Net Pension 
Obligation 

 
September 30, 2012 

 
$1,691,934 109% 

 
$ 420,741 

 
September 30, 2011 

 
 1,583,149 109% 

 
  566,490 

 
September 30, 2010 

 
 1,481,361 98% 

 
  714,035 

 
Three-Year Trend Information 

Firefighter Pension Fund 
 

 
Fiscal Year Ending 

 
Annual Pension 

Cost (APC) 
Percentage of APC 

Contributed 
Net Pension  
Obligation 

 
September 30, 2012 

 
$1,715,388 108% 

 
$  457,932 

 
September 30, 2011 

 
 1,680,144 108% 

 
   594,824 

 
September 30, 2010 

 
 1,667,632 88% 

 
   732,433 

 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 

as of October 1, 2011 Actuarial Valuation 

Fund 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 

 
Unfunded 

AAL 
(UAAL) 

 
Funded 
Ratio 

 
Covered 
Payroll 

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 

Police Pension  
 

$32,609,000 $46,068,000 $13,459,000 70.8% 
 

$4,261,000 315.9% 

Firefighter Pension  
 

31,791,000 41,585,000 9,794,000 76.4% 
 

4,148,000 236.1% 

 
The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information (RSI) 
immediately following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
the AAL for benefits. 
 
The amounts legally required as of September 30, 2012 to be reserved for the police and 
firefighter pension funds are $36,015,088 and $37,307,833, respectively. 
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The following schedule is derived from the respective actuarial reports and City information for 
the two pension plans as of October 1, 2010 and with regard to contributions for fiscal year 
2011/2012, based on the October 1, 2010 actuarial reports: 
 
  Police  Firefighter 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PLAN 
ASSETS: 

 
   

   Authority  Special Act of Legislation  Special Act of Legislation 
   Basis of Accounting  Accrual  Accrual 
   Assets Valuation:     
      Reporting  Fair Value  Fair Value 
      Actuarial Valuation  Actuarial Value  Actuarial Value 
   Legal Reserves  None  None 
   Long-Term Receivables  None  None 
   Internal/Participant Loans  None  None 
   Non-governmental investment in excess of  10%  None  None 
     
MEMBERSHIP AND PLAN PROVISIONS: 
 

 
   

MEMBERS:     
   Active Participants:     
      Vested  34  29 
      Non Vested  42  33 
   Service Retirees and Beneficiaries  51  31 
   Disability Retirees  3  1 
   Terminated Vested  3  2 
   Deferred Retired Option Plan  7  10 
 
NORMAL RETIREMENT BENEFITS: 

 
   

   Eligibility  All Police Officers  All Uniformed Firefighters 
   Age/Years of Service – Normal  Earlier of:  20 years service 

or age 55 w/10 yrs service  
Earlier of:  20 years service 
or age 55 w/10 yrs service 

   Age/Years of Service – Early  Age 50 w/10 years service  Age 50 w/10 years service 
   Normal (1)  3% of Average Final 

Compensation (AFC)  
times credited service  

3% of Average Final 
Compensation (AFC) 
times credited service 

   Early  Same as Normal except 
reduced by 3% per year 

early  

Same as Normal except 
reduced by 3% per year 

early 
   Delayed  Computed the same as 

Normal  
Benefit continues to accrue 

   Normal Form  10 years certain and life 
thereafter  

10 years certain and life 
thereafter 

   Years to vest  10  10 
   Cost of living adjustment (COLA)  Participants who terminate 

employment on or after 
October 1, 2002 are 

entitled to a 3% annual 
COLA on benefit 

payments beginning at age 
60  

Participants who terminate 
employment on or after 

October 1, 2002 are 
entitled to a 3% annual 

COLA on benefit payments 
beginning at age 60 
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  Police  Firefighter 
DISABILITY BENEFITS:     
   Service Incurred  Accrued benefit, but not 

less than 42% of AFC  
Accrued benefit, but not 
less than 42% of AFC 

   Non-line of Duty:     
      Eligibility  10 or more yrs of credited 

service; totally and 
permanently disabled  

10 or more yrs of credited 
service; totally and 

permanently disabled 
      Benefit  Accrued benefit, but not 

less than 25% of AFC 
  

Accrued benefit, but not 
less than 25% of AFC 

 
 
PRE-RETIREMENT DEATH BENEFITS: 

 
   

   Service Incurred  The greater of (a) the 
accrued benefit at the time 

of death or (b) 30% of 
monthly salary at time of 

death payable to the spouse 
until death  

The greater of (a) the 
accrued benefit at the time 

of death or (b) 30% of 
monthly salary at time of 

death payable to the spouse 
until death 

   Non-Service Incurred:     
      Eligible for Normal Retirement  Determined as though had 

retired on date of death  
Determined as though had 

retired on date of death 
      Not Eligible for Normal Retirement  (3)  (3) 
     
TERMINATION BENEFITS:  (4)  (5) 
     
CONTRIBUTIONS:     
   Rate:     
      City (2)  28.8%  30.7% 
      Participants   6.0%   6.0% 
   Annual Pension Cost  $1,691,934  $1,715,388 
   Contributions Made  $1,837,683  $1,853,995 
 
ACTUARIAL VALUATION: 

    

   Frequency  Annual  Annual 
   Latest Date  10/01/2010  10/01/2010 
   Basis for Contribution  10/01/2010  10/01/2010 
   Cost Method  Entry Age  Entry Age 
 
AMORTIZATION: 

 
   

   Method  Level Dollar Method  Level Dollar Method 
   Open/Closed  Closed  Closed 
   New Period Policy:     
      Gains/Losses  30 Years  30 Years 
      Assumption Change  30 Years  30 Years 
      Benefit Change  30 Years  30 Years 
 
ASSET VALUATION METHOD: 

 
4 year smoothed market  4 year smoothed market 
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  Police  Firefighter 
ASSUMPTIONS:     
   Investment Earnings  8.25%  7.75% 
   Salary Increases:     
      Inflation  4.0%  4.0% 
      Merit, Longevity, etc.  2.0% - 3.5%  1.5% - 5.5% 
   Postretirement Increases  3.0%  3.0% 
   Mortality Table  1983 Group Annuity 

Mortality Table  
1983 Group Annuity 

Mortality Table 
   Retirements  When first eligible  When first eligible 
   Turnover  Probabilities of termination 

are assigned by attained 
age  

Probabilities of termination 
are assigned by attained 

age 
(1) Average Final Compensation (AFC) is average monthly compensation during the best 60 

successive months out of the last 120 calendar months preceding date of retirement (or 
termination). 
Compensation - Total Pay, excluding special detail pay (includes vacation and comp time 
accrual). 

(2) City rate for Police and Firefighters includes excise taxes on gross receipts of casualty 
insurance premiums for Police and property insurance premiums for Firefighters.  
Revenues from these taxes in fiscal year 2012 were $260,885 and $333,964, respectively.  
These payments were reported as revenue and expense in the Police and Fire Premium Tax 
Trust Special Revenue Fund. 

(3) Less than 10 years of contributing service – return of employee contributions with interest 
at 5%.  10 years or more – accrued benefit payable for 10 years. 

(4) Less than 10 years of contributing service – return of employee contributions with interest 
at 5%.  10 years or more – benefit accrued to date of termination if contributions left in 
fund.  Payable at date member would have had 20 years of service, if before age 55. 

(5) Less than 10 years of contributing service – return of employee contributions with interest 
at 5%.  10 years or more – unreduced vested benefit payable at 20th anniversary of hire if 
that is before age 55.    (Reduced benefit payable at age 50, if earlier than 20 years service), 
if contributions left in Fund. 

 
The Police and Fire Pension Funds both use the accrual basis of accounting to determine the 
reporting of contributions, benefits paid and refunds paid.  Contributions are recognized when 
due pursuant to formal commitments (as well as statutory requirements).  Benefits and refunds 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Costs for 
administering the plans are included in the actuarial calculation of the annual required 
contribution and are paid from plan assets. 
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B. COMBINING STATEMENTS OF PENSION TRUST FUNDS: 
City of Winter Park, Florida 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
Pension Trust Funds 
September 30, 2012 

  Police  Firefighter   
  Pension  Pension   
  Fund  Fund  Total 
Assets       
  Cash and Short-term Investments $ 1,045,712 $ 1,180,051 $ 2,225,763 
       
  Investments, at Fair Value       
    Fixed Income Mutual Funds  1,643,029  1,842,716  3,485,745 
    Equity Mutual Funds  4,827,455  4,878,159  9,705,614 
    Common Collective Trusts  26,734,685  26,514,299  53,248,984 
    Stocks 
    Corporate Bonds 

 451,532 
1,299,194  

682,611 
2,190,666  

1,134,143 
3,489,860 

    Accrued Income  13,481  19,331  32,812 
      Total Investments  34,969,376  36,127,782  71,097,158 
       
        Total Assets  36,015,088  37,307,833  73,322,921 
       
Net Assets       
   Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $ 36,015,088 $ 37,307,833 $ 73,322,921 

 
 

City of Winter Park, Florida 
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Pension Trust Funds 
Year Ended September 30, 2012 

  Police  Firefighter   
  Pension  Pension   
  Fund  Fund  Total 
Additions       
   Contributions       
      Employer $ 1,837,683 $ 1,853,995 $ 3,691,678 
      Employee  258,825  342,065  600,890 
   Total Contributions  2,096,508  2,196,060  4,292,568 
       
   Investment Income       
      Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments  4,931,254  4,901,591  9,832,845
      Interest and Dividends  316,360  360,740  677,100 
     5,247,614  5,262,331  10,509,945
      Less Investment Expenses       
         Investment Management Fees  62,352  49,505  111,857 
         Custodian Fees  23,939  50,170  74,109 
   Net Investment Income  5,161,323  5,162,656  10,323,979
       
Total Additions  7,257,831  7,358,716  14,616,547 
       
Deductions       
   Employee Benefits  1,771,736  1,762,828  3,534,564 
   Refunds of Contributions  13,499  15,996  29,495 
   Administrative Expense  66,314  65,732  132,046 
Total Deductions  1,851,549  1,844,556  3,696,105 
       
Change in Net Assets  5,406,282  5,514,160  10,920,442 
       
Net Assets – Beginning  30,608,806  31,793,673  62,402,479 
       
Net Assets - Ending $ 36,015,088 $ 37,307,833 $ 73,322,921 
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C. GENERAL EMPLOYEE 401(a) PENSION PLAN: 
 
The City maintains a single-employer, defined contribution pension plan for the General 
Employees.  This is a tax-qualified plan pursuant to Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code.  This plan was established as of January 1, 1992 by adoption of the City Commission 
through Ordinance No. 1987.  The Plan Ordinance may be amended by the City Commission 
after public notice has been made, and two public hearings are held.  All full-time general 
employees hired after January 1, 1992 are eligible for participation in the plan.  All employees 
hired before January 1, 1992 were brought into the plan.  As of September 30, 2012, there were 
339 employees enrolled in the 401(a) pension plan. 
 
The plan, administered by an outside party, provides for employer contributions at 7%.  Earnings 
include W-2 earnings, plus any contributions made pursuant to a salary reduction agreement, 
which are not includible in the gross income of the employee under Section 125 of the Internal 
Revenue Service Code, Overtime and Bonuses.  The employee is required to contribute 3% of 
his/her earnings as defined above beginning October 1, 1992.  The vesting schedule provides for 
employees hired prior to October 1, 2006 to be 100% vested after the period of one year.  For 
employees hired after October 1, 2006, 100% vesting occurs after five years of service have been 
completed.  If an employee is terminated prior to completing the 100% vesting period, the 
employer contributions are forfeited by the employee and used to offset future employer 
contributions.  The normal retirement age has been designated by the employer as age 65.  The 
plan permits withdrawals for retirement, termination and disability.  The plan does allow 
participants to borrow against their accounts.    

 
Contributions to the Plan may be amended by a resolution adopted by the City Commission. 
 
 

18.  Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
 

Plan Description 
 
The Other Post-employment Benefit Plan (“OPEB Plan”) is a single-employer benefit plan 
administered by the City.  Retirees are charged whatever the insurance company charges for the 
type of coverage elected.  However, the premiums charged by the insurance company are based 
on a blending of the experience among younger, active employees and older, retired employees.  
Since the older retirees actually have higher costs, it means that the City is subsidizing the cost of 
the retiree coverage because it pays all or a significant portion of that premium on behalf of the 
active employees.  GASB No. 45 calls this the “implicit rate subsidy.”  Retirees and their 
dependents are permitted to remain covered under the City’s respective medical and insurance 
plans, as long as they pay a full premium applicable to coverage elected.  This conforms to the 

Payroll for covered employees $ 16,391,600
Total City payroll $ 27,585,530
Employer contributions required (net) and actually made  $ 1,124,727
Employee contributions actually made – 3% of covered payroll $ 491,748
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minimum required of Florida governmental employers per Ch. 112.08, F.S.  The OPEB Plan 
does not issue a stand-alone report. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
For the OPEB Plan, contribution requirements of the City are established and may be amended 
through action of the City’s Board of Supervisors.  Currently, the City’s OPEB benefits are 
unfunded.  The required contributions are based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements.  
There is no Trust Fund or equivalent arrangement into which the City would make contributions 
to advance-fund the obligation.  Therefore, ultimate subsidies, which are provided over time, are 
financed directly by general assets of the City, which are invested in accordance with the 
investment policy previously described.  The interest rate used to calculate the present values and 
costs of OPEB must be the long-range expected return on those investments.  The City selected 
an interest rate of 4% for this purpose. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution 
of the employer (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters 
of GASB No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period, not to exceed 30 years.   
 
The following table shows the components of the City’s net obligation to the OPEB Plan: 
 

  FY 2012 
Valuation 

 as of 
10/01/10 

 FY 2011 
Valuation 

 as of 
10/01/10 

 FY 2010 
Valuation 

 as of 
10/01/08 

Normal cost (service cost for one year) $ 591,099 $ 563,738 $ 68,019 
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability  274,677  248,801  196,777 
Interest on normal cost and amortization  34,631  32,502  4,820 
Annual required contribution (ARC)  900,407  845,041  269,616 
Interest on net OPEB obligation  31,087  8,212  4,085 
Adjustments to ARC  (30,886)  (8,158)  (5,679) 
Annual OPEB cost (expense)  900,608  845,095  268,022 
Employer contributions made  (213,282)  (273,204)  (164,850) 
Increase in net OPEB obligation  687,326  571,891  103,172 
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year   777,183  205,292  102,120 
Net OPEB obligation end of year $ 1,464,509 $ 777,183 $ 205,292 
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Calculations are based upon the types of benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB Plan at 
the time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point.  The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual expected 
employer contribution toward OPEB cost, and the net OPEB obligation for 2012 and the 
preceding years were as follows: 
 

    Employer  Percentage of   
    Contributions  Annual  Unfunded 

Fiscal Year  Annual  Toward  OPEB Cost  OPEB 
Ending  OPEB Cost  OPEB Cost  Contributed  Obligation 

   
September 30, 2012  $900,608 $213,282 23.7%  $7,188,159

   
September 30, 2011   845,095 273,204 32.3%   6,510,991

         
September 30, 2010   268,022    164,850  61.5%   1,595,582 

         
 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
As of October 1, 2011, the OPEB Plan was unfunded.  The actuarial accrued liability (“AAL”) 
for benefits was $7,188,159.  Assets of the OPEB Plan are valued at market; however, the 
current value is $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (“UAAL”) of $7,188,159.  
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the OPEB Plan) was 
$27,910,706.  The ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 25.8%. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, termination, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the OPEB Plan and the ARC are subject to 
continued revision, as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
the AAL. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
In any long-term actuarial valuation, certain assumptions are made regarding the population, the 
investment discount rates, and the benefits provided.  The actuarial assumptions included 
healthcare cost trend rates of 9%, decreased annually to an ultimate rate of 4.5% after five years.  
The remaining amortization period at September 30, 2012, was 30 years.  The Entry Age 
actuarial cost method was used, with amortization of the UAAL as a level percent of expected 
payroll (closed over 30 years).  This is the most common method used for government pension 
valuations (and, likely, for OPEB valuations).  The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations.   
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A table summarizing the actuarial assumptions used is included below: 
 

Actuarial Assumptions 
Investment rate of return* 4.0% 
Projected salary increases* 4.0% - 9.5% 
Payroll growth assumptions 3.0% 
Initial healthcare cost trend rate* 9.0% 
Ultimate healthcare cost trend rate* 4.5% 
* Includes inflation at 2.5%   

 
 
19. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
A. INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS: 
 
The City has entered into various interlocal agreements with the City of Orlando and the City of 
Altamonte Springs for sewage treatment capacity at facilities owned and operated by these 
entities.  Under the terms of the agreements the City has treatment capacity as follows (in gallons 
per day): 
 

Source   Capacity 
Orlando McLeod   1,000,000 
Orlando Iron Bridge I    4,962,000 
Orlando Iron Bridge II   1,000,000 
Altamonte Springs   413,524 
Total Committed Capacity   7,375,524 
    
Total cost of committed capacity  $ 3,394,035 
Less:  Accumulated amortization   3,162,435 
Net unamortized committed capacity  $ 231,600 
    

 
The City does not have an equity interest in the assets or liabilities related to any of the facilities 
listed above, nor does it participate in the daily operations.  The City funds through its rates a 
proportionate share of the operating costs of the facilities based upon a combination of 
committed and used capacity. 
 
The estimated future committed costs are as follows: 
 

Fiscal  
Year 

 
 

McLeod 
Road 

2013  $ 230,000
Total  $ 230,000
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B. LEASE COMMITMENT: 
 
The City is committed under a noncancelable operating lease for copier equipment used 
throughout the City.  Future minimum operating lease commitments are as follows: 
 

Fiscal  
Year 

 
Commitment

2013 $ 108,300
2014  108,300
Total $ 216,600

 
 
C. ENCUMBRANCES AND COMMITMENTS: 

 
Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration for the 
General Fund, Special Revenue funds, and Capital Projects funds.  At September 30, 2012, 
certain amounts which were previously restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes 
have been encumbered in the governmental funds.  Significant encumbrances included in 
governmental fund balances are as follows:  
 
  Encumbrances Included in: 

  Restricted 
Fund 

Balance 

 Committed 
Fund 

Balance 

 Assigned 
Fund 

Balance 
General Fund $ - $ - $ 584,076
Community Redevelopment Fund $ 18,367 $ - $ -
Aggregate Nonmajor Funds $ 33,787 $ 468,055 $ -
       

 
At year end, the City had total commitments outstanding, in the form of contracts and purchase 
orders, of approximately $1,300,000.  The most significant of these contracts is outlined in the 
table below: 
 

Project Funding Source 
Outstanding 
Commitment 

Construction of Fleet Peeples restrooms  General Fund $144,998
Lighting improvements for Parks Capital Projects $147,396
Dead tree removal services Capital Projects $183,500
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D. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters.  The City is insured for 
workers' compensation, general liability and automobile liability coverage under an All Lines 
Aggregate Plan.  
 
Under the All Lines Aggregate Plan, the City retains risk on aggregate claims per claim year 
basis as follows: 
 

Type of Risk 
 Amount of Risk 

Retained by City 
Property Liability  $   75,000
General Liability  $   50,000
Police Liability  $   50,000
Automobile Liability  $   50,000
Public Officials Liability  $   50,000
Workers’ Compensation Liability  $ 250,000
Crime Liability  $   50,000
Maximum Aggregate Claim Loss  $ 750,000

 
Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated.  Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred 
but not reported (IBNRs).  Claims liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, 
recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic 
and social factors. These claims liabilities are included in accrued liabilities in the financial 
statements.  Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past year are as follows: 
 

  Fiscal Year 
Ending 

September 30, 
2012 

 Fiscal Year 
Ending 

September 30, 
2011 

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 841,155 $ 841,155 
Incurred claims (including IBNRs)  437,583  600,069 
Claim payments   (437,583)   (600,069)
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $ 841,155 $ 841,155 
     

 
Based on claims costs incurred from October to December 2012, the City did not reduce its fiscal 
year end loss estimate from the prior year balance. 
 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past 
five years.  Premiums are paid into the General Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, by all 
other funds and are available to pay the insurance premiums when due.   
 
No significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year have been made.  The City 
does not participate in any risk pools. 
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E. LITIGATION: 
 
The City is subject to various disputes, legal proceedings and labor relation claims which arise in 
the normal course of its operations.  In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the amount 
of ultimate liability with respect to these activities will not be material to the City's financial 
condition. 
 
F. PENSION INVESTMENT RISKS: 
 
Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks.  
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, and due to the recent 
volatility that has affected the financial markets, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in 
the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could 
materially affect the City’s future pension funding obligations. 
 
20. Subsequent Events 

 
On December 18, 2012, the City issued $5,870,000 in Redevelopment Refunding Revenue 
Notes, Series 2012 for the purpose of refunding the outstanding Redevelopment Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2003-1, 2003-2, 2005-1 and 2005-2.  On the same date, the City issued $3,930,000 in 
Non-Ad Valorem Refunding Revenue Note, Series 2012 for the purpose of refunding the 
outstanding Orange Avenue Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2007 and Park Avenue 
Refunding Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2010. 
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Taxes

Property Taxes $ 14,265,000     $ 14,265,000     $ 14,031,034       $ (233,966)            
Utility Taxes 7,022,000       6,717,000       6,597,925         (119,075)            

Franchise Fees 1,132,500       1,132,500       1,080,258         (52,242)              
Fines and Forfeitures 1,220,200       1,030,200       891,649            (138,551)            
Licenses and Permits 1,729,550       1,729,550       2,390,825         661,275             
Intergovernmental 

Sales Tax 3,750,000       3,610,000       3,610,003         3                        
Local Option Gas Tax 921,200          931,200          938,926            7,726                 
Other Intergovernmental 1,535,502       1,577,115       1,620,854         43,739               

Charges for Services 5,090,400       5,090,400       5,002,708         (90,740)              
Other 405,657          405,657          337,798            (64,811)              
Transfers from Other Funds 5,439,400       5,439,400       5,071,692         (367,708)            

Amounts available for appropriation 42,511,409     41,928,022     41,573,672       (354,350)            
 

Charges to appropriations (outflows):  
General Administration 1,814,276       1,837,113       1,706,778         130,335             
Communications 178,637          176,434          170,485            5,949                 
Financial Services 365,936          365,936          374,810            (8,874)                
Planning 645,049          708,957          529,980            178,977             
Building and Code Enforcement 1,289,385       1,292,765       1,293,544         (779)                   
Public Works 6,095,136       6,134,757       6,172,290         (37,533)              
Police 11,946,362     11,836,252     11,626,755       209,497             
Fire 9,334,614       9,351,829       9,799,706         (447,877)            
Parks and Recreation 6,427,761       6,452,638       6,462,249         (9,611)                
Cultural and Community Services 1,550,212       1,550,212       1,550,212         -                         
Non-Departmental Charges 197,000          197,000          -                        197,000             
Transfers to Other Funds 2,466,540       2,556,540       2,556,540         -                         

Total charges to appropriations 42,310,908     42,460,433     42,243,349       217,084             

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations 200,501          (532,411)         (669,677)           (137,266)            

Fund Balance Allocation (200,501)         532,411          -                        (532,411)            

Deficiency of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations $ -                    $ -                    $ (669,677)         $ (669,677)           

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows 
and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts "available for appropriation" from 

the budgetary comparison schedule. $ 41,573,672       
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources
but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. (5,071,692)        

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. $ 36,501,980     

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts  "total charges to appropriations"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. $ 42,243,349       
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers to other funds are outflows for budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (2,556,540)        

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. $ 39,686,809     

See Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

Budgeted Amounts

The City of Winter Park, Florida

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Required Supplementary Information
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Property Taxes $ 2,107,423      $ 2,107,423      $ 2,090,103      $ (17,320)             
Charges for Services 162,000         162,000         140,594         (21,406)             
Other 25,000           25,000           92,757           67,757              

Amounts available for appropriation 2,294,423      2,294,423      2,323,454      29,031              

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Planning and Development 607,083         886,060         878,918         7,142                
Cultural and Community Services 19,500           19,500           17,668           1,832                
Debt Service - Principal 872,234         872,234         872,234         -                        
Debt Service - Interest and Other Charges 678,589         678,589         683,013         (4,424)               
Capital Improvements 265,000         877,303         294,613         582,690            

Total charges to appropriations 2,442,406      3,333,686      2,746,446      587,240            

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations (147,983)        (1,039,263)     (422,992)        616,271            

Fund Balance Allocation 147,983         1,039,263      -                     (1,039,263)        

Deficiency of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations $ -                   $ -                   $ (422,992)        $ (422,992)         

See Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

Budgeted Amounts

The City of Winter Park, Florida

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Community Redevelopment Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Required Supplementary Information
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The City of Winter Park, Florida 
Required Supplementary Information 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules – September 30, 2012 
 
  

 
The City follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
the financial statements: 
 

a) In April of each year, the City Manager presents draft budget goals to the City 
Commission for their consideration and revision if the Commission chooses.  
These goals become part of the foundation for developing the proposed budget 
and capital improvement plan. 

 
b) At the first City Commission meeting in July, the City Manager presents a 

recommended budget for the next succeeding fiscal year to the City Commission.  
The recommended budget includes proposed expenditures and the sources of 
receipts to finance them as well as a capital improvement plan. 

 
c) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayers comments. 
 
c) The budget is approved by the Commission and becomes the basis for the millage 

levied by the Commission. 
 

d) The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items 
within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund 
must be approved by the City Commission.  Expenditures may not exceed legal 
appropriations at the fund level.  All appropriations lapse at year-end.  For the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2012,  Finance Department, Building and Code 
Enforcement, Public Works, Fire Department and Parks and Recreation had 
budget overages due to the following reasons: 
1) Finance - The Finance Department budget overage is due primarily to staffing 

a position to continue working with staff from the Florida Department of 
Emergency Management on reimbursement of hurricane related costs.  The 
position was not budgeted because we did not anticipate needing it as much as 
was necessary in fiscal year 2012.  However, it is essential to continuing the 
process of obtaining additional reimbursements and going through the 
closeout of FEMA Project Worksheets to keep the funding already received.  

2) Building and Code Enforcement - the overtime budget was exceeded to keep 
up with growing construction activity. 

3) Public Works - costs for collection of garbage are over budget however, this is 
offset by revenue billed to customers. 

4) Fire - The Fire Department is over budget due to unscheduled overtime to 
meet minimum coverage requirements when firefighters are out due to illness 
or vacation. 
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The City of Winter Park, Florida 
Required Supplementary Information 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules – September 30, 2012 
 
  

 
5) Parks – costs to irrigate parks was over budget. 

 
e) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during 

the year for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds.  Formal 
budgetary integration is not employed for the Designations Trust Fund, Law 
Enforcement Trust Fund, Affordable Housing Fund, Parks Impact Fees Fund, 
Hurricane Recovery Fund, Help Our Park Expand Fund, Police and Firefighter 
Premium Tax Trust Fund, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund and 
Stormwater Capital Projects Fund. 

 
f) The budgets for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds 

(Stormwater Utility Fund, Grant Fund and Cemetery Trust Fund) are legally 
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles with 
the exception that budgetary basis expenditures include purchase orders 
(encumbrances) issued for goods or services not received at year-end. 

 
g) Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended, in accordance with 

City ordinance.  The General Fund budget for the current year was increased by 
$149,525 subsequent to its original adoption.   

 
h) General administration includes divisions that are under the City Manager and do 

not have their own departmental director. 
 
i) The Budgetary Comparison Schedules shown in the accompanying supplemental 

information present comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with 
actual results.  The originally adopted budget is presented for purposes of 
comparison to the final, amended budget.  The original budget includes the 
adjustments necessary to bring forward the carry forward appropriation (for 
unexpended projects and encumbrances) as authorized in the annual budget 
ordinance.  The nonmajor Special Revenue Fund budget comparisons are 
presented in the Combining Statements section.   
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The City of Winter Park, Florida 
Required Supplementary Information 

Pension Trust Funds  
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

 

 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date  

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets  

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 

Entry Age  

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL)  
Funded 
Ratio  

Covered 
Payroll  

UAAL as 
a 

Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
             
Police 
Pension 
Fund 

            

             
10/01/02  21,179,000  23,135,000  1,956,000  91.5%  4,139,001  47.3% 
10/01/03  22,784,000  25,258,000  2,474,000  90.2%  4,477,685  55.3% 
10/01/04  23,134,000  27,666,000  4,532,000  83.6%  4,891,360  92.7% 
10/01/05  24,748,000  30,536,000  5,788,000  81.0%  5,537,000  104.5% 
10/01/06  26,940,000  32,939,000  5,999,000  81.8%  5,082,000  118.0% 
10/01/07  31,986,000  35,776,000  3,790,000  89.4%  5,152,000  73.6% 
10/01/08  32,985,000  40,390,000  7,405,000  81.7%  5,166,000  143.3% 
10/01/09  32,833,000  42,575,000  9,742,000  77.1%  5,254,000  185.4% 
10/01/10   33,315,000   44,311,000    10,996,000     75.2%    4,703,000        233.8% 
10/01/11   32,609,000   46,068,000    13,459,000     70.8%    4,261,000        315.9% 
             
Firefighter 
Pension 
Fund 

 

           
             
10/01/02  16,921,000  17,819,000  898,000  95.0%  3,524,818  25.5% 
10/01/03  18,324,000  20,011,000  1,687,000  91.6%  3,957,444  42.6% 
10/01/04  18,849,000  22,405,000  3,556,000  84.1%  4,381,318  81.2% 
10/01/05  20,589,000  25,400,000  4,811,000  81.1%  4,540,831  105.9% 
10/01/06  24,213,000  28,271,000  4,058,000  85.6%  4,941,000  82.1% 
10/01/07  26,897,000  31,129,000  4,232,000  86.4%  5,323,000  79.5% 
10/01/08  28,964,000  34,639,000  5,675,000  83.6%  5,085,000  111.6% 
10/01/09  30,139,000  37,172,000  7,033,000  81.1%  4,838,000  145.4% 
10/01/10  31,300,000   39,421,000 8,121,000 79.4% 4,556,000  178.2% 
10/01/11  31,791,000   41,585,000 9,794,000 76.4% 4,148,000  236.1% 
 
Note: Required actuarial contributions for the plan years ending September 30, 2012 were determined 
prospectively in the respective actuarial valuations dated October 1, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Notes to Schedule of Funding Progress 
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Pension Trust Funds  
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

 
 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER AND OTHER 
CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES 

 
 

Police 
Pension 

Fund 

     

 Contributions Made  

Year Ended 
9/30 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 
Employer 

Contribution 

State 
Premium Tax 

Revenue 
Total 

Contribution Percent Contributed 
      

2003          628,079 $338,864 289,215 628,079 100% 
2004          682,310 297,035 385,275 682,310 100% 
2005          956,954 731,004 225,950 956,954 100% 
2006          1,038,295 757,440 280,855 1,038,295 100% 
2007          1,509,502 980,473 289,722 1,270,195    84% 
2008          1,460,137 852,716 264,251 1,116,967    76% 
2009          1,258,537 896,264 282,690 1,178,954    94% 
2010          1,467,431 1,187,235 260,880 1,448,115    99% 

  2011 1,615,340 1,473,000 257,694 1,730,694 107% 
  2012 1,683,973 1,576,798 260,885 1,837,683 109% 
 
Fire Pension 

Fund 
     
 Contributions Made  

Year Ended 
9/30 

Annual 
Required 

Contribution 
Employer 

Contribution 

State 
Premium Tax 

Revenue 
Total 

Contribution Percent Contributed 
      

2003          676,299 444,398 238,801 683,199 101% 
2004 785,317 535,623 249,694 785,317 100% 
2005 1,081,544 823,182 258,362 1,081,544 100% 
2006 1,168,068 870,265 297,803 1,168,068 100% 
2007 1,503,094 1,021,369 333,607 1,354,976    90% 
2008 1,525,495 960,801 363,890 1,324,691    87% 
2009 1,634,076 1,153,948 375,084 1,529,032    94% 
2010 1,657,519 1,137,419 399,618 1,537,037    93% 

  2011 1,730,904 1,485,504 365,789 1,851,293 107% 
  2012 1,705,361 1,520,031 333,964 1,853,995 109% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Notes to Schedule of Funding Progress 
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Notes to Schedule of Funding Progress – September 30, 2012 

   
 
(1) All recommended trend information has been calculated using the Entry Age Actuarial Cost 

Method. 
 
(2) For information regarding contribution percentage rates, assumptions, amortization method, etc.  

(See Note 17A). 
 
(3) As of the 10/01/95 actuarial valuation date, the following benefit accrual rate change was made to 

the police and firefighter pension funds: 
  
 

 Current Previous 
Benefit Accrual 
Rate 

3.0% per year of service for all employees 2.5% per year of service for non-
exempt employees 
 

  3.0% per year of service for exempt 
employees

 
 

(4) A 3% annual cost of living adjustment on benefit payments for participants in the police and fire 
pension plans who terminate employment on or after October 1, 2002 was added effective 
October 1, 2002. 
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Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
 

Year 
Ended  

9/30  

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets  

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 

Entry Age  

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL)  
Funded 
Ratio  

Covered 
Payroll  

UAAL as 
a 

Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
             

2010    $0  $1,595,582  $1,595,582  0.0%  $25,208,613  6.33% 
2011    0  6,510,991  6,510,991  0.0%  26,691,335  24.4% 
2012    0  7,188,159  7,188,159  0.0%  27,910,706  25.8% 

             
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER 
 

Year  
Ended  

9/30 

Annual 
 OPEB  

Cost 
Amount 

Contributed 

Percentage  
of Annual  

OPEB Cost 
Contributed 

Net OPEB  
Obligation 

     
2010   $268,022   $164,850 61.5%   $205,292 
2011   845,095   273,204 32.3%     777,183 
2012   900,608   213,282 23.7%  1,464,509 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as 
part of the actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2010. 
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are 
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes. 

 
Designations Trust Fund - To account for the receipt and disbursement of 
donor specified contributions and to account for City funds set aside for 
designated future purposes. 
 
Stormwater Utility Fund - To account for the Stormwater Utility Fee 
revenues and the related expenditures for stormwater runoff management. 
 
Affordable Housing Fund - To account for the Affordable Housing Fee and 
the related expenditures for affordable housing in Winter Park. 
 
Law Enforcement Trust Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures 
to be used for law enforcement in accordance with Chapter 943.25 of the 
Florida Statutes. 
 
Grant Fund - To account for revenues and expenditures of various law 
enforcement grants. 
 
Parks Impact Fees Fund – To account for impact fees collected on new 
residential units in the City and related expenditures for acquiring new park 
land and recreation facilities on newly acquired park land. 
 
Help Our Park Expand Fund – To account for private contributions and 
General Fund transfers for the purposes of acquiring the development rights 
to property adjacent to Central Park possibly culminating in the expansion of 
Central Park. 
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
(continued) 

 
 
Police and Firefighter Premium Tax Trust - To account for excise taxes 
imposed on homeowners’ insurance premiums collected by the State of 
Florida Department of Revenue and remitted to the City.  These tax revenues 
are to be used as retirement contributions to Police and Firefighter Pension 
plans. 
 
Cemetery Trust Fund - To account for the operations of the City's 
cemeteries including the sale and maintenance of lots. 
 

Debt Service Fund 
 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources 
for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest. 

 
Capital Projects Funds 

 
Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by 
proprietary funds and trust funds. 
 
Capital Projects Fund – To account for the Capital Project revenues and 
the related expenditures for capital projects. 
 
Stormwater Capital Projects Fund – To account for the Stormwater 
Capital Project revenues and the related expenditures for Stormwater 
projects. 
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Law Parks 
Designations Stormwater Affordable Enforcement Impact 

Trust Utility Housing Trust Grant Fees

ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 1,276,863       $ -                  $ 33                $ 993,247         $ -                  $ 99,482         
Accounts Receivable - Net 70                  211,964       -                  -                    -                  -                  
Unbilled Service Charges -                     188,487       -                  -                    -                  -                  
Accrued Interest Receivable 2,434              3,194           -                  1,930             -                  193              
Due from Other Governments 26,335            157              -                  -                    129,419       -                  
Inventories -                     42,125         -                  -                    -                  -                  
Prepaid Items -                     -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  
Note Receivable -                     -                  83,200         -                    -                  -                  
Special Assessments Receivable 448,752          -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  

Total Assets $ 1,754,454     $ 445,927     $ 83,233       $ 995,177        $ 129,419       $ 99,675       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 137,600          $ 70,407         $ -                  $ 37,400           $ 3,900           $ 45                
Accrued Liabilities -                     48,462         -                  -                    2,599           -                  
Due to Other Funds -                   190,384     -                -                   12,657         -                
Due to Other Governments -                     71                -                  -                    888              -                  
Deferred Revenue 292,383          -                  74,799         -                    -                  -                  

Total Liabilities 429,983          309,324       74,799         37,400           20,044         45                

Fund Balances:
Non Spendable

Inventories -                     42,125         -                  -                    -                  -                  
Prepaid Items -                     -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  

Spendable
Restricted

Public Safety 185,225          -                  -                  957,777         109,375       -                  
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks 96,070            -                  -                  -                    -                  99,630         
Community Enhancement Items 278,430          -                  8,434           -                    -                  -                  

Committed
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks 619,362          -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  
Construction Projects -                     94,478         -                  -                    -                  -                  

Assigned
Maintenance and Improvements to Parks 145,384          -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  
Special Assessments -                     -                  -                  -                    -                  -                  

Total Fund Balances 1,324,471       136,603       8,434           957,777         109,375       99,630         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,754,454     $ 445,927     $ 83,233       $ 995,177        $ 129,419       $ 99,675       

Special Revenue Funds

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2012
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Total
Help Our Nonmajor

Park Cemetery Debt Capital Stormwater Governmental 
Expand Trust Total Service Projects Capital Projects Total Funds

$ 37,229         $ 1,531,786    $ 3,938,640    $ -                  $ 2,377,518    $ 1,838,940            $ 4,216,458        $ 8,155,098         
-                  -                  212,034       1,971           -                  -                          -                       214,005            
-                  -                  188,487       -                  -                  -                          -                       188,487            
-                  3,010           10,761         -                  -                  -                          -                       10,761              
-                  -                  155,911       -                  346,995       -                          346,995           502,906            
-                  -                  42,125         -                  -                  -                          -                       42,125              

27,492         -                  27,492         -                  -                  -                          -                       27,492              
-                  -                  83,200         -                  -                  -                          -                       83,200              
-                  -                  448,752       2,377,536    -                  -                          -                       2,826,288         

$ 64,721         $ 1,534,796    $ 5,107,402    $ 2,379,507  $ 2,724,513  $ 1,838,940          $ 4,563,453       $ 12,050,362       

$ -                  $ 691              $ 250,043       $ -                  $ 727,895       $ 7,570                  $ 735,465           $ 985,508            
-                  -                  51,061         -                  -                  -                          -                       51,061              
-                  -                  203,041       11,061         -                  -                          -                       214,102            
-                  -                  367,182       2,195,429    -                  -                          -                       2,562,611         

-                  691              872,286       2,206,490    727,895       7,570                  735,465           3,814,241         

-                  -                  42,125         -                  -                  -                          -                       42,125              
27,492         -                  27,492         -                  -                  -                          -                       27,492              

-                  -                  1,252,377    -                  -                  -                          -                       1,252,377         
37,229         -                  232,929       -                  -                  -                          -                       232,929            

-                  -                  286,864       -                  -                  -                          -                       286,864            

-                  1,534,105    2,153,467    -                  -                  -                          -                       2,153,467         
-                  -                  94,478         -                  1,996,618    1,831,370            3,827,988        3,922,466         

-                  -                  145,384       -                  -                  -                          -                       145,384            
-                  -                  -                  173,017       -                  -                          -                       173,017            

64,721         1,534,105    4,235,116    173,017       1,996,618    1,831,370            3,827,988        8,236,121         

$ 64,721         $ 1,534,796    $ 5,107,402    $ 2,379,507  $ 2,724,513  $ 1,838,940          $ 4,563,453       $ 12,050,362       

Capital Projects FundsSpecial Revenue Funds (continued)
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Law Parks 
Designations Stormwater Affordable Enforcement Impact 

Trust Utility Housing Trust Grant Fees

Revenues
Property Taxes $ -                    $ -                   $ -                 $ -                      $ -                 $ -                 
Fines and Forfeitures 128,518         -                   -                 199,700 -                 -                 
Licenses and Permits -                    -                   200,829      -                      -                 -                 
Intergovernmental 26,335           45,317         -                 -                      817,043      -                 
Charges for Services 12,999           2,336,779    -                 -                      -                 -                 
Other 595,587         34,196         25,181        18,273             (230)            35,451        

Total Revenues 763,439         2,416,292    226,010      217,973           816,813      35,451        

Expenditures
Current:

Planning 10,080           -                   77,949        -                      -                 -                 
Public Works:

Stormwater Management -                    249,058       -                 -                      -                 -                 
Lakes -                    1,116,838    -                 -                      -                 -                 
Street Drainage and Maintenance 3,314             740,907       -                 -                      -                 -                 
Storm Drain Traps -                    -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 
Street Sweeping -                    288,111       -                 -                      -                 -                 

Police 92,554           65,000         -                 215,198           824,797      -                 
Fire 104,871         -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 
Parks and Recreation 274,264         -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 

Debt Service:
Principal -                    -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 
Interest and Other Charges -                    -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 

Capital Improvements -                    -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 
Total Expenditures 485,083         2,459,914    77,949        215,198           824,797      -                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over Expenditures 278,356         (43,622)        148,061      2,775               (7,984)         35,451        

Other Financing Sources and (Uses)
Transfers from Other Funds -                    -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 
Transfers to Other Funds (329,900)        -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 

Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) (329,900)        -                   -                 -                      -                 -                 

Net Change in Fund Balances (51,544)          (43,622)        148,061      2,775               (7,984)         35,451        

Fund Balances (Deficits) - Beginning 1,376,015      180,225       (139,627)     955,002           117,359      64,179        

Fund Balances - Ending $ 1,324,471     $ 136,603     $ 8,434        $ 957,777         $ 109,375      $ 99,630      

Special Revenue Funds

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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Total
Help Our Police and Stormwater Nonmajor

Park Firefighter Cemetery Debt Capital Capital Governmental
Expand Premium Tax Trust Trust Total Service Projects Projects Total Funds

$ -                  $ -                                $ -                 $ -                  $ 1,187,893    $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ 1,187,893         
-                  -                                -                 328,218       -                  -                  -                  -                  328,218            
-                  -                                -                 200,829       -                  -                  -                  -                  200,829            
-                  594,849                    -                 1,483,544    -                  562,488       2,586           565,074       2,048,618         
-                  -                                -                 2,349,778    -                  -                  734,025       734,025       3,083,803         
-                  -                                313,572     1,022,030    182,106       41,398         -                  41,398         1,245,534         
-                  594,849                    313,572     5,384,399    1,369,999    603,886       736,611       1,340,497    8,094,895         

-                  -                                -                 88,029         -                  -                  -                  -                  88,029              
 

-                  -                                -                 249,058       -                  -                  -                  -                  249,058            
-                  -                                -                 1,116,838    -                  -                  -                  -                  1,116,838         
-                  -                                -                 744,221       -                  -                  -                  -                  744,221            
-                  -                                -                 288,111       -                  -                  -                  -                  288,111            
-                  260,885                    -                 1,458,434    -                  -                  -                  -                  1,458,434         
-                  333,964                    -                 438,835       -                  -                  -                  -                  438,835            
-                  -                                1,200         275,464       -                  -                  -                  -                  275,464            

-                  -                                -                 -                  2,068,644    -                  -                  -                  2,068,644         
-                  -                                -                 -                  570,326       -                  -                  -                  570,326            
-                  -                                -                 -                  -                  3,894,620    751,046       4,645,666    4,645,666         
-                  594,849                    1,200         4,658,990    2,638,970    3,894,620    751,046       4,645,666    11,943,626       

-                  -                                312,372     725,409       (1,268,971)   (3,290,734)   (14,435)        (3,305,169)   (3,848,731)        

-                  -                                -                 -                  1,264,063    1,603,973    -                  1,603,973    2,868,036         
-                  -                                (274,362)    (604,262)      -                  -                  -                  -                  (604,262)           
-                  -                                (274,362)    (604,262)      1,264,063    1,603,973    -                  1,603,973    2,263,774         

-                  -                                38,010       121,147       (4,908)          (1,686,761)   (14,435)        (1,701,196)   (1,584,957)        

64,721         -                                1,496,095  4,113,969    177,925       3,683,379    1,845,805    5,529,184    9,821,078         

$ 64,721         $ -                                $ 1,534,105  $ 4,235,116  $ 173,017     $ 1,996,618  $ 1,831,370  $ 3,827,988    $ 8,236,121       

Capital Projects FundsSpecial Revenue Funds (continued)

101



Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental $ 57,000           $ 57,000           $ 45,317           $ (11,683)             
Charges for Services 2,305,962      2,305,962      2,336,779      30,817              
Other 25,500           25,500           34,196           8,696                

Amounts available for appropriation 2,388,462      2,388,462      2,416,292      27,830              

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public Works:

Stormwater Management 239,696         239,696         249,058         (9,362)               
Lakes 1,085,544      1,110,216      1,116,838      (6,622)               
Street Drainage and Maintenance 742,812         751,456         740,907         10,549              
Street Sweeping 309,410         312,291         288,111         24,180              

Police 65,000           65,000           65,000           -
Total charges to appropriations 2,442,462      2,478,659      2,459,914      18,745              

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations (54,000)          (90,197)          (43,622)          46,575              

Fund Balance Allocation 54,000           90,197           -                     (90,197)             

Deficiency of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations $ -                   $ -                   $ (43,622)          $ (43,622)           

Budgeted Amounts

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Stormwater Utility Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Intergovernmental $ 764,930            $ 764,930           $ 817,043          $ 52,113              
Other -                        -                       (230)                (230)                  

Amounts available for appropriation 764,930            764,930           816,813          51,883              

Charges to appropriations (outflows):  
Police 764,930            765,700           824,797          (59,097)             

Total charges to appropriations 764,930            765,700           824,797          (59,097)             

Deficiency of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations -                        (770)                 (7,984)             (7,214)               

Fund Balance Allocation -                        770                  -                     (770)                  

Deficiency of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations $ -                      $ -                     $ (7,984)             $ (7,984)             

Budgeted Amounts

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Grant Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Resources (inflows):
Other $ 191,450        $ 191,450             $ 313,572            $ 122,122            

Amounts available for appropriation 191,450        191,450             313,572            122,122            

Charges to appropriations (outflows):  
Parks and Recreation 1,200            1,200                 1,200                -                        
Transfers to Other Funds 256,700        256,700             274,362            (17,662)             

Total charges to appropriations 257,900        257,900             275,562            (17,662)             

Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations (66,450)         (66,450)              38,010              104,460            

Fund Balance Allocation 66,450          66,450               -                        (66,450)             

Excess of Resources Over
Charges to Appropriations $ -                  $ -                       $ 38,010              $ 38,010            

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows 
and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts "available for appropriation" from 

the budgetary comparison schedule. $ 313,572            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

None -                        
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures,

and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. $ 313,572            

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts "total charges to appropriations"

from the budgetary comparison schedule. $ 275,562            
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Transfers to other funds are outflows for budgetary resources
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (274,362)           

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. $ 1,200                

Budgeted Amounts

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Cemetery Trust Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
 
Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or 
services provided by one department to other departments of the government 
on a cost reimbursement basis. 
 
Fleet Maintenance Fund – To account for the operations of the Fleet 
Maintenance Department that provides fleet management and maintenance 
services for the vehicles and equipment owned by the City. 
 
Vehicle Replacement Fund - To account for the acquisition and control of 
the City's motor vehicles. 
 
Employee Insurance Fund - To account for the accumulation of funds to 
pay health insurance premiums when due. 
 
General Insurance Fund - To account for the accumulation of funds to pay 
insurance premiums when due. 
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Total

Fleet Vehicle Employee General
Maintenance Replacement Insurance Insurance Funds

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments $ 12,428            $ 960,958         $ 1,092,067    $ 599,979       $ 2,665,432    
Accounts Receivable - Net 12,222            -                     27,843         -                  40,065         
Accrued Interest Receivable 24                   1,867             2,121           1,166           5,178           
Inventories 144,449          -                     -                  -                  144,449       
Prepaid Items -                     -                     -                  45,000         45,000         

Total current assets 169,123          962,825         1,122,031    646,145       2,900,124    

Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:

Depreciable - Net 4,527              5,172,286      -                  9,009           5,185,822    
Other Assets:

Deposits -                     -                     202,083       -                  202,083       
Total non-current assets 4,527              5,172,286      202,083       9,009           5,387,905    

 
Total Assets 173,650          6,135,111      1,324,114    655,154       8,288,029    

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 59,243            185,916         22,740         21,285         289,184       
Accrued Liabilities 32,118            618                386,000       845,809       1,264,545    
Due to Other Governments -                     -                     -                  13,414         13,414         
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 23,748            -                     -                  2,699           26,447         
Current Portion of Capital Lease Obligations -                     56,457           -                  -                  56,457         

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital Lease Obligations After One Year -                     4,436             -                  -                  4,436           
Other Post Employment Benefits -                     -                     1,464,509    -                  1,464,509    
Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences 68,598            -                     -                  6,401           74,999         

Total Liabilities 183,707          247,427         1,873,249    889,608       3,193,991    

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 4,527              5,111,393      -                  9,009           5,124,929    
Unrestricted  (Deficit) (14,584)          776,291         (549,135)     (243,463)     (30,891)       

Total Net Assets (Deficit) $ (10,057)        $ 5,887,684    $ (549,135)   $ (234,454)     $ 5,094,038  

Internal
Service

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Internal Service Funds
September 30, 2012

Internal Service Funds
Governmental Activities
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Total

Fleet Vehicle Employee General 
Maintenance Replacement Insurance Insurance Funds

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $ 1,629,725      $ 962,903          $ 5,949,328     $ 1,951,174   $ 10,493,130      

Total Operating Revenues 1,629,725      962,903          5,949,328     1,951,174   10,493,130      

Operating Expenses
Operations 1,459,448      21,223            6,921,906     1,696,959   10,099,536      
Depreciation 1,552             945,664          -                    1,834          949,050           

Total Operating Expenses 1,461,000      966,887          6,921,906     1,698,793   11,048,586      

Operating Income (Loss) 168,725         (3,984)             (972,578)       252,381      (555,456)          

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings (Losses) (178)             8,695            22,965        6,381          37,863           
Gain on Disposal of Assets 55                  535,000          -                    -                  535,055           
Miscellaneous Revenues -                   984               3,076          -                 4,060             

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (123)               544,679          26,041          6,381          576,978           

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 168,602         540,695          (946,537)       258,762      21,522             

Transfers
Transfers Out -                     -                      -                    (325,000)     (325,000)          

Total Transfers -                     -                      -                    (325,000)     (325,000)          

Change in Net Assets 168,602         540,695          (946,537)       (66,238)       (303,478)          

Total Net Assets (Deficit) - Beginning (178,659)        5,346,989       397,402        (168,216)     5,397,516        

Total Net Assets (Deficit) - Ending $ (10,057)        $ 5,887,684     $ (549,135)     $ (234,454)     $ 5,094,038      

Internal Service Funds
Internal 
Service

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Governmental Activities
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Total

Fleet Vehicle Employee General
Maintenance Replacement Insurance Insurance Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers $ 103,702         $ -                     $ 174,537         $ -                   $ 278,239       

Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 1,520,175      962,903          5,936,705      1,951,174    10,370,957  

Repayment of Loans from Other Funds -                     93,214            95,053           -                   188,267       

Payments to Suppliers (563,571)        (21,223)          (2,039,220)     (75,670)        (2,699,684)   

Payments to Employees (727,472)        -                     -                     (84,501)        (811,973)      

Payments for Interfund Services Used (166,803)        -                     -                     (8,668)          (175,471)      

Repayment of Loans to Other Funds (151,208)        -                     -                     -                   (151,208)      

Claims Paid -                     -                     (4,184,902)     (1,562,835)   (5,747,737)   

Other Receipts -                     984                 3,076             -                   4,060           

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating
Activities 14,823         1,035,878     (14,751)        219,500       1,255,450  

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     (325,000)      (325,000)      

Net Cash Used in Noncapital
Financing Activities -                   -                   -                    (325,000)      (325,000)    

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Proceeds from Sale of Assets 3,295             563,793          -                     -                   567,088       

Principal Payments - Capital Lease -                     (46,019)          -                     -                   (46,019)        

Purchases of Capital Assets (5,488)            (1,663,069)     -                     -                   (1,668,557)   

Net Cash Used in Capital
and Related Financing Activities (2,193)          (1,145,295)   -                    -                  (1,147,488) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on Investments (202)               11,633            27,182           8,087           46,700         

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (202)             11,633          27,182         8,087           46,700       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
 Cash Equivalents 12,428         (97,784)        12,431         (97,413)        (170,338)    

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning -                   1,058,742     1,079,636    697,392       2,835,770  

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending $ 12,428         $ 960,958        $ 1,092,067    $ 599,979       $ 2,665,432  

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) $ 168,725         $ (3,984)            $ (972,578)        $ 252,381       $ (555,456)      

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 1,552             945,664          -                     1,834           949,050       

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts Receivable (5,848)            -                     (12,623)          -                   (18,471)        

Due from Other Funds -                     93,214            95,053           -                   188,267       

Due From Other Governments -                     -                     174,537         -                   174,537       

Inventories (14,724)          -                     -                     -                   (14,724)        

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 9,473             -                     10,458           (48,583)        (28,652)        

Accrued Liabilities 575                -                     -                     118              693              

Due to Other Funds (151,208)        -                     -                     -                   (151,208)      

Due to Other Governments -                     -                     -                     13,414         13,414         

Accumulated Unused Compensated

Absences 6,278             -                     -                     336              6,614           

Other Post Employment Benefits -                     -                     687,326         -                   687,326       

Other Receipts -                     984                 3,076             -                   4,060           

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating
 Activities $ 14,823         $ 1,035,878     $ (14,751)        $ 219,500       $ 1,255,450  

Note:  There were no significant non-cash transactions.

Service
Internal

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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STATISTICAL SECTION  
(UNAUDITED) 

 
 

Statistical tables differ from financial statements because they usually 
cover more than one fiscal year and may present nonaccounting data, 
financial trends and the fiscal capacity of the governments. 

 
There are no limitations placed upon the amount of debt the City of 
Winter Park may issue by either the City's Code of Ordinances or by 
Florida Statutes. 
 



STATISTICAL SECTION 
 
 

This part of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, not disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s 
overall financial health. 
 
 
Contents Page 
 
Financial Trends 
 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 
how the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over 
time. 
 

Table 1 – Net Assets by Component....................................................................111 
Table 2 – Changes in Net Assets .........................................................................112 
Table 3 – Fund Balances, Governmental Funds ..................................................114 
Table 4 – Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds ...............................115 
 
 

Revenue Capacity 
 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors 
affecting the City’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 
 

Table 5 – Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property ................116 
Table 6 – Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates ........................................117 
Table 7 – Principal Property Tax Payers .............................................................118 
Table 8 – Property Tax Levies and Collections ...................................................119 
 
 

Debt Capacity 
 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s 
ability to issue additional debt in the future 

 
Table 9   – Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type .................................................120 
Table 10 – Ratios of General Obligation Bonds Outstanding .............................121 
Table 11 – Legal Debt Margin Information .........................................................122 
Table 12 – Tax Increment Revenue Bonds Coverage .........................................123 
Table 13 – Water and Sewer Revenue Debt Coverage ........................................124 
Table 14 – Electric Services Revenue Debt Coverage ........................................125 
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Contents (continued) Page 
 
Demographic and Economic Information 
 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within which the City’s financial 
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with 
other governments. 
 

Table 15 – Demographic and Economic Statistics ..............................................126 
Table 16 – Principal Employers ...........................................................................127 
 
 

Operating Information 
 
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and 
resources to help the reader understand how the City’s financial 
information relates to the services the City provides and the activities it 
performs. 
 

Table 17 – Full-time Authorized City Government Employees by Function ......128 
Table 18 – Operating Indicators by Function/Program .......................................129 
Table 19 – Supplemental Information for Water and Sewer - Customers ...........130 
Table 20 – Supplemental Information for Water and Sewer - Usage ..................131 
Table 21 – Water & Sewer Rates, Fees and Charges ..........................................132 
Table 22 – Supplemental Information for Electric – Customers and Usage .......134 
Table 23 – Residential Electric Service Rates, Fees and Charges .......................135 
Table 24 – General Service Electric Rates, Fees and Charges ............................136 
Table 25 – Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program ...................................137 
 
 

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.   
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Governmental activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 36,796,415      $ 27,990,516      $ 31,429,903      $ 27,511,834      $ 38,664,090      $ 41,212,111      $ 39,073,313      $ 42,543,338      $ 44,104,358      $ 50,151,230      
Restricted 3,654,277        8,216,727        4,094,798        10,121,591      7,106,502        970,414           1,151,993        1,419,405        4,064,284        3,819,595        
Unrestricted 8,304,749        10,325,810      9,324,932        9,732,858        5,208,858        12,027,786      16,208,314      18,224,924      18,460,698      15,197,425      

Total governmental activities net assets $ 48,755,441      $ 46,533,053      $ 44,849,633      $ 47,366,283      $ 50,979,450      $ 54,210,311      $ 56,433,620      $ 62,187,667      $ 66,629,340      $ 69,168,250      

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 18,302,530      $ 28,457,263      $ 27,842,911      $ 31,518,446      $ 43,160,902      $ 45,934,339      $ 43,191,242      $ 37,331,556      $ 41,405,685      $ 41,715,121      
Restricted 21,002,016      9,724,759        9,679,295        18,682,157      7,109,628        6,109,315        5,581,678        7,436,321        6,059,347        6,427,550        
Unrestricted 9,588,790        7,112,248        7,926,573        (2,456,879)       6,248,968        (1,338,456)       2,810,470        11,143,615      17,948,942      23,527,604      

Total business-type activities net assets $ 48,893,336      $ 45,294,270      $ 45,448,779      $ 47,743,724      $ 56,519,498      $ 50,705,198      $ 51,583,390      $ 55,911,492      $ 65,413,974      $ 71,670,275      

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 55,098,945      $ 56,447,779      $ 59,272,814      $ 59,030,280      $ 81,824,992      $ 87,146,450      $ 82,264,555      $ 79,874,894      $ 85,510,043      $ 91,866,351      
Restricted 24,656,293      17,941,486      13,774,093      28,803,748      14,216,130      7,079,729        6,733,671        8,855,726        10,123,631      10,247,145      
Unrestricted 17,893,539      17,438,058      17,251,505      7,275,979        11,457,826      10,689,330      19,018,784      29,368,539      36,409,640      38,725,029      

Total primary government activities net assets $ 97,648,777      $ 91,827,323    $ 90,298,412    $ 95,110,007    $ 107,498,948  $ 104,915,509    $ 108,017,010  $ 118,099,159  $ 132,043,314  $ 140,838,525  

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 1

Net Assets by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual  basis of  accounting)
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Expenses

Governmental activities:
General Government $ 1,272,397          $ 2,010,560          $ 1,850,188          $ 2,146,164          $ 1,804,748          $ 1,468,585          $ 1,363,363          $ 1,514,171          $ 1,732,952          $ 1,489,673          
Communication 202,328             251,051             281,769             197,594             239,148             103,384             237,495             172,619             182,525             228,767             
Financial Services 553,773             386,988             537,185             491,789             500,859             410,607             390,067             408,181             415,070             462,669             
Planning 1,563,515          764,934             1,517,063          1,631,866          1,519,057          1,459,383          832,999             692,737             418,942             634,801             
Building and Code Enforcement 1,013,931          1,004,945          1,093,928          1,329,797          1,529,473          1,571,357          1,384,537          1,245,028          1,290,115          1,312,615          
Community Redevelopment Agency 1,989,036          1,339,943          3,683,625          2,109,219          2,138,429          929,999             1,589,300          1,377,840          1,176,585          902,534             
Public Works 9,954,700          10,372,337        14,934,702        12,434,825        13,344,477        11,637,771        11,712,138        10,990,729        10,726,522        10,132,482        
Police 9,475,069          9,774,858          10,908,674        11,253,191        12,227,960        11,980,137        12,373,419        12,148,312        12,399,481        12,976,098        
Fire 6,670,946          6,983,343          7,945,790          8,538,773          9,565,096          9,612,269          9,854,608          9,975,455          10,161,440        10,287,339        
Parks and Recreation 6,990,912          14,198,942        6,869,743          7,276,828          11,421,005        7,820,779          6,951,474          6,561,709          6,534,841          7,192,830          
Cultural and Community Services 1,229,110          1,182,810          1,317,620          1,333,210          1,394,350          1,372,698          1,428,712          1,386,212          1,411,212          1,550,212          
Interest on long-term debt 889,228             1,125,839          977,983             1,103,322          1,267,739          1,259,425          1,295,694          1,138,234          1,489,669          1,244,371          

Total government activities expenses 41,804,945        49,396,550        51,918,270        49,846,578        56,952,341        49,626,394        49,413,806        47,611,227        47,939,354        48,414,391        
Business-type activities:

Water & Sewer 19,407,862        19,515,772        21,548,838        22,416,044        23,290,755        24,949,787        25,592,464        24,335,784        24,204,194        24,432,053        
Electric Services -                         359,801             18,560,110        44,085,337        44,014,284        50,356,561        49,404,425        50,901,278        44,740,659        38,509,401        
Golf Course 454,100             469,643             486,355             487,325             577,615             570,832             541,388             588,025             561,269             -                         

Total business-type activities expenses 19,861,962        20,345,216        40,595,303        66,988,706        67,882,654        75,877,180        75,538,277        75,825,087        69,506,122        62,941,454        
Total primary government expenses 61,666,907        69,741,766        92,513,573        116,835,284      124,834,995      125,503,574      124,952,083      123,436,314      117,445,476      111,355,845      

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General Government 68,509               51,577               70,121               1,033                 586                    393                    2,345                 3,085                 7,335 714
Financial Services -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         3,594                 4,140                 4,070                 
Planning -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         183,659             133,124             121,843             178,842             229,527             
Building and Code Enforcement 1,977,519          2,551,030          2,815,501          3,715,945          2,949,176          2,106,266          1,529,856          1,533,642          1,823,890          2,269,925          
Community Redevelopment Agency -                         -                         -                         1,260,000          -                         -                         2,852                 -                         -                         -                         
Public Works 2,936,278          3,039,070          4,540,084          4,630,193          5,490,603          6,011,615          6,059,206          6,593,303          6,228,043          6,383,854          
Police 1,155,525          1,098,346          1,105,870          1,263,319          1,194,632          1,138,641          1,393,257          2,003,645          947,721             1,537,583          
Fire 610,899             448,078             601,035             717,976             536,732             438,501             484,126             581,723             1,138,237          1,228,860          
Parks and Recreation 1,429,993          1,307,696          1,556,582          1,833,783          1,764,300          1,897,517          1,478,041          1,363,730          1,679,346          2,199,513          

Operating Grants and Contributions 474,264             6,985,733          4,877,573          2,551,830          3,104,461          895,225             1,229,626          1,467,727          1,295,306          1,304,045          
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,079,941          601,651             2,519,334          467,100             1,368,819          1,968,406          711,610             918,976             2,039,034          584,322             
Total governmental activities program revenues $ 9,732,928          $ 16,083,181        $ 18,086,100        $ 16,441,179        $ 16,409,309        $ 14,640,223        $ 13,024,043        $ 14,591,268        $ 15,341,894        $ 15,742,413        

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 2

Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual  basis of  accounting)
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Program Revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Water and Sewer $ 19,251,935         $ 19,566,059         $ 22,271,527         $ 24,393,157             $ 25,767,241             $ 24,916,588             $ 25,005,283             $ 25,527,710             $ 26,550,502             $ 27,401,520             
Electric -                         -                         18,018,102         46,394,142             50,026,149             47,832,294             54,230,350             58,044,816             53,033,287             46,033,982             
Golf Course 374,016              367,567              367,585              391,172                  439,282                  490,210                  475,465                  441,180                  431,373                  -                             

Capital Grants and Contributions 444,695              751,176              980,501              934,588                  1,600,635               343,697                  625,364                  1,172,909               1,192,206               429,345                  
Total business-type activities program revenues 20,070,646         20,684,802         41,637,715         72,113,059             77,833,307             73,582,789             80,336,462             85,186,615             81,207,368             73,864,847             
Total Primary government program revenues 29,803,574         36,767,983         59,723,815         88,554,238             94,242,616             88,223,012             93,360,505             99,777,883             96,549,262             89,607,260             

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities (32,072,017)    (33,313,369)    (33,832,170)    (33,405,399)        (40,543,032)        (34,986,171)        (36,389,763)        (33,019,959)        (32,597,460)        (32,671,978)        
Business-type activities 208,684          339,586          1,042,412       5,124,353           9,950,653           (2,294,391)          4,798,185           9,361,528           11,701,246          10,923,393          

Total primary government net expense (31,863,333)       (32,973,783)       (32,789,758)       (28,281,046)           (30,592,379)           (37,280,562)           (31,591,578)           (23,658,431)           (20,896,214)           (21,748,585)           

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:

Taxes
Property Taxes 10,699,839         12,041,352         15,905,663         17,821,063             21,216,954             19,944,397             20,859,393             20,148,018             18,002,304             17,321,497             
Franchise Fees 2,433,024           2,554,285           2,324,108           928,709                  924,327                  946,322                  1,014,864               1,044,072               1,103,636               1,080,258               
Utility Taxes 5,682,672           5,759,664           5,823,510           6,270,492               6,265,881               6,298,905               6,497,752               6,930,742               6,865,087               6,597,923               

Intergovernmental Revenues 4,963,927           5,444,561           5,173,042           4,880,623               4,836,979               4,673,635               4,116,489               4,215,356               4,618,607               4,453,156               
County Occupational Licenses 34,479                -                         -                         -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Investment Earnings 513,261              522,161              168,045              803,264                  1,246,191               767,691                  819,748                  678,723                  518,879                  432,768                  
Miscellaneous Revenue 435,784              368,591              642,193              1,244,978               615,934                  424,015                  445,859                  377,815                  611,673                  871,360                  
Transfer from(to) other funds 1,276,247           4,400,367           2,112,189           3,972,920               3,871,732               5,162,067               4,858,967               5,379,280               3,959,424               4,453,926               

Total government activities 26,039,233         31,090,981         32,148,750         35,922,049             38,977,998             38,217,032             38,613,072             38,774,006             35,679,610             35,210,888             
Business-type activities:

Investment Earnings 741,268              433,630              977,802              1,141,484               1,161,327               599,208                  786,379                  360,215                  443,258                  434,155                  
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,281                  38,270                246,484              2,028                      82,939                    1,042,950               41,525                    96,709                    1,317,402               136,091                  
Transfer from(to) other funds (1,276,247)         (4,400,367)         (2,112,189)         (3,972,920)             (3,871,732)             (5,162,067)             (4,858,967)             (5,379,280)             (3,959,424)             (4,453,926)             

Total business-type activities (533,698)            (3,928,467)         (887,903)            (2,829,408)             (2,627,466)             (3,519,909)             (4,031,063)             (4,922,356)             (2,198,764)             (3,883,680)             
Total primary government 25,505,535         27,162,514         31,260,847         33,092,641             36,350,532             34,697,123             34,582,009             33,851,650             33,480,846             31,327,208             

Change in Net Assets
Government activities (6,032,784)         (2,222,388)         (1,683,420)         2,516,650               (1,565,034)             3,230,861               2,223,309               5,754,047               3,082,150               2,538,910               
Business-type activities (325,014)            (3,588,881)         154,509              2,294,945               7,323,187               (5,814,300)             767,122                  4,439,172               9,502,482               7,039,713               

Total primary government $ (6,357,798)         $ (5,811,269)       $ (1,528,911)       $ 4,811,595             $ 5,758,153             $ (2,583,439)             $ 2,990,431             $ 10,193,219           $ 12,584,632           $ 9,578,623             

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 2 (continued)

Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 (1) 2012
General Fund

Reserved $ 1,166,510           $ 4,472,079            $ 5,481,442             $ 4,970,587             $ 4,444,584             $ 4,174,934             $ 3,737,939             $ 2,880,670             $ -                            $ -                            
Unreserved 4,044,538           2,489,641            1,979,433             3,389,406             1,683,072             2,731,283             4,411,116             6,675,058             -                            -                            
Nonspendable -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            138,209                120,909                
Assigned -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            636,907                584,076                
Unassigned -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            9,553,104             8,953,558             

Total general fund $ 5,211,048           $ 6,961,720            $ 7,460,875           $ 8,359,993           $ 6,127,656           $ 6,906,217             $ 8,149,055           $ 9,555,728           $ 10,328,220         $ 9,658,543            

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 1,584,200           $ 1,515,433            $ 2,959,703             $ 2,048,968             $ 1,942,932             $ 1,686,316             $ 1,043,637             $ 8,898,038             $ -                            $ -                            
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue funds 1,785,413           2,382,772            463,983                6,479,986             6,573,550             7,248,629             6,868,655             7,019,560             -                            -                            
Capital projects funds 1,538,565           2,017,484            1,035,167             4,528,787             1,655,500             3,019,934             3,427,122             3,174,350             -                            -                            

Nonspendable -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            79,291                  69,617                  
Restricted -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            4,581,633             4,252,198             
Committed -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            7,927,259             6,175,563             
Assigned -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            375,172                318,401                
Unassigned -                         -                          -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (139,627)               -                            

Total all other governmental funds $ 4,908,178           $ 5,915,689            $ 4,458,853           $ 13,057,741         $ 10,171,982         $ 11,954,879           $ 11,339,414         $ 19,091,948         $ 12,823,728         $ 10,815,779          

(1)  The City adopted GASB 54 beginning with fiscal year 2011 and has elected to display this change prospectively.
Additional information can be found in Note 1-Q of the financial statements.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
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Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
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2003 20041 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property Taxes $ 10,699,839         $ 12,041,352         $ 15,905,663         $ 18,037,317         $ 21,216,955         $ 19,952,957         $ 21,092,354         $ 20,148,016         $ 17,989,570         $ 17,309,030         
Utility Taxes 5,682,672           5,759,664           5,823,509           6,270,492           6,265,881           6,298,905           6,497,752           6,930,742           6,865,088           6,597,925           

Franchise Fees 2,433,024           2,554,285           2,324,108           928,709              924,327              946,322              1,014,864           1,044,071           1,103,636           1,080,258           
Fines and Forfeitures 742,862              655,883              627,587              710,239              1,024,106           920,829              979,206              1,654,709           674,365              1,219,867           
Licenses and Permits 1,961,966           2,501,447           2,719,197           3,661,781           2,766,065           2,197,365           1,574,789           1,622,739           1,989,469           2,591,654           
Intergovernmental:

Sales Tax 3,164,880           3,490,548           3,794,620           3,867,511           3,863,459           3,761,241           3,314,364           3,415,838           3,623,327           3,610,003           
Local Option Gas Tax 948,620              1,013,292           1,061,409           1,025,448           1,027,780           1,002,879           947,843              958,913              914,851              938,926              
Other Intergovernmental 1,894,731           5,796,031           11,618,151         4,179,938           5,036,468           4,410,283           3,808,474           4,148,071           5,180,264           3,669,472           

Charges for Services 4,770,577           4,646,165           5,243,736           5,567,537           5,595,392           5,990,603           6,333,460           6,785,179           7,500,761           8,227,105           
Other 1,737,290           1,389,916           2,598,964           4,207,829           3,994,395           2,532,683           1,586,820           1,704,225           1,825,512           1,676,089           

Total Revenues 34,036,461         39,848,583         51,716,944         48,456,801         51,714,828         48,014,067         47,149,926         48,412,503         47,666,843         46,920,329         

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Administration 1,014,544           1,810,012           1,533,518           1,858,513           1,810,279           1,499,908           1,535,789           1,645,189           1,840,906           1,706,778           
Communications 202,328              253,983              287,833              199,592              239,148              107,452              183,229              173,357              176,416              170,485              
Financials Services 553,773              440,108              543,235              493,877              506,223              420,670              413,199              370,931              399,555              374,810              
Planning 1,586,835           816,604              2,105,587           2,377,099           2,520,238           2,012,060           1,765,193           1,968,578           1,614,178           1,496,927           
Building and Code Enforcement 1,015,860           1,008,343           1,122,321           1,361,222           1,562,205           1,580,666           1,416,717           1,239,430           1,261,818           1,293,544           
Public Works 5,825,071           7,007,570           8,128,147           8,685,028           10,553,570         8,930,830           8,770,903           8,372,375           8,205,126           8,570,518           
Police 9,466,435           10,013,889         10,883,814         11,262,459         12,417,350         12,348,317         12,732,022         12,922,520         12,815,962         13,085,189         
Fire 6,495,638           7,095,824           8,050,841           8,419,221           9,397,706           9,416,751           9,623,766           9,682,588           9,800,694           10,238,541         
Parks and Recreation 6,265,545           13,290,148         11,803,198         7,860,326           10,863,374         7,884,895           6,517,654           5,954,608           5,993,814           6,737,713           
Organizational Support 1,229,110           1,182,810           1,317,620           1,333,210           1,436,850           1,397,698           1,465,712           1,413,185           1,438,337           1,567,880           

Debt Service:
Principal 1,239,863           782,566              1,245,114           1,203,404           1,638,377           1,762,890           1,931,427           2,608,779           2,182,201           2,940,878           
Interest 1,060,897           1,137,748           977,983              1,103,322           1,317,739           1,259,424           1,250,694           1,385,459           1,553,872           1,253,339           

Capital Improvements 13,444,965         3,017,195           7,260,873           5,096,442           6,941,597           4,623,115           4,367,770           5,030,577           11,996,793         4,940,279           
Total Expenditures 49,400,864         47,856,800         55,260,084         51,253,715         61,204,656         53,244,676         51,974,075         52,767,576         59,279,673         54,376,881         

Deficiency of Revenues
   Over Expenditures (15,364,403)       (8,008,217)         (3,543,140)         (2,796,914)         (9,489,828)         (5,230,609)         (4,824,149)         (4,355,073)         (11,612,830)       (7,456,552)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)
Transfers In 9,314,569           7,615,477           6,316,934           9,112,840           12,278,784         8,752,166           7,943,086           8,481,819           7,627,958           7,939,728           
Transfers Out (7,648,245)         (3,190,618)         (3,731,475)         (5,939,920)         (7,907,052)         (3,190,099)         (2,491,564)         (3,067,539)         (3,163,534)         (3,160,802)         
Issuance of Debt -                          10,083,189         -                          9,122,000           -                          2,230,000           -                          8,100,000           7,207,770           -                          
Pmt to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          (7,625,000)         -                          
Capital Lease Obligation -                          (3,741,648)         -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          1,725,656           -                          

Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 1,666,324           10,766,400         2,585,459           12,294,920         4,371,732           7,792,067           5,451,522           13,514,280         5,772,850           4,778,926           

Net Change in Fund Balances (13,698,079)       2,758,183           (957,681)            9,498,006           (5,118,096)         2,561,458           627,373              9,159,207           (5,839,980)         (2,677,626)         

Fund Balances - Beginning, as Restated 23,817,305         10,119,226         12,877,409         11,919,728         21,417,734         16,299,638         18,861,096         19,488,469         28,991,928         23,151,948         

Fund Balances - Ending $ 10,119,226         $ 12,877,409       $ 11,919,728       $ 21,417,734       $ 16,299,638       $ 18,861,096         $ 19,488,469       $ 28,647,677       $ 23,151,948       $ 20,474,322       

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures 5.70% 4.16% 4.47% 4.85% 5.30% 6.23% 6.55% 8.69% 8.03% 8.54%

1    For FY 2004 increase in Intergovernmental Revenue is due to Hurricanes and FEMA funds received.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 5

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

                                                      
Fiscal Assessed 
Year Centrally Less: Tax Total Taxable Total Estimated Value(1) as a

Ended Real Personal Assessed Exempt Assessed Direct Tax Actual Percentage of
Sept. 30, Property Property Property Property Value Rate Value Actual Value

2003 $ 2,339,276,932 $ 178,955,337 $ 1,043,636  $ N/A $ 2,519,275,905  4.1340       $ 3,392,829,376   74.25%

2004 3,639,417,177 259,030,726 1,567,854  1,061,176,362    2,838,839,395  4.1340       4,754,200,077   59.71%

2005 3,885,288,338 267,935,609 1,762,638  1,095,745,377    3,059,241,208  5.0900       5,059,845,747   60.46%

2006 4,426,794,057 257,145,724 1,082,823  1,285,628,264    3,399,394,340  5.0900       5,676,613,511   59.88%

2007 5,381,449,024 255,814,961 1,232,368  1,653,577,239    3,984,919,114  5.0900       6,797,466,978   58.62%

2008 6,092,025,651 270,877,113 459,411     1,911,127,287    4,452,234,888  4.3073       7,660,052,254   58.12%

2009 6,167,795,263 266,018,186 1,383,948  1,937,693,755    4,497,503,642  4.3858       7,741,283,098   58.10%

2010 5,767,510,307 253,659,029 1,483,032  1,687,749,821    4,334,902,547  4.3980       7,247,987,510   59.81%

2011 5,023,964,968 237,399,202 1,241,100  1,354,442,999    3,908,162,271  4.4336       6,343,423,034   61.61%

2012 4,508,441,021 241,139,877 1,281,825  973,409,547       3,777,453,176  4.4166       5,743,766,225   65.77%

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser (Revised Recapitulation of the Ad Valorem Assessment Rolls, DR-403AM and DR-403V)

Note: Assessed values are determined as of January 1 for each fiscal year.
Real Property is assessed at 85% of estimated market value and Personal Property assessment at 55%. 
Estimated actual taxable value is calculated by dividing assessed value by those percentages.
Centrally assessed property consists of the railroad lines which are assessed by the State of Florida.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 6

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
(rate per $1,000 of assessed value)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Orange St. Johns Total 
Year City City Total County Water Direct and

Ended Tax Operating Debt City Orange School Management Overlapping
Sept. 30, Roll Millage Service Millage County Board District Millage

2003 2002 3.4900         0.6440          4.1340         5.1639          7.8780           0.4620           17.6379         

2004 2003 3.6540         0.4800          4.1340         5.1639          7.8880           0.4620           17.6479         

2005 2004 4.6540         0.4360          5.0900         5.1639          7.5400           0.4620           18.2559         

2006 2005 4.6980         0.3920          5.0900         5.1639          7.7610           0.4620           18.4769         

2007 2006 4.7580         0.3320          5.0900         5.1639          7.1690           0.4620           17.8849         

2008 2007 3.9950         0.3123          4.3073         4.4347          7.1210           0.4158           16.2788         

2009 2008 4.0923         0.2935          4.3858         4.4347          7.1500           0.4158           16.3863         

2010 2009 4.0923         0.3057          4.3980         4.4347          7.6730           0.4158           16.9215         

2011 2010 4.0923         0.3413          4.4336         4.4347          7.8940           0.4158           17.1781         

2012 2011 4.0923         0.3243          4.4166         4.4347          8.5450           0.3313           17.7276         

Source: Orange County Property Appraiser's Office

Direct Overlapping
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 7

Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Winter Park Town Center, LTD (Winter Park Village) Shopping Mall 39,183,345$          1 1.00% $ 41,195,882           1 1.64%

Rollins College Education 23,212,258            2 0.59% 16,449,808           5 0.65%

Proteggere LLC Real Estate Developer 18,601,221            3 0.48%

BFC Park Avenue LLC - Bk of America (250 Park Av) Trustee 14,309,508            4 0.37% 8,623,418             10 0.34%

Elizabeth Morse Genius Foundation Foundation 13,296,940            5 0.34%

Presbyterian Retirement Communities Inc Retirement Community 12,698,467            6 0.32% 9,920,587             7 0.39%

CD90 Mercantile Plaza LTD - Mercantile Bank Plaza Shopping Mall 11,832,351            7 0.30%

Mayflower Retirement Center  Inc Retirement Community 11,573,294            8 0.30% 18,153,304           3 0.72%

Winter Park Village Apts LLC Developer 10,161,653            9 0.26%

Winter Park Redevelopment Agency LTD Developer 9,516,398              10 0.24%

Holler, Roger W. Jr Estate 16,597,454           4 0.66%

DLJ-EWP LP/DLJ Real Estate Capital Partners Real Estate Developer 18,996,500           2 0.75%

Jenkins Williams Griffith (Aloma Shopping Center) Shopping Mall 8,741,597             9 0.35%

KMCDCI Venture K Mart 10,282,202           6 0.41%

Sprint United Management Co Telephone carrier 9,009,813             8 0.36%

Other Taxpayers - 3,743,776,836       - 95.79% 2,361,305,340      -               93.73%

3,908,162,271$     100.00% 2,519,275,905$    100.00%

Source:  Orange County Property Appraiser's Office

2012 2003
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Fiscal
Year Tax Levied Collections

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Sept. 30, Fiscal Year(1) Amount (2) of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2003 $ 10,414,687       $ 10,105,507       97.0% $ 89,690              $ 10,195,197       97.9%

2004 11,735,762       11,345,540       96.7% 74,586              11,420,126       97.3%

2005 15,550,041       15,114,883       97.2% 39,580              15,154,463       97.5%

2006 17,302,917       17,040,486       98.5% 34,341              17,074,827       98.7%

2007 20,283,238       19,873,611       98.0% 23,126              19,896,737       98.1%

2008 19,177,111       18,463,803       96.3% 49,710              18,513,513       96.5%

2009 19,725,151       19,331,226       98.0% 49,588              19,380,814       98.3%

2010 19,064,901       18,456,523       96.8% 43,654              18,500,177       97.0%

2011 17,327,228       16,758,247       96.7% 32,927              16,791,174       96.9%

2012 16,683,500       16,170,799       96.9% 51,216              16,222,015       97.2%

Source: Orange County Tax Collector and City of Winter Park Finance Department

Notes: (1) Gross Taxes before discounts
(2) Excludes Orange County's share of tax increment revenue for the Community Redevelopment Area (CRA)
   Special Revenue Fund. Tax increment revenue from the County for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012

           was $ 1,087,015.

Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Collected within the

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 8

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 9

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Fiscal Water &
Year General Capital Capital Wastewater Electric Percentage of

Ended Obligation Improvement Lease Notes Revenue Revenue Total Personal Per
Sept. 30 Bond Bonds Obligations Payable Bonds Bonds Government Income Capita

2003 14,845,000       3,755,000         124,457            139,727            26,435,000                -                        45,299,184                N/A 1,716          

2004 14,355,000       9,710,000         12,241              290,074            65,075,000                5,000,000          94,442,315                N/A 3,513          

2005 13,630,000       3,470,000         -                       6,016,808         64,100,000                53,800,000        141,016,808              N/A 5,060          

2006 12,885,000       13,717,000       325,147            4,433,405         63,095,000                53,225,000        147,680,552              N/A 5,160          

2007 12,120,000       13,210,077       283,169            4,016,951         62,060,000                52,890,000        144,580,197              10.36% 5,075          

2008 11,330,000       12,622,710       239,593            5,861,428         60,990,000                70,760,000        161,803,731              13.78% 5,595          

2009 10,520,000       12,015,762       198,194            5,391,949         78,895,000                80,010,000        187,030,905              14.65% 6,544          

2010 9,685,000         7,273,009         832,583            16,828,984       77,745,000                79,530,000        191,894,576              12.92% 6,749          

2011 8,700,000         6,574,083         2,178,392         16,037,117       78,435,000                78,145,000        190,069,592              11.08% 6,855          

2012 7,760,000         5,864,631         1,713,181         15,164,883       75,155,000                76,525,000        182,182,695              10.57% 6,570.35     

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financials statements.
See Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.

.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 10

Ratios of General Obligation Bonds Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Actual Taxable

Ended Obligation Value of Per
Sept. 30, Bonds Property Capita

2003 14,845,000       0.44% 562                   

2004 14,355,000       0.30% 534                   

2005 13,630,000       0.27% 489                   

2006 12,885,000       0.23% 450                   

2007 12,120,000       0.18% 425                   

2008 11,330,000       0.15% 392                   

2009 10,520,000       0.14% 368                   

2010 9,685,000         0.13% 341                   

2011 8,700,000         0.14% 314                   

2012 7,760,000         0.14% 280                   

Source: City of Winter Park Finance Department

Note: There is no overlapping general obligaton debt for
 which the City's property taxpayers are responsible.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 11

Legal Debt Margin Information

There are no limitations placed upon the amount of debt the City may issue by either the City's Charter or 
code of ordinances or by the Florida State Statutes.

The City's Charter does require voter referendum for the following categories of bonds:

* General obligation bonds.

* Revenue bonds intended to finance enterprises or projects which involve the purchase, lease and/or acquisition of 
real property.

* Revenue bonds which pledge specific non-ad valorem taxes as the primary source(s) of revenue to pay the principal 
and interest which have a principal value in excess of one million dollars.

This dollar limitation is adjusted annually as of the end of the fiscal year in accordance with changes in the cost-of-living index 
as published by the federal government.

The limitation, as adjusted, at September 30, 2012 is $2,286,630

However, notwithstanding the foregoing in the second and third items above, voter referendum shall not be required prior to the 
issuance of revenue bonds which finance the purchase, lease and/or acquisition of park real property and/or park projects by the City.
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The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 12

Community Redevelopment Agency
Tax Increment Revenue Bonds Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Tax

Ended Increment
Sept. 30, Revenue(1) Principal Interest Total Coverage

2003 $ 846,861         $ -                   $ 5,942           $ 5,942            142.52              

2004 1,061,066      20,000          143,937       163,937        6.47                  

2005 1,428,223      225,000        235,110       460,110        3.10                  

2006 1,838,142      235,000        293,918       528,918        3.48                  

2007 2,536,662      351,924        416,460       768,384        3.30                  

2008 2,736,168      422,366        419,331       841,697        3.25                  

2009 3,283,329      436,948        400,498       837,446        3.92                  

2010 3,172,003      456,778        517,908       974,686        3.25                  

2011 2,309,577      791,868        718,129       1,509,997     1.53                  

2012 2,090,103      872,234        683,013       1,555,247     1.34                  

Notes:

Debt Service Requirements

(1) Tax Increment Revenue Notes are backed by the property tax revenue produced by 
the property tax rate of the City of Winter Park and Orange County applied to the 
increase in the taxable assessed values above the base year taxable assessed value 
multiplied by 95%.
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Fiscal Less: Net Pledge
Year Operation and Revenue

Ended Gross Maintenance Available for
Sept. 30, Revenue Expense Debt Services Principal Interest Total Coverage

2003 $ 19,851,316        $ 15,541,546        $ 4,309,770          $ 1,365,000          $ 1,236,061          $ 2,601,061          1.66                   

2004 19,917,648        15,514,028        4,403,620          1,435,000          1,363,852          2,798,852          1.57                   

2005 23,373,807        16,695,487        6,678,320          975,000             2,993,007          3,968,007          1.68                   

2006 25,590,718        16,171,084        9,419,634          1,005,000          2,982,031          3,987,031          2.36                   

2007 27,221,990        17,160,641        10,061,349        1,035,000          2,980,168          4,015,168          2.51                   

2008 25,589,426        18,520,255        7,069,171          1,070,000          3,657,461          4,727,461          1.50                   

2009 25,441,139        18,534,852        6,906,287          1,105,000          3,214,962          4,319,962          1.60                   

2010 25,807,742        16,546,462        9,261,280          1,150,000          2,563,648          3,713,648          2.49                   

2011 26,847,541        16,109,450        10,738,091        2,410,000          3,284,962          5,694,962          1.89                   

2012 27,684,531        16,655,358        11,029,173        2,495,000          3,150,076          5,645,076          1.95                   

Notes: 1 Schedule includes debt service requirements for Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1996, 2004, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

The bonds and interest due thereon are payable from and secured by a prior lien upon a pledge of the net revenues
derived by the City from the operation of the Water and Suburban Sewer System.

2 Gross Revenues are defined by the bond covenants as all income and earnings derived by the City from the ownership, 
operation, leasing, or use of the system and investment income, excluding impact fees and interest earned thereon.

3 Operation and maintenance expenses are defined as the cost of operation and maintenance as defined by the
bond covenant, as current expenses, paid or accrued, less depreciation and amortization expenses.

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Debt Service Requirements

The City of Winter Park, Florida

Pledge Revenue Coverage
Water and Sewer Revenue Debt Coverage

Table 13
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Fiscal Less: Net Pledge
Year Operation and Revenue

Ended Gross Maintenance Available for
Sept. 30, Revenue Expense Debt Services Principal Interest Total Coverage

2003 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2004 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2005 17,938,691       16,992,314       946,377            -                        935,796            935,796            1.01                  

2006 46,257,013       39,437,417       6,819,596         -                        2,673,160         2,673,160         2.55                  

2007 49,694,293       39,067,324       10,626,969       575,000            2,629,729         3,204,729         3.32                  

2008 47,901,111       44,365,015       3,536,096         600,000            4,228,044         4,828,044         0.73                  

2009 54,774,922       44,042,317       10,732,605       625,000            3,350,348         3,975,348         2.70                  

2010 57,655,512       45,345,525       12,309,987       480,000            2,057,171         2,537,171         4.85                  

2011 53,560,437       38,783,305       14,777,132       1,430,000         2,680,183         4,110,183         3.60                  

2012 45,725,647       32,285,000       13,440,647       1,620,000         2,747,512         4,367,512         3.08                  

Notes: 1 Schedule includes debt service requirements for Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A, 2005B, 2007, 2009A, 2009B and 2010.

The bonds and interest due thereon are payable from and secured by a prior lien upon a pledge of the net revenues
derived by the City from the operation of the Electric System.

2 Gross Revenues are defined by the bond covenants as all income and earnings derived by the City from the ownership, 
operation, leasing, or use of the system and investment income, excluding capital expansion and system improvement grants.

3 Operation and maintenance expenses are defined as the cost of operation and maintenance as defined by the
bond covenant, as current expenses, paid or accrued, less depreciation and amortization expenses.

4 Pledge revenues are defined as gross revenues less operation and maintenance expense.

5 N/A:  Information before 2005 is not applicable since Electric Operations started in June 2005.

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Debt Service Requirements

The City of Winter Park, Florida

Electric Services Revenue Debt Coverage
Table 14
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City City Per Orange County
Orange Personal Capita Per Capita Orlando-

City County Income Personal Personal High School College City of Kissimmee Orange
Year Population Population1 (Thousand) Income Income Graduates Graduates Winter Park MSA County Florida

2003 26,401         983,165              N/A N/A 27,643                N/A N/A 2.7                  5.2                5.2                5.3                

2004 26,880         1,013,937           N/A N/A 29,042                N/A N/A 2.4                  4.4                4.5                4.7                

2005 27,868         1,043,437           N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 3.0                  3.5                3.6                3.8                

2006 28,620         1,079,524           N/A 48,449                N/A 3,432                11,992              2.6                  3.1                3.1                3.3                

2007 28,486         1,105,603           1,396,099           49,010                23,963                3,358                14,249              2.9                  4.1                4.1                4.4                

2008 28,921         1,114,979           1,174,135           40,598                23,776                2,686                8,033                5.0                  6.5                6.4                6.9                

2009 28,581         1,108,882           1,276,713           44,670                25,560                2,582                8,935                8.5                  11.6              11.5              11.3              

2010 28,434         1,145,956           1,485,193           52,233                28,117                3,071                10,368              9.1                  11.8 11.8 12.1

2011 27,727         1,157,342           1,715,109           61,857                39,394                3,429                14,154              7.9                  10.2 10.1 10.6

2012 27,728         1,175,941           1,722,768           62,131                52,624                3,419                12,136              6.9                  8.5                8.4                8.6                

Sources: Information provided by BEBR, Metro Orlando EDC and the Community Redevelopment Agency.

Unemployment rate from State of Florida, Department of Labor and Employment Security, Bureau of Labor Market Information.
(http:www.labormarketinfo.com) Statistical Programs\ LAUS-Local Area Unemployment Statistics\Get detailed Statistics\Monthly
Data Table per year (includes city estimate)

Notes: N/A - Information is not available.
1 Population for Orange County was  revised with Orange County Comptroller CAFR Statistical Section, Metro Orlando EDC & BEBR.

Unemployment Rate
City Education

The City of Winter Park, Florida

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 15
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Percentage
City of Total City

Employer Type of Business Employees Rank Employment

Florida Hospital Winter Park Health 1,579                1 11.33%
Rollins College Education 645                   2 4.63%
Orange County Schools1 Education 639                   3 4.59%
City of Winter Park Government 520                   4 3.73%
Publix1 Food Retailer/Supermarket chain 455                   5 3.26%
Bonnier1 Multi Platform media company 406                   6 2.91%

Other Employers2 Various 9,690                69.54%

Total Labor Force2 13,934              100.00%

Sources: Labor Force from State of Florida, Department of Labor and Employment Security, Bureau of Labor Market Information.
(http:www.labormarketinfo.com) Statistical Programs\ LAUS-Local Area Unemployment Statistics\get detailed statistics\Monthly Data Table per year,
Metro Orlando EDC.

1 Estimates based on 2011 actuals.
2  Total Labor Force methodology at Winter Park was changed back from previous year using the Local Unemployment Statistics - LAUS
     as our primary source.

Note:  Employment data for previous years was not available.

Table 16
The City of Winter Park, Florida

2012

Principal Employers
Current Fiscal Year
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Function/Program

General Government
City Commission -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
City Manager 4                       4                       4                       4                       4                       4                       3                       3                       3                       3                       
City Clerk 2                       2                       2                       2                       2                       2                       2                       2                       2                       2                       
Communications 3                       3                       4                       4                       4                       4                       3.5                    3.5                    3.5                    3.5                    
Human Resources 3                       3                       3                       3                       4                       4                       4                       4                       4                       4                       
Purchasing 4                       4                       4                       4                       4                       4                       3                       3                       3                       3                       
Information Technology Services -                        7                       7                       7                       7                       7                       7.5                    7.5                    7.5                    7.5                    
Finance 9                       9                       9                       9                       10                     10                     9                       9                       9                       9                       

Police 117                   123                   120                   120                   120                   120                   118                   115                   115                   114                   

Fire 68                     72                     72                     73                     73                     74                     74                     77                     77                     76                     
Public Works 47                     47                     41                     36                     36                     36                     34                     34                     35                     35                     
Planning/Building & Code Enforcement 22                     23                     23                     24                     26                     26                     22                     18                     20                     20                     
Parks/Recreation 82                     82                     83                     85                     85                     85                     74                     72                     74                     77                     

Subtotal for General Fund 361                   379                   372                   371                   375                   376                   354                   348                   353                   354                   

Special Revenue
Stormwater Utility 21                     21                     21                     25                     27                     27                     21                     21                     21                     22                     
Community Redevelopment 3                       3                       3                       3                       4                       3                       5                       4                       3                       3                       

Subtotal for Special Revenue 24                     24                     24                     28                     31                     30                     26                     25                     24                     25                     

Business-Type
Water/Sewer Service 129                   129                   129                   132                   137                   138                   134                   131                   125                   125                   
Electric Service -                        -                        1                       3                       4                       4                       4                       4                       3                       3                       
Golf Course 5                       5                       5                       5                       6                       6                       6                       6                       6                       -                        

Subtotal for Business-Type 134                   134                   135                   140                   147                   148                   144                   141                   134                   128                   

Internal Service
Fleet 12                     12                     12                     12                     13                     13                     13                     12                     12                     12                     
Information Technology Services 7                       - - - -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
General Insurance 1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       1                       

Subtotal for Internal Services 20                     13                     13                     13                     14                     14                     14                     13                     13                     13                     

Total 539                  550                 544                 552                 567                  568                  538                 527                 524                 520                  

Source: City Annual Budget

Full-time authorized Employees as of September 30,

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 17

Full-Time Authorized City Government Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Function
Police(1)

Calls for Services 82,950              (1)  87,863              (1)  91,013              (1)  77,761              (1)  87,401              (1)  81,256              (1)  76,578              (1)  69,792              (1)  73,126              (1)  62,214              
Average Response times N/A 1:54 1:59 1:59 2:05 2:27 2:18 2:16 2:17 2:32
Felony & misdemeanor arrests 1,170                1,030                1,275                1,611                1,496                1,295                1,331                928                   519                   942                   
Traffic accidents and citations 9,726                14,553              13,922              12,311              13,804              14,297              14,364              12,716              10,059              10,347              

Fire (2)

All Priority 1 EMS-Responses at 90% Performance (Minutes) N/A N/A N/A N/A 8:56 8:58 8:36 8:36 8:25 8:25
All Priority 1 EMD-Responses at 90% Performance (Minutes) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 8:36 8:25 8:25
All Moderate structures-Fires Response Force at 90%  (Minutes) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11:24 11:24 11:24
All High-Risk structures-Fires Response Force at 90%  (Minutes) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 20:00 20:00 20:00

Public Works
Traffic Control

New signs made/installed N/A 250                   342                   560                   731                   1,022                1,802                1,989                532                   427                   
Signs repaired N/A 130                   162                   150                   148                   191                   295                   515                   160                   199                   

Environmental Protection
Linear feet of new pipe installed N/A 3,267                2,108                2,500                1,132                2,869                2,495                2,086                1,008                2,074                
Linear feet of damaged pipe replaced N/A 340                   333                   300                   184                   163                   140                   136                   215                   230                   
Standard inlets installed N/A 32                     35                     20                     15                     28                     20                     40                     15                     12                     
Street sweepers (miles per week) 163                   267                   140                   157                   161                   162                   130                   130                   130                   130                   
Leaves removed and hauled (tons) N/A 930                   1,020                1,160                1,469                2,035                1,462                1,750                2,700                2,700                

Fleet
Percent of entire fleet availability 98.60% 98.70% 99.20% 99.04% 99.15% 99.21% 99.37% 99.11% 99.20% 99.26%
Preventive maintenance completed 1,410                1,477                1,866                1,859                1,698                1,741                1,484 1,259 1,672 1,171

Building and Code Enforcement
Permits issued 4,300                4,421                5,076                6,121                5,490                4,242                3,417                4,351                3,684                3,700                
Construction value of permits issued (millions) $ 93                     $ 112                   $ 145                   $ 195                   $ 123 $ 98 $ 65 $ 188 $ 176 $ 221                   

Parks and Recreation
Youth Programs:

Average hours of field use (hrs) 398                   423                   450                   460                   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,000                
Average hours of field use for Summer Sport Camps (hrs) 3                       12                     12                     13                     N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Recreation facilities events per month N/A N/A 95                     105                   95 95 128 90 90 179

Source: Various City departments.

Notes:
(1)  Provided for calendar year.
(2) New Performance measure indicators adopted by City Commission in December 2010.
N/A - Information is not available.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 18

Operating Indicators by Function/ Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12
Commercial:

Inside 1,715                     1,692                     1,719                     1,680                     1,692                     
Outside 1,196                     1,173                     1,254                     1,171                     1,146                     

Multi-Dwelling:
Inside 359                        355                        357                        349                        347                        
Outside 593                        587                        593                        584                        586                        

Public Authority:
Inside 222                        224                        224                        215                        218                        
Outside 50                          51                          55                          54                          53                          

Residential:
Inside 10,799                   10,741                   10,705                   10,668                   10,702                   
Outside 8,570                     8,504                     8,561                     8,512                     8,541                     

Total Inside 13,095                   13,012                   13,005                   12,912                   12,959                   
Total Outside 10,409                   10,315                   10,463                   10,321                   10,326                   

Total Customers 23,504                 23,327                 23,468                  23,233                  23,285                 

Inside City Limits
Rollins College 35,263                   
Adventist Health Systems (Winter Park Hospital) 29,328                   
Winter Park Towers 22,355                   
Winter Park Town Center, LTD 14,789                   
City of Winter Park 14,422                   
Orange County 13,426                   
The Mayflower 12,548                   
Four Seasons Condo 9,420                     
Waterfall Cove at Winter Park 7,986                     
Frenchmen's Cove Apartments 7,582                     
Regents Park of Winter Park 6,710                     
The Meadows 6,351                     
Total Inside 180,180               

Outside City Limits
Orange County Sewer & Water 69,900                   
ZMG Property Mgmt Division LLC 23,769                   
VIII Sun Key Apts, LLC 21,215                   
BVF/APTCO Winter Park/Empirian Bay, LLC 19,904                   
Picerne Development Corp 17,648                   
Summerwalk Partners LLC 16,328                   
WP 436 Aparments 14,862                   
Hidden Oaks Condo 14,058                   
Nob Hill Apts 13,799                   
Azure Winter Park 13,567                   
JRK Florida 13,354                   
Equity Residential Properties 11,967                   
Whisper Lake Apt 11,573                   
Winter Park Villas Group, LLC 11,353                   
Total Outside 273,297               

Total Consumption of Largest Users (Inside and Outside) 453,477               

MAJOR WATER AND SEWER USERS
(CONSUMPTION = 1,000 GALLONS)

Table 19

NUMBER OF WATER SYSTEM CUSTOMERS

 City of Winter Park, Florida

Water & Sewer-Customers
September 30, 2012

Supplemental Operating Indicators for:
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 City of Winter Park, Florida

Water & Sewer Operation-Usage
September 30, 2012

ANNUAL WATER  USAGE (thousands of gallons)
07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12

Commercial:
Inside 565,431                  482,064                  447,019                  474,680                  497,614                  
Outside 431,177                  411,329                  364,375                  369,323                  372,445                  

Multi-Dwelling:
Inside 150,294                  142,725                  133,140                  137,326                  140,486                  
Outside 431,576                  402,206                  387,960                  391,472                  414,817                  

Public Authority:
Inside 89,407                    89,144                    77,034                    79,811                    181,129                  
Outside 11,861                    8,824                      6,798                      8,232                      11,913                    

Residential:
Inside 1,415,378               1,022,428               1,218,845               1,383,608               1,367,466               
Outside 699,442                  654,231                  611,227                  646,218                  617,308                  

Total Inside 2,220,510               1,736,361               1,876,038               2,075,425               2,186,695               
Total Outside 1,574,056               1,476,590               1,370,360               1,415,245               1,416,483               

Total Consumption 3,794,566               3,212,951               3,246,398               3,490,670               3,603,178               

ANNUAL SEWER USAGE (thousands of gallons)
07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12

Commercial:
Inside 290,746                  260,345                  256,021                  258,306                  268,598                  
Outside 238,398                  226,896                  200,757                  199,697                  206,816                  

Multi-Dwelling:
Inside 132,265                  121,577                  117,109                  119,375                  122,041                  
Outside 353,277                  326,650                  327,662                  328,943                  381,908                  

Public Authority:
Inside 22,081                    20,900                    24,665                    21,834                    22,214                    
Outside 3,636                      4,308                      3,901                      4,855                      4,673                      

Residential:
Inside 526,526                  521,569                  532,186                  554,006                  555,785                  
Outside 319,235                  307,640                  299,250                  309,782                  264,088                  

Total Inside 971,618                  924,391                  929,981                  953,521                  968,638                  
Total Outside 914,546                  865,494                  831,570                  843,277                  857,485                  

Total Consumption 1,886,164               1,789,885               1,761,551               1,796,798               1,826,123               

Supplemental Operating Indicators for:
Table 20
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 City of Winter Park, Florida

Inside the City Limits
Water

(Commercial/
Water Public Water

(Residential) Authority) (Irrigation) Sewer
Rates per 1,000 gallons of consumption

Block 1 $ 1.01                $ 1.01                  2.13                  $ 4.95                    
Block 2 1.50                1.50                  2.86                  4.95                    
Block 3 2.13                2.13                  3.66                  4.95                    
Block 4 2.86                2.86                  5.30                  4.95                    
Block 5 3.66                3.66                  5.30                  4.95                    
Block 6 5.30                3.66                  5.30                  4.95                    
Base ERM Charge 8.62                8.62                  8.62                  10.19                  
Additional Unit Charge 4.64                4.64                  4.64                  5.48                    

Outside the City Limits
Water

(Commercial/
Water Public Water

(Residential) Authority) (Irrigation) Sewer
Rates per 1,000 gallons of consumption

Block 1 $ 1.26                $ 1.26                  $ 2.66                  $ 6.19                    
Block 2 1.88                1.88                  3.58                  6.19                    
Block 3 2.66                2.66                  4.57                  6.19                    
Block 4 3.58                3.58                  6.63                  6.19                    
Block 5 4.57                4.57                  6.63                  6.19                    
Block 6 6.63                4.57                  6.63                  6.19                    
Base ERM Charge 10.78               10.78                10.78                12.73                  
Additional Unit Charge 5.80                5.80                  5.80                  6.85                    

ERM = Equivalent Residential Meter

Sewer charges are capped for residential customers without separate irrigation meters at 
14,000 gallons.

Notes:
(1)      Rates on this table became effective Dec 12, 2012.

Table 21
Water and Sewer Rates, Fees and Charges

September 30, 2012
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 City of Winter Park, Florida

Bills for water, sewer and irrigation service are determined using applicable rates in the table 21 
and the block sizes in the table below based on customer class and meter size.

Block Structure Price Breaks by Meter Size:

Meter
Size
in

Inches
3/4
1

1 1/2
2
3
4
6
8

10

Notes:
(1)             Rates on this table became effective Dec 12, 2012.

4 8 12 12

Irrigation Water Block Structure

Usage Up To Usage               Over:

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

Block 6

4 8 12 16 20 20

Block 1 Block 2 Block 3 Block 4 Block 5

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

  1,000           
(gallons/month)        

60                                 
96                                 

192                               
25 100                               200                               

2 1/2 10                                 

Usage Up To

Residential Water Block Structure
Usage                
Over:

1,000                            
80 320                               640                               960                               1,600                            1,600                            

500                               

115 460                               920                               2,300                            

300                               

1,380                            

8 32                                 64                                 160                               
16 64                                 128                               320                               320                               

500                               

2,300                            

50 200                               400                               600                               1,000                            

160                               

20                                 50                                 
5 20                                 40                                 100                               

(1,000
Ratio gallons/month) gallons/month) gallons/month)

1 4                                   8                                   20                                 

(1,000 (1,000
gallons/month)

20                                 
50                                 

100                               

gallons/month)
12                                 
30                                 

Equivalent
Meter (1,000 (1,000

Block 1 Block 2 Block 5Block 3 Block 4

Table 21 (continued)
Water and Sewer Rates, Fees and Charges

September 30, 2012

Usage Up To:
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 City of Winter Park, Florida

Table 22
Supplemental Operating Indicators

for Electric Operations
September 30, 2012

ELECTRIC SYSTEM CUSTOMERS AND USAGE

# Customers Killowatt Hours # Customers Killowatt Hours # Customers Killowatt Hours # Customers Killowatt Hours # Customers Killowatt Hours
Commercial: 2,198 226,274,226 2,343 214,119,612 2,374 214,827,096 2,165 212,212,990 2,329 213,918,639

Public Authority: 263 25,457,650 289 25,774,332 287 24,770,922 286 22,100,333 284 24,338,908

Residential: 11,484 188,394,378 11,496 187,143,449 11,464 199,406,133 11,413 191,429,281 11,648 177,778,338

Total Customers 13,945                440,126,254 14,128              427,037,393 14,125              439,004,151 13,864              425,742,604 14,261              416,035,885

Killowatt Hours 
Adventist Health Systems (FL Hospital) 22,977,713         
Rollins College 22,050,494         
City of Winter Park 12,153,788         
Orange County Schools 10,603,339         
Publix Super Markets 8,509,061           
Embarq Florida Inc 7,960,894           
Mayflower Retirement Center, Inc 6,247,883           
Prebysterian Retirement Center 5,135,913           
250 Park Avenue Trustee, Inc 3,531,181           
Charles H, Elizabeth Morse Genius 2,729,496           
CD90 Mercantile Plaza LTD 1,985,212           
Whole Foods Market Group. Inc 1,949,894           
Regal Cinemas Inc, DIP 1,881,200           
The Chessecake Factory 1,643,560           
K Mart Corporation 1,597,902           
Rotech Medichal Corporation 1,589,500           
Orthopaedic Clinic PA 1,561,090           
Winter Park Towne Center 1,419,486           
Total Consumption of Largest Users 115,527,606     

11-12

MAJOR ELECTRIC USERS

07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11
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Residential Rates
$ 9.35            per month
$ 0.064850    per kWh
$ 0.076500    per kWh
$ 0.025990    per kWh

Fuel Cost Recovery Factor, all kWh above 1,000 $ 0.035990    per kWh
$ 0.025641    
$ 0.060000    
$ 0.100000    

Service Charges
$ 61.00          
$ 28.00          

$           40.00 
$ 55.00          
$           25.00  or 5% of the 

check 
amount, 

whichever is 
greater 

$ 10.00          

Lighting Service (LS)

 Depends 
upon fixture 

type 

$             3.49  per month 
$ 1.22            per month

Energy and Demand Charge $ 0.023490    per kWh
Fuel Cost Recovery Factor $ 0.037190    per kWh

$ 0.025641    
$ 0.060000    
$ 0.100000    

Notes
(1) Rates changes are effective few times during the fiscal year.
(2) Rates on this table became effective April 1, 2012.

Franchise Fee
Electric Utility Tax

Customer charges (per line of billing):
    Metered Accounts 
   Non Metered Accounts

Gross Receipts Tax

Fixture and Maintenance Charge

Table 23

Customer charge
1st 1,000 kWh
All kWh above 1,000
Fuel Cost Recovery Factor, 1st 1,000 kWh

Gross Receipts Tax
Franchise Fee
Electric Utility Tax

Opening an account at a new service location
Reconnect service
 Reconnect service after a disconnection for nonpayment or violation of 
a rule or regulation 
Reconnection after normal business hours
Dishonored check

Subsequent Re-establishment of service

 City of Winter Park, Florida

Residential Electric Service Rates, Fees and Charges
 September 30, 2012

 

This service is available from dusk to dawn with various automatically controlled light fixtures 
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 City of Winter Park, Florida

General Service Electric Rates, Fees and Charges
 September 30, 2012

Non-Demand (GS, GP)  
Rates will also apply to Temporary Service (TS)

$ 6.96          per month

$ 12.34        per month
$ 156.08      per month

$ 0.065520  per kWh
$ 0.037190  per kWh
$ 0.025641  
$ 0.060000  

Electric Utility Tax $ 0.100000  
Electric State Sales Tax $ 0.070000  Commercial Only

$ 0.005000  Commercial Only

Non-Demand (100% Load Factor Usage (GS-1; GS-2)  
(For customers with fixed wattage loads operating continuously throughout the billing period)

$ 7.26          per month
$ 12.88        per month
$ 0.033090  per kWh
$ 0.037190  per kWh
$ 0.025641  
$ 0.060000  

Electric Utility Tax $ 0.100000  
Electric State Sales Tax $ 0.070000  Commercial Only

$ 0.005000  Commercial Only

Demand (GSD-1)  
Rates will also apply to Temporary Service (TS)

Applicable to any customer other than residential with a measurable annual kWh consumption of 24,000 kWh or greater per 

$ 12.82        per month
$ 162.19      per month
$ 4.480000  per kWh

Energy Charge $ 0.037380  per kWh
$ 0.037190  per kWh
$ 0.025641  
$ 0.060000  

Electric Utility Tax $ 0.100000  
Electric State Sales Tax $ 0.070000  Commercial Only

$ 0.005000  Commercial Only

Lighting Service (LS)

 Depends upon 

$            3.49  per month 
$ 1.22          per month

Energy and Demand Charge $ 0.023490  per kWh
Fuel Cost Recovery Factor $ 0.037190  per kWh

$ 0.025641  
$ 0.060000  

Electric Utility Tax $ 0.100000  
Electric State Sales Tax $ 0.070000   Commercial Only 

$ 0.005000  Commercial Only
Temporary Service (TS)

Notes
(1) Rates change on this table represents were approved effective on April 01,2012.

Franchise Fee

   Primary Delivery Voltage

Deposit required at the time of initiating service.

(Rates from appropriate General Service schedules are applied)

Applicable to any customer for temporary service such as displays, construction, fairs, exhibits and similar temporary 

Fuel Cost Recovery Factor

Electric State Sales Tax Surcharge

Franchise Fee

Rate schedules available upon request

      Primary Delivery Voltage

Fixture and Maintenance Charge

Gross Receipts Tax

Demand Charge

Electric State Sales Tax Surcharge

Gross Receipts Tax

   Non Metered Accounts

   Secondary Delivery Voltage

Customer charges (per line of billing):
    Metered Accounts 

Energy and Demand Charge
Fuel Cost Recovery Factor
Gross Receipts Tax

Gross Receipts Tax

Energy and Demand Charge

Table 24

Customer charges:
   Non Metered Accounts
   Metered Accounts:
      Secondary Delivery Voltage

Franchise Fee

Electric State Sales Tax Surcharge

Customer charges:

Franchise Fee

Fuel Cost Recovery Factor

Electric State Sales Tax Surcharge

Customer charges:
   Non Metered Accounts
   Metered Accounts
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Function
Public Safety

Police Stations 1               1               1               1               1               1               1               1               1               1               
Fire Stations 3               3               3               3               3               3               3               3               3               3               

City Limits
Square Miles 8.6            9.5            9.5            9.5            10             10             10             10             10             10             

Streets
Paved (miles) 123.0        123.0        123.0        124.0        133.0        133.0        133.0        133.0        133.0        133.0        
Unpaved (miles) 0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            0.1            
Sidewalks (miles) 99.0          99.0          99.0          99.0          137.0        137.3        155.0        155.0        155.0        155.0        
Bikepaths (miles) 23.3          23.3          23.3          23.3          23.3          23.3          23.3          23.3          23.3          23.3          

Culture and Recreation
Recreation centers 6               6               6               6               6               6               3               3               4               6               
Major Parks 6               7               7               7               7               7               7               12             9               13             
Mini Parks & playgrounds 73             73             73             73             73             73             67             45             45             46             
Parks acreage 281           281           281           292           293           293           298           298           298           298           

Fleet
Vehicles and other heavy equipment 355           366           370           404           400           400           400           400           400           400           

Water & Sewer
Water Plants 4               4               4               4               4               4               4               4               4               4               
Water mains (miles) 550           551           551           553           555           555           556           558           558           559           
Water maximum capacity (thousands of gallons) 20,158      20,158      20,155      26,808      28,800      28,800      28,800      28,800      28,800      28,400      
Deep wells 9               9               9               8               8               8               8               8               8               8               
Sewer force mains (miles) 42.1          42.1          42.1          42.3          44             44             44             44             44             45             
Sewer gravity lines (miles) 139           139           139           139           140           142           142           143           143           143           
Lift stations 87             87             87             87             87             87             87             87             86             101           
Stormwater stations N/A N/A N/A 2               2               2               2               2               2               2               
Disposal (Wastewater) plants 1               1               1               1               1               1               1               1               1               1               

Electric
Electric Substations N/A N/A 2               2               2               2               2               2               2               2               

Sources: Various City departments

Note: N/A- Information is not available.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Table 25

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor, City Commission, and City Manager 
of the City of Winter Park, Florida: 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Winter Park, Florida as of and for 
the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City of Winter Park, Florida’s basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2013. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the City of Winter Park, Florida is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of 
Winter Park, Florida's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Winter Park, Florida’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Winter 
Park, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as described above. However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over 
financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we 
consider to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting (Comment 2012-01). A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Winter Park, Florida's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Winter Park, Florida in a separate 
letter dated March 15, 2012. 

The City of Winter Park, Florida’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in 
Management Responses to Internal Control and Management Comments as listed in the table of contents. 
We did not audit the City of Winter Park, Florida’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on 
the responses. 

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its distribution is 
not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require us to indicate 
that this report is intended solely for the information and use of the State of Florida Office of the Auditor 
General, City Commission, management, others within the City, and Federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Daytona Beach, Florida 
March 15, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT 
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
OMB CIRCULAR A-133  

To the Honorable Mayor, City Commission, and City Manager 
  of the City of Winter Park, Florida: 

Compliance 

We have audited City of Winter Park, Florida’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of the City of Winter Park, Florida’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 
2012. The City of Winter Park, Florida’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with 
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal 
programs is the responsibility of the City of Winter Park, Florida’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on the City of Winter Park, Florida’s compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133, 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City of Winter Park, Florida’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Winter Park, Florida’s 
compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
September 30, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City of Winter Park, Florida is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Winter 
Park, Florida’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Winter Park, Florida’s internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above. 

The City of Winter Park, Florida’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying Management Responses to Internal Control and Management Comments. We did not audit 
the City of Winter Park, Florida’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this report is a public record and its distribution is not limited. 
The purpose of this report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements applicable to each of the City’s major programs and our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of our testing, and to provide an opinion on the City’s 
compliance but not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and 
its internal control compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Daytona Beach, Florida 
March 15, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ MANAGEMENT LETTER 
REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE STATE 

OF FLORIDA OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

To the Honorable Mayor, City Commission, and City Manager, 
  of the City of Winter Park, Florida: 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Winter Park, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2013. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations;  and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General. 
We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements 
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control 
over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133, and Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated March 15, 2012, should be considered 
in conjunction with this management letter. 

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, 
which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida. This 
letter includes the following information, which is not included in the aforementioned auditors’ reports or 
schedule: 

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective 
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial 
audit  report. Corrective action was taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding 
annual financial audit report. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the 
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In connection 
with our audit, we determined that the City of Winter Park, Florida complied with Section 218.415, 
Florida Statutes. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter 
any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we noted the 
following recommendations: 
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2012-2 Inventory Observation 

The City has documented year-end inventory procedures for the Electric warehouses, but does not 
have any such documentation for its large Water and Sewer inventory warehouses. In addition, we 
noted ambulance inventory is not recorded in the general ledger; instead it is expensed as purchased. 
Such inventory should be recorded in the general ledger and expensed as used. To ensure physical 
inventories are appropriately performed, we recommend the City formally document the procedures 
for performing its water/sewer and ambulance physical inventory counts. These instructions should 
include specific tasks to be performed by the City’s personnel, including tasks to be performed by 
the Accounting Department, completion of the tags, and completion of the control sheets. The 
written instructions should also include reconciliation and recount procedures. 

2012-3 Police and Fire Fighter Pension Trust Fund Board Minutes 

In the performance of our audit procedures, we noted that the City’s Police and Fire Fighter Pension 
board minutes had not been updated on the City’s website for over one year. Minutes serve as a 
record of the events of the board meetings and should document all important topics discussed and 
decisions reached. Board minutes can be a crucial document in the event of future legal matters and 
in documenting compliance with regulatory issues. We suggest that the Board Secretary (or an 
appointed record-keeper) be responsible for posting them on the City’s website in a timely manner, 
so that every meeting will have one set of corresponding minutes. 

2012-4 Clarification of Investment Policy 

During our audit, we noted possible discrepancies between the actual allocation of investments and 
the established investment policies adopted by the commission on 10/22/2002. The purpose of the 
adoption of an investment policy is to set forth the overall investment philosophy of the City as 
decided by its governing board. The policy should be the guiding rule and it should be followed 
without exception. The current investment policy is vague in that it “will apply to funds under the 
control of the City in excess of those required to meet current expenses.” We suggest the City 
clarify its investment policy to specify exactly what is meant by “funds in excess of those required 
to meet current expenses.” 

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions of 
contracts or grant agreements, fraud, illegal acts, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but more than 
inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, provides that the auditor may, based on professional 
judgment, report the following matters that have an inconsequential effect on financial statements, 
considering both quantitative and qualitative factors:  (1) violations of provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements, fraud, illegal acts, or abuse, and (2) deficiencies in internal control that are not significant 
deficiencies. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings. 

Section 10.554 (1)(i) 6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in the 
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority for the 
primary government is disclosed in Note 1 of the basic financial statements. The City has no component 
units. 
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Section 10.554(1)(i)7.a., Rules of the Auditor General,  requires a statement be included as to whether or 
not the local governmental entity has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), 
Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we 
determined that the City of Winter Park, Florida did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 
218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)7.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether the annual 
financial report for the City of Winter Park, Florida for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, filed 
with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in 
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. In 
connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in agreement. 

Pursuant to Sections 10.554 (1)(i) 7.c. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the City’s financial 
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by 
management and the review of financial information provided by same. 

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its distribution is 
not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require us to indicate 
that this letter is intended solely for the information and use of the City commission, management, federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Daytona Beach, Florida 
March 15, 2013 
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Federal Agency, Pass-Through Entity, Federal Program
CFDA 

Number Grant / Contract Number
 Award 
Amount 

 Federal 
Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Pass-through State of Florida, Department of Financial Services, Division of Emergency Management

Homeland Security Grant Program-2008 97.067 DS-51-13-00-16-409 13,535$    13,533$           
Homeland Security Grant Program-2009 97.067 10-DS-39-13-16-414 12,802      12,802             
Homeland Security Grant Program-2010 97.067 11-DS-9Z-13-16-436 9,000        9,091               
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 35,426           

U.S. Department of Energy
Pass-through State of Florida, Energy and Climate Commission

ARRA State Energy Program- Clean Energy Project 81.041 ARS049 325,000    252,867           
ARRA State Energy Program- Renewable Energy, Efficiency and Conservation Project 81.041 ARS011 360,207    161,514           
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 414,381         

Federal Highway Administration
Pass-through State of Florida, Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction-Fairbanks Pedestrian & Lighting Improvements 20.205 APJ41 750,000    5,320               
Highway Planning and Construction-Fairbanks Avenue Intersection Realignment 20.205 APU92 491,964    34,473             
Highway Planning and Construction-Fairbanks Avenue Pedestrian Improvements 20.205 APJ41 250,000    12,884             
Highway Planning and Construction-Design Howell Branch Road sidewalk improvements 20.205 AQE77 38,432      38,273             
Total Federal Highway Administration 90,950           

Federal Transit Administration
Pass-through State of Florida, Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction-Amtrak Station Construction and Improvements 20.500 AQD32 950,000    57,156             
Total Federal Transit Administration 57,156           

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Pass-through State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection

Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants-Cortland Avenue Outfall Improvements 66.460 G0272 210,000    2,586               
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 2,586             

U.S. Department of Justice
   Edwards Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2012-JAGC-ORAN-10-C4-128 11,824      11,824             
   Edwards Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2012-JAGD-ORAN-3-C5-060 7,425        7,425               

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program-OJP Vest Partnership 16.607 1121-0235 2,280        2,280               
Total U.S. Department of Justice 21,529           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 622,028$        

NOTE 1 Basis of Presentation
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal awards activity of the City of Winter Park, Florida. Grant revenues are
recognized only when allowable program costs have been incurred. This revenue recognition criteria for grants is applied to all funds. In addition, grant revenues
are recognized in governmental funds when the availability criteria has been met. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.

The City of Winter Park, Florida
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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Summary of Auditor's Results:

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)? X Yes No

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X No

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of
Circular A-133? Yes X No

Identification of major programs: CFDA No. 81.041, ARRA US Dept of Energy,
Energy and Climate Commission

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between the
type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Unqualified

THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Unqualified

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Section I.

$300,000
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Section II. Findings relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

2012-1 Recording of Like-Kind Exchange
We noted during the course of our audit that a transaction took place whereby land was traded for similarly 
valued land (941 West Morse Boulevard for 1150 N. Orange Avenue), and was recorded on the books at the 
fair market value of the new land. According to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), this 
type of transaction is considered a like-kind exchange, and should be recorded at the net book value of the 
land previously recorded on the books. We recommend that GAAP are consistently followed and applied 
when recording such transactions.

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards:

None.

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings:

2009-01 Use of Service Organizations: Corrective action taken.

2011-01 Recording of Accrued Interest Payable on Governmental Activities Debt: Corrective action taken

2011-02 Compensated Absences Liability: Corrective action taken

2011-03 Net Pension Obligation - Police and Firefighter Pension Plans: Corrective action taken.

2011-04 Special Assessments: Corrective action taken.

Section V Corrective Action Plan
See response to schedule of findings and questioned costs, as listed in the table of contents.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Continued)

Section III.

Section IV.

THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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March 19, 2013 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Commission of the 

City of Winter Park, Florida: 
 
Re:  Responses to Independent Auditors’ Management Letter and 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
City staff has developed the following responses to comments and 
findings prepared by the independent auditors: 
 
2012-2 Inventory Observation: 
Documentation of procedures currently being used to value water and 
sewer inventory and ambulance supplies will be prepared.  Also, the 
ambulance supplies will be recorded as inventory in the current year.  
We typically have $30,000 - $40,000 in ambulance supplies on hand at 
any given point in time.   
 
It is important to note there are already controls in place to ensure 
ambulance supplies are issued only on an as needed basis to those 
authorized to access the secured inventory system. 
 
2012-3 Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund Board Minutes: 
Minutes were taken at each meeting of the police and fire pension 
boards, approved at the succeeding meeting and have always been 
readily available upon request as a matter of public record.  Although 
minutes are not required to be posted to the City’s website, minutes of 
all meetings that have been approved by the boards have now been 
posted and we will keep the website current in the future. 
 
2012-4 Clarification of Investment Policy: 
The scope of the City’s investment policy will be broadened to clarify 
that it applies to all funds held by the City on behalf of the citizens of 
Winter Park with the exception of:  
 
A. Pension or similar trust fund assets 
B. Funds whose uses are restricted by debt covenants, prior contracts or legal, 
regulatory or other constraints 
 
Since September 30, the City’s investment portfolio has been 
rebalanced so that funds invested in longer-term securities are in 
compliance with the policy as currently written. 
 
Also, the lowest rating of any investment in the City’s portfolio as of 
September 30, 2012 was AA+ by Moody’s Investor Services. 
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2012-1 Recording of Like-Kind Exchange: 
Staff mistakenly recorded the Progress Pointe property at its fair market value at the time of the 
land swap.  Because the transaction lacks commercial substance, (does not impact the future cash 
flows of the City) it should have been recorded at the net book value of the State Office Building 
property given in the exchange.  Staff corrected this in the financial report. 
   
Further research will be undertaken prior to recording unusual and infrequent transactions in the 
future. 
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REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION 
March 11, 2013 

 
 

The meeting of the Winter Park City Commission was called to order by Mayor 
Kenneth Bradley at 3:34 p.m. in the Commission Chambers, 401 Park Avenue 
South, Winter Park, Florida.   

 
The invocation was provided by Reverend Allison Harrity, St. Richard’s Episcopal 

Church, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Members present:   Also present:  

Mayor Kenneth Bradley   City Manager Randy Knight 
Commissioner Steven Leary    City Attorney Larry Brown 

Commissioner Sarah Sprinkel  City Clerk Cynthia Bonham 
Commissioner Carolyn Cooper   Deputy City Clerk Michelle Bernstein 
Commissioner Tom McMacken    

 
Approval of the agenda 

 
Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to approve the agenda; seconded 

by Commissioner McMacken; approved by acclamation with a 5-0 vote.   
 
Mayor’s Report  

 
a. Presentation – Police Department accreditation 

 
Mayor Bradley congratulated the Police Department on their recent accreditation.  
Chief Marcus who serves as a commissioner for the Commission for Florida Law 

Enforcement Accreditation presented the award to the Police Department.  Police 
Chief Brett Railey thanked his staff, including Lieutenant Tom Pearson for making 

this award possible through their efforts and hard work.   
 

b.  Proclamation – Health Week 

 
Mayor Bradley proclaimed the week of March 17-23, 2013 as Healthy Central 

Florida Week.  Jill Hamilton Buss, Executive Director of Healthy Central Florida 
accepted the proclamation and provided a brief summary of this week’s events.  
 

KA-BOOM Playground 
 

Mayor Bradley thanked the numerous volunteers that showed up last week to help 
build the new KA-BOOM playground at Fleet Peeples Park.  
 

City Manager’s Report: 
1. City Manager Knight reminded the Commission that the City will be hosting 

the Tri-County League of Cities Luncheon on March 21, 2013 at the Community 
Center. 
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2. City Manager Knight addressed the scheduling of the strategic planning 

session and asked for feedback.  A majority of the Commission agreed that we 
should have a facilitator and that we should entertain other options as to who the 

facilitator should be.  They also agreed that before moving forward an outlined 
agenda should be provided so that we do not duplicate the efforts made over the 
past few years.  City Manager Knight acknowledged. 

 
3. City Manager Knight advised that in the next few week’s staff will be 

contacting each of the Commissioners to schedule an individual tree tour so they 
can see exactly what is being done in the local neighborhoods and provide 
feedback.  This will enable staff to finalize the tree discussions. 

 
4. Commissioner McMacken requested adding quiet zones to the City Manager’s 

Report for tracking purposes.  The request was acknowledged. 
 

Update on New Hope Church portable completion schedule 

 
Pastor John Phillips, New Hope Baptist Church, provided a brief summary regarding 

the items completed to date and a timeline of when the outstanding items will be 
completed including the development certification to operate a daycare facility.  
Pastor Phillips and Fred Hendry, Facilities Coordinator for New Hope Baptist Church 

addressed the Commission’s concerns related to securing the temporary fencing 
and stabilizing the skirting. 

 
City Attorney’s Report  
 

Attorney Brown advised that the Federal Judge in the Bell case ruled in the City’s 
favor by denying the injunction and dismissed the lawsuit at this time. 

 
Non-Action Item  
 

a. Introduction of Silvia Vargas, (consultant with Wallace, Todd, Roberts) for  
the Comprehensive Plan review per the Economic Development Plan 

 
Planning Director Jeff Briggs introduced Silvia Vargas and explained her role acting 
as the Comprehensive Plan reviewer.  Ms. Vargas provided a brief PowerPoint 

presentation which included their business credentials, projects completed to date, 
regulatory analysis/implementation tools, and the overall process and timeline.  

 
Following a brief discussion, a majority agreed that the Commissioners should be 

included in the conversations and that a draft report should be provided within four 
months rather than six months.  Ms. Vargas answered questions and provided 
clarity regarding the proposed schedule.  She said if they can accelerate the 

process they will and agreed to provide an exact timeline including a final 
completion date within the next two weeks.  It was noted that the City’s point of 

contact is Jeff Briggs.   
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b. Financial Report – December 2012 

 
Finance Director Wes Hamil provided the financial report and answered questions.  

 
Motion made by Commissioner Sprinkel to approve the report as 
presented; seconded by Commissioner Leary and approved unanimously 

with a 5-0 vote. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
a. Approve the minutes of 2/25/13. 

b. Approve the following contracts and formal solicitation: 
1. Renewal with Matern Professional Engineering, Inc. RFQ-2-2012 Continuing 

Contract for Professional, Architectural & Engineering Services (Green 
Planning & Engineering Services) and authorize the Mayor to execute 
Amendment 1. 

2. Renewal with Shaw Environmental & Infrastructure, Inc. for RFQ-2-2012 
Continuing Contract for Professional, Architectural & Engineering Services 

(Green Planning & Engineering Services) and authorize the Mayor to execute 
Amendment 1. 

3. Renewal with Kelly, Collins & Gentry, Inc. for RFQ-2-2012 Continuing 

Contract for Professional, Architectural & Engineering Services (Roadway 
Design) and authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment 1. 

4. Award Schuller Contractors, Inc. for IFB-12-2013 Canton Avenue Stormwater 
Outfall Improvement and authorize the Mayor to execute the Contract; 
$78,461.05. 

5. Award Orlando Freightliner for IFB-14-2013 Purchase of New Cab & Chassis 
Tandem Axle Truck (PR 151755); $76,459 

c. Approve the mid-year budget adjustment to address projected shortfalls in 
revenue. 
 

Motion made by Commissioner McMacken to approve the Consent Agenda; 
seconded by Commissioner Leary and approved unanimously with a 5-0 

vote. 
 
Action Items Requiring Discussion 

 
There were no action items for discussion. 

 
Public Hearings: 

 
a. ORDINANCE NO. 2911-13:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, 

FLORIDA VACATING AND ABANDONING THE EASEMENT BEGIN AT THE NORTHEAST 

CORNER OF SAID LOT 14, BLOCK “A”, CLOISTER GROVE SUBDIVISION, RUN WEST 

50 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 14 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID LOT 14; THENCE SOUTH 52 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 15, 

BLOCK A, CLOISTER GROVE REPLAT, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK O, PAGE 147, OF 
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THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA (1141 VIA CAPRI) THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY 72 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  Second 

Reading 

 

Attorney Brown read the ordinance by title.   

 
Motion made by Commissioner McMacken to adopt the ordinance; 

seconded by Commissioner Sprinkel.  No public comments were made.  Upon a 
roll call vote, Mayor Bradley and Commissioners Leary, Sprinkel, Cooper 
and McMacken voted yes.  The motion carried unanimously with a 5-0 vote. 

 
b. Request of the Sydgan Corporation: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2912-13:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, 

FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 58, “LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE”, ARTICLE I 

“COMPREHENSIVE PLAN” FUTURE LAND USE MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE FUTURE 

LAND USE DESIGNATION OF SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL TO LOW DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL ON THE PROPERTY AT 250 WEST LYMAN AVENUE, MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY 

AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  Second Reading 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2913-13:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, 

FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 58, “LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE”, ARTICLE III, 

“ZONING” AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING 

DESIGNATION OF SINGLE FAMILY (R-1A) DISTRICT TO LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

(R-2) DISTRICT ON THE PROPERTY AT 250 WEST LYMAN AVENUE, MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY 

AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  Second Reading 

 

Attorney Brown read both ordinances by title.  Commissioners disclosed their ex-

parte communications as it relates to the rezoning ordinance.   
 

Motion made by Commissioner Cooper to deny the first ordinance 
(comprehensive plan).  Motion failed for lack of a second. 

 
Motion made by Commissioner Leary to adopt the first ordinance 
(comprehensive plan); seconded by Mayor Bradley. 

 
Motion made by Commissioner Leary to adopt the second ordinance 

(zoning); seconded by Mayor Bradley. 
 
Commissioner Sprinkel mentioned that at the last meeting they did not address the 

preserving of the Grant Chapel Church and asked if they can amend the above 
motion and address it now.  Attorney Brown provided legal counsel.  He noted that 

since she was the prevailing side of the motion she could bring this item back up to 
address her concerns with the Office O-2 District zoning of this property.  He 
suggested the best time to do that is during the Commissioner Reports period. 
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Lurlene Fletcher, 790 Lyman Avenue, spoke in opposition.  She urged the 

Commission to keep this property zoned as Single Family. 
 

Sally Flynn, 1400 Highland Road, spoke in opposition. 
 
Upon a roll call vote on the first ordinance (comprehensive plan), Mayor 

Bradley and Commissioners Leary and Sprinkel voted yes.  Commissioners 
Cooper and McMacken voted no.  The motion carried with a 3-2 vote. 

 
Upon a roll call vote on the second ordinance (zoning), Mayor Bradley and 
Commissioners Leary and Sprinkel voted yes.  Commissioners Cooper and 

McMacken voted no.  The motion carried with a 3-2 vote.   
 

 c. RESOLUTION 2122-13:  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN URBAN AND COMMUNITY 

FORESTRY GRANT MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WINTER 

PARK AND THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER 

SERVICES. 
 
Attorney Brown read the resolution by title.   

 
Motion made by Commissioner Leary to adopt the resolution; seconded by 

Commissioner McMacken.  City Manager Knight answered questions.  No public 
comments were made.  Upon a roll call vote, Mayor Bradley and 

Commissioners Leary, Sprinkel, Cooper and McMacken voted yes.  The 
motion carried unanimously with a 5-0 vote. 
 

City Commission Reports: 
 

a. Commissioner Leary – No items. 
 

b. Commissioner Sprinkel 

 
Commissioner Sprinkel spoke about:  1) the large amount of people in the park 

yesterday for a concert; 2) several Commissioners will be traveling to Tallahassee 
this week for Legislative meetings; 3) as a representative of the City she will be 
attending the Hotel Conference on Tuesday; 4) her son spoke highly of our Police 

Department addressing an issue in his neighborhood this past weekend; 5) and that 
it might be beneficial to have an in-house grant writer.   

 
Commissioner Sprinkel requested to have the Grant Chapel Church item brought 
back to the Commission to revisit the Office (O-2) District zoning.   A suggestion 

was made to possibly establish an irrevocable deed restriction so as to preserve the 
chapel.  There was consensus of three Commissioners to consider this for the next 

meeting. 
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c. Commissioner Cooper  

 
Commissioner Cooper referenced an email the Commission received with concerns 

related to the safety aspects and traffic lanes on New England.  Mr. Briggs noted 
that the New England traffic study will be presented to the Commission at the next 
meeting and it addresses street cross sections and safety issues. 

 
Commissioner Cooper mentioned that from now until the end of March the Catholic 

Diocese and the Common Threads Organization will be collecting new shoes, socks 
and underwear for the homeless children in Central Florida; collection boxes are 
located in the Winter Park Fire Stations. 

 
d. Commissioner McMacken  

 
Commissioner McMacken said he had fun helping assemble the KA-BOOM 
playground this past weekend and thanked the Parks and Recreation Department 

for organizing such a great event. 
 

e. Mayor Bradley   
 
CRA Director Dori Stone responded to Mayor Bradley’s inquiry by providing a brief 

status report on the downtown parking study/plan.  She noted that part of the 
study included several surveys.  She explained that since this is a CRA effort the 

results from the report will first be given to the CRA Advisory Board, then to the 
Park Avenue Merchant’s Association, then to the CRA Agency and then to the 
Commission.  

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:10 p.m. 

 
Recess and Executive Session 
 

A recess was taken at 5:10 p.m. 
 

At 5:30 p.m. an Executive Session was held pursuant to Section 447.605 to discuss 
matters relative to collective bargaining.  The Executive Session meeting adjourned 
at 6:20 p.m. 

 
 

 
                      

                  Mayor Kenneth W. Bradley 
ATTEST: 
 

 
      

City Clerk Cynthia S. Bonham  



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Purchases over $50,000 

 vendor item | background fiscal impact motion | recommendation 

1. NDI 

Recognition 

Systems 

PR 151714 for Veriplate 

Automatic License Plate 

Recognition Solution 

Federal Forfeiture 

funds will be used 

for this purchase. 

Amount: $71,478 

Commission approve PR 

151714 and authorize the 

Mayor to execute the quote 

documents. 

 This is a sole source vendor.  The Sole Source justification process has been completed through the 

Purchasing Division. 

2. Seminole 

County 

Sheriff’s Office 

PR 151854 for Annual 

Maintenance, Support, Upgrades 

& Connectivity for Computer 

Aided Forms Entry Management 

System 

Total annual 

expenditure 

included in 

approved FY13 

budget. Amount: 

$50,000 

Commission approve PR 

151854. 

 The City Commission approved the purchase of this system on November 28, 2011.  Interagency 

Agreement was executed on November 29, 2011. 

 

 

Contracts 

 vendor item | background fiscal impact motion | recommendation 

3. Southeastern 

Surveying and 

Mapping 

Corporation 

Amendment 1 for RFQ-2-2012 

Continuing Contract for 

Professional, Architectural & 

Engineering Services (Survey 

Services) 

Total expenditure 

included in 

approved FY13 

budget. 

Commission approve contract 

renewal with Southeastern 

Surveying and Mapping 

Corporation and authorize 

the Mayor to execute 

Amendment 1. 

 The City utilized a formal solicitation process to award this contract.  The City Commission approved 

contract award to Southeastern Surveying and Mapping Corporation March 26, 2012.  The contract 

term was for a period of one (1) year with a total of four (4) one year renewal options, not to exceed 

five (5) years in total.  The current contract term will expire on March 26, 2013. 

 
 

Piggyback contracts 

 vendor item | background fiscal impact motion | recommendation 

4. Boulevard Tire 

Center 

Piggybacking the Florida Sheriff’s 

Association contract 14-15-06-

131 for Tires & Related Services 

Total expenditure 

will be included in 

approved budget. 

Commission approve 

piggybacking the Florida 

Sheriff’s Association contract 

with Boulevard Tire Center 

and authorize the Mayor to 

execute the Piggyback 

Consent Agenda 

 

Purchasing Division 

 

 
 

 March 25, 2013 

 



 

 

 

Contract. 

 The Florida Sheriff’s Association utilized a formal solicitation process to award this contract.  The 

contract term expires February 28, 2015. 

5. USA Services 

of Florida 

Piggybacking the City of Daytona 

Beach contract 1210-1960 for 

Street Sweeping Services 

Total expenditure 

will be included in 

approved budget. 

Commission approve 

piggybacking the City of 

Daytona Beach contract with 

USA Services of Florida and 

authorize the Mayor to 

execute the Piggyback 

Contract. 

 The City of Daytona Beach utilized a formal solicitation process to award this contract.  The contract 

term expires September 28, 2013.  Total FY13 projected spend against this contract is $150,607.60. 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

subject 
 

RFP-11-2013 Federal Lobbying Services 

 

motion | recommendation 
 

Recommend City Commission approve award to Alcalde & Fay Government & Public Affairs 

Consultants 

 

background 
 

On January 17, 2013 the RFP was issued. 

On February 14, 2013 a public opening of responses was conducted.  A total of five (5) proposals 

were received, all were deemed responsive. 

On February 21, 2013 the selection committee met to conduct a short listing of the responses. 

On March 5, 2013 oral presentations were given by the top three (3) short listed firms: 

             Alcalde & Fay Government & Public Affairs Consultants 

             BGR Government Affairs, LLC 

             Jenkins Hill Consulting, LLC 

At the conclusion of the oral presentations, the selection committee ranked as follows: 

             Alcalde & Fay Government & Public Affairs Consultants 

             BGR Government Affairs, LLC 

             Jenkins Hill Consulting, LLC 

 

alternatives | other considerations 
 

The City Commission has the option of accepting the Selection Committee’s recommendation or 

selecting another firm proposing on this engagement. 

 

fiscal impact 
 

Top ranked firm proposed fee is $5,000 per month. 

 

strategic objective 
 

Quality government services & financial security 

 

 

Regular Meeting 

 
3:30 p.m. 

January 11, 2010 
Commission Chambers 

Regular Meeting 

 
3:30 p.m. 

January 11, 2010 
Commission Chambers 

Consent Agenda 

 

Purchasing Division 

 

 

March 25, 2013 

 



 

 

 

 
Subject:  Acceptance of the Alfond Inn – New England Avenue traffic study. 

 
The Alfond Inn – New England Avenue traffic study was provided in full for the City 
Commission in your agenda packets of November 26, 2012.  The back-up for this agenda 

item is the power point presentation summarizing the study and recommendations. 
 

Since that Nov. 26th meeting, the staff has met with the stake-holders (Rollins College/Jim 
Campisi-Villa Sienna/Alexander Place owners) to review the study findings and the 
recommendations.  There is general agreement with the study’s recommendations.  City 

Commission action requested is to “accept” the report recommendations. 
 

Summary and Background: 
 
When the City approved the Alfond Inn, some of the neighbors on Alexander Place voiced 

concerns about traffic tie-ups on New England Avenue, especially before events, with cars 
waiting to make left turns into the main parking lot or the front door valet, which in turn 

would make access to Alexander Place very difficult.  One proposal was for a left turn lane 
on New England Avenue for those left turns.  However, then the thru lane would eliminate 
the on-street parallel parking spaces on the north side which the Villa Sienna condos do 

not want to lose.  So the City Commission authorized a traffic study, just on this one issue. 
 

The traffic study contains a detailed analysis of the existing traffic conditions and options for 
improvements for those peak traffic times during Hotel events.  The summary is: 

 
1. The City needs to wait for the Alfond Inn to open to determine the extent of the 

“problem” and to see if any “fix” is necessary and what degree of “fix” is required.  The 

vast majority of traffic will be directed to the Hotel events from the east and both traffic 
lights function today to create gaps for cars to access Alexander Place.  The presumed 

“gridlock” is likely to be for 10-15 minutes perhaps twice a week.   
2. Assuming a “problem” does exist, the first remedy is to place temporary signs in the 

center line of the roadway with directional signage (like the signage for the pedestrian 

crossing at the Post Office) that will physically preclude those left turns that would back 
up traffic, thereby keeping the existing gaps in traffic available for cars accessing 

Alexander Place. 
3. In the event these traffic control features are not sufficient then the City Commission can 

consider other alternatives outlined in the traffic study.   

Action Item Requiring Discussion 

Jeff Briggs 

Planning Department 
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Subject:       Request of Winter Park Town Center Redevelopment LLC for “Final” 
Conditional Use Approval for the 204 unit apartment project at 940 W. Canton Ave. 
 

Winter Park Town Center Development LLC is requesting “final” conditional use approval for 
their 204 unit residential building project pursuant to the “preliminary” conditional use provided 

by the City Commission on September 24, 2012 on the property at 940 W. Canton Avenue.  
The “preliminary” conditional use was recommended for approval by the Planning Board on 

September 11, 2012.   
 
Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation: 

 
Motion made by Mr. Gottfried, seconded by Mr. Weldon to grant final conditional use approval for the 
Winter Park Town Center Development, LLC to construct a four story, 206 unit residential project and 
to construct a parking garage of approximately 300 spaces on the property at 940 West Canton Avenue 
with the stipulation that the applicant is paying for improvements to Lake Mendsen.  Motion carried 
unanimously with a 6-0 vote. 

 

Summary: 
 
Per city code, the public hearings advertised for the conditional use review and approval in 

September were for the “preliminary” CU approval per code.  The “final” CU approval per code 
is the action to review compliance with the original approval and to review the final landscaping, 

drainage, lighting and sign details, as well as the Development Agreement. 
 
The New “Final” Plan Submittals: 

 
This “final” conditional use provides more complete details on the project architectural details 

and utilities as well as four new plan details for review: 
 

1. Landscape Plan – the specific landscape plan for the project is attached.  It meets the 

city code requirements pursuant to the conceptual site plan approved in September 
but some of the new tree details have changed.  Originally the perimeter of the site 

was to be exclusively oak trees but it was recognized that in the small (15 foot) 
setback areas on the western border and on the southern border by the parking 
garage, there is not sufficient area for oak trees to prosper.  So the trees specified for 

those areas are now 18 new magnolia and red cedar trees that are better suited for 
those confined spaces.  However, where space exists along the southern border and 

along the Denning Drive and Canton Avenue frontages, there are 28 new live oak 
trees planned to be added.   

Public Hearing 
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2. Storm Water Drainage Plan – the specific method of meeting the City and St. Johns 
River Water Management District drainage criteria was decided by the City 

Commission on January 14th.  The City Commission accepted the proposal from the 
CNL Heritage Park office project and for this Casto/Epoch apartment project to allow 

the Lake Mendsen within Lake Island Park to be increased in water surface and 
volume area to provide the required retention.  In return, the two projects will pay the 
City $100,000.  Each project will have an on-site filtration collection box to screen and 

remove the debris in the storm water runoff prior to its conveyance down to Lake 
Mendsen for the retention aspect.  

3. Parking Garage Lighting – The plans contemplate the same lighting design for the roof 
of the parking garage as was utilized on the Winter Park Towers and SunTrust parking 
garages.  Basically those are smaller light pole heights (14 feet) and fixtures that 

direct the light downward to minimize light spread.  This design has been successful 
at those two locations.   

4. Signage – This final conditional use stage is also when the signage package is 
approved and those sign details are provided.  (Typically the developer doesn’t know 
the signage package at the ‘preliminary’ stage)  There are two ground monument 

signs, one at the southern border of the site on Denning Drive and the second one at 
the corner of Denning and Canton.  The code relates to the “signable area” and not 

the area of the columns, the base or other architectural features.  The proposed sign 
faces are 33 square feet which is larger than the 12 square feet permitted by the R-4 

residential zoning.  The developers are requesting an “exception”: for the larger sign 
face area. 

 

Staff recommended approval of this “exception” as permitted by Sec. 58-90:  The 
rationale is that that this property was zoned office (O-1) which permitted up to a 36 

sq. ft. sign face, when it was zoned O-1.  Proposed sign size is 33 sq. ft.  The rezoning 
to R-4 took it down to 12 sq. ft.  So the applicants had the right for 36 sq. ft. 
previously.  The CNL ground sign can be 36 sq. ft.  This site is 4.36 acres, 204 apts. 

and on a four lane road, etc.  So the size seemed appropriate to the staff and the P&Z 
Board in this context and location. 

 
As information, both the CNL Heritage Park office project and this project are paying to 
underground the electric utility lines that exist along the Denning Drive frontages.  That will 

greatly enhance the aesthetic appeal of both projects. 
 

There is a draft Development Agreement attached.  There are no special conditions or 
restrictions on this project.  The Development Agreement only includes the project 
entitlements that have been approved and the exceptions from the Code approved with the 

‘preliminary” plans or being done at this “final” conditional use stage for the signage 
package. 
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Prepared by: 

M. Rebecca Wilson, Esq.  
Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed P.A.  
215 N. Eola Drive 
Orlando, FL  32801 
 
Return to: 
City Clerk  
City of Winter Park 
401 Park Avenue South 
Winter Park, FL  32789 
 
 

WINTER PARK VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS WINTER PARK VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is entered into this ____ day of _______________, 2013, by Winter Park Town 
Center Development LLC, a Florida limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as 
“OWNER”), having an address of 5391 Lakewood Ranch Boulevard, Suite 100, Sarasota, 
Florida 34240 and the City of Winter Park, a Florida municipal corporation (hereinafter 
referred to as “CITY”), having an address at 401 Park Avenue South, Winter Park, Florida 
32789. 

WHEREAS, OWNER is the owner of certain real property located at 940 W. Canton 
Avenue, Winter Park, Florida and further described on Exhibit “A” which is incorporated herein 
and made a part thereof (the “Subject Property”);   

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Winter Park Land Development Code, OWNER has 
received approval of a Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) which permits the development of a four 
(4) story 204 unit residential project with an associated four (4) level parking garage (together, 
the “Project”); and  

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement to more specifically set forth 
the conditions and restrictions with respect to the Project and the CUP. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten Dollars and no/100 ($10.00), each in hand 
paid to the other and other good and valuable consideration, receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein. 

2. Conditional Use Permit. The City grants CUP approval of the development plan attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B” (“Development Plan”).  The CUP includes the approval of a four (4) story 
204 unit residential project with an associated four (4) level parking garage. 

3. Expansion.  OWNER agrees, in compliance with City Code, to submit an application for 
CUP review to the Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission prior to any significant 
changes (as set forth in Section 58-90(h)) on the property adjacent and to the west of the Subject 
Property (with an address of 1020 W. Canton Ave.).  
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4. Setbacks.   

N. Denning Avenue: 30 ft. minimum 
Canton Avenue: 35 ft. minimum for 304.00 linear feet 
 7 ft. minimum for 96.69 linear feet for    

 west wing  
South Property line: 13 ft. minimum 
Western Property line: 10 ft. minimum 

 

5. Height.  The residential buildings are 41 ft. to the eave and 59 ft. to the roof ridge.  The 
residential building which contains leasing offices and amenities is 44 ft. to the eave and 59 ft. to 
the roof ridge.  The parking garage is 32 ft. to the top level and 38 ft. to the top of parapet. 

6. Parking.  The parking garage contains approximately 358 parking spaces. 

7. Stormwater.  Any development occurring onsite shall meet all city, state and Water 
Management District requirements for stormwater retention.   

8. Parking Garage.  The parking garage shown in Exhibit “B” shall utilize “dark sky” lighting in 
designing the light fixtures.   

9. Subsequently Enacted State or Federal Law.  If state or federal laws are enacted after the 
execution of this Agreement which are applicable to and preclude the parties compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be modified or revoked as necessary to comply 
with the relevant state or federal laws, except that notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, any subsequently enacted state or federal law(s) shall not impair vested development 
rights for development that has commenced. 

10. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement and the terms and conditions thereof shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the CITY and OWNER and their respective successors 
in interest.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement similarly shall be binding upon the 
Property and shall run with the title to the same. 

11. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

12. Modification Must Be in Writing.  No modification or termination of this Agreement shall be 
valid unless it is approved by the City Commission and thereafter executed in writing and signed 
by the City Commissioners and Owner. 

13. No Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in 
writing and signed by the party against whom it is asserted, and any such written waiver shall 
only be applicable to the specific instance to which it relates and shall not be deemed to be a 
continuing or future waiver. 
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14. Captions and Section Heading.  Captions and Section Headings contained in this Agreement 
are for convenience and reference only and in no way define, describe, extend or limit the scope 
of intent of this Agreement nor the intent of any provision thereof. 

15. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any dispute hereunder or of any action to interpret or enforce 
this Agreement, any provision hereof or any matter arising herefrom, the prevailing party 
thereunder shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs including at trial or at all 
appellate levels. 

16. Waiver of Strict Construction Against Drafting Party.  Should any provision of this 
Agreement be subject to judicial interpretation, it is agreed that the court interpreting or 
considering such provision not apply the presumption or rule of construction that the terms of 
this Agreement be more strictly construed against the party which itself or through its counsel or 
other legal agent prepared the same, as all parties hereto have participated in the preparation of 
the final form of this Agreement through review by their respective counsel and the negotiation 
of changes in language in any provision deemed unsuitable or inadequate as initially written, 
and, therefore, the application of such presumption or rule of construction would be 
inappropriate and contrary to the intent of the parties. 

17. Interpretation.  In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall be invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity of the remaining provisions shall be in no 
way affected, prejudiced or disturbed thereby.  The use of any gender shall include all other 
genders.  The singular shall include the plural and vice versa.  Use of the words “herein”, 
“hereof”, “hereunder” and any other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole 
and not to any particular article, section or sub section of this Agreement unless specifically 
noted otherwise in this Agreement. 

18. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be deemed to be governed by, construed and enforced 
in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Florida.  Venue shall be Orange County, 
Florida. 

19. Third Parties.  This Agreement shall not be deemed to confer in favor of any third parties any 
rights whatsoever as third party beneficiaries, the parties hereto intending by the provisions 
hereof to confer no such benefits or status. 

20. Notice.  Any written notice, demand or request that is required to be made under this 
Agreement shall be served in person, or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, 
or by express mail or similar reputable overnight courier service, addressed to the party to be 
served at the address set forth in the first paragraph hereof.  The addresses stated herein may be 
changed as to the applicable party by providing the other party with notice of such address 
change in the manner provided in this paragraph.  In the event that written notice, demand or 
request is made as provided in this paragraph, then in the event that such notice is returned to the 
sender by the United States Postal Service or other similar reputable overnight courier service 
because of insufficient address or because the party has moved or otherwise, other than for 
insufficient postage, such writing shall be deemed to have been received by the party to whom it 
was addressed on the date that such writing was initially placed in the United States Postal 
Service or reputable overnight courier service by the sender. 
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Copies of notices shall be sent to: 
 
as to CITY: 
 

 
City of Winter Park  
Attention:  City Manager 
401 Park Avenue South 
Winter Park, FL  32789 

as to OWNER: Brett Hutchens 
Winter Park Town Center Development LLC 
c/o Casto Southeast Realty Services LLC 
5391 Lakewood Ranch Boulevard, Suite 100 
Sarasota, FL  34240 
 

With a copy to: 
 
 
 
 
With a copy to: 

 

Casto 
191 West  Nationwide Boulevard, Suite 200 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
Attention: General Counsel 
 
Rebecca Wilson, Esq. 
Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed, P.A. 
215 North Eola Drive 
Orlando, FL  32801 
 

23. Representations of the Parties. The CITY and OWNER hereby each represent and 
warrant to the other that it has the power and authority to execute, deliver and perform the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement and has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution, 
delivery and performance of this Agreement.  This Agreement will, when duly executed and 
delivered by the CITY and OWNER and recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, 
Florida, constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against the parties hereto and 
the Property in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  OWNER represents 
that it has voluntarily and willfully executed this Agreement for purposes of binding the Property 
to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  

24. Specific Performance.  Strict compliance shall be required with each and every 
provision of this Agreement.  The parties agree that failure to perform the obligations provided 
by this Agreement shall result in irreparable damage and that specific performance of these 
obligations may be obtained by a suit in equity. 

25. Development Permits.  Nothing herein shall limit the CITY’s authority to grant or 
deny any development permit applications or requests subsequent to the effective date of this 
Agreement.  The failure of this Agreement to address any particular City, County, State and/or 
Federal permit, condition, term or restriction shall not relieve OWNER or the CITY of the 
necessity of complying with the law governing said permitting requirement, condition, term or 
restriction.  Without imposing any limitation on the CITY’s police powers, the CITY reserves the 
right to withhold, suspend, or terminate any and all certificates of occupancy or permits for the 
Property if OWNER is in breach of any material term and condition of this Agreement.  
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26. Termination.  The CITY shall have the unconditional right, but not obligation, to 
terminate this Agreement, without notice or penalty, if OWNER fails to receive building permits 
and substantially commence construction of the Project within five (5) years of the effective date 
of this Agreement.  If the CITY terminates this Agreement, the CITY shall record a notice of 
termination in the public records of Orange County, Florida.  

27. Compliance with Other Laws, Ordinances and Regulations.  This Agreement shall 
not operate as a limitation upon the CITY to require the OWNER to comply with all applicable 
laws, ordinances, resolutions and regulations of either the United States, the State of Florida, 
Orange County or City of Winter Park, regulating the development of the OWNER’s Property in 
accordance with this Agreement to the extent that same are not specifically addressed or 
referenced herein, nor shall the failure of this Agreement to address any particular requirement to 
act to relieve the OWNER from complying with any development requirement, condition, term 
or restriction, including but not limited to, all impact fee requirements.  OWNER agrees to pay 
all fees when required by Code, including water/sewer connection fees, and park and recreation 
impact fees. 

28. Subordination/Joinder.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the CITY, all liens, 
mortgages and other encumbrances not satisfied or released of record, must be subordinated to 
the terms of this Agreement or the lienholder joins in this Agreement.  It shall be the 
responsibility of the OWNER to promptly obtain the said subordination or joinder, in form and 
substance acceptable to the City Attorney, in such City Attorney’s reasonable discretion, prior to 
the CITY execution of the Agreement. 

29. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of its execution 
by the last of the parties as evidenced by the date following the execution portion of this 
Agreement. 

30. Not A Statutory Development Agreement. Pursuant to Section 58-90, of the City’s 
Land Development Code, and based on the City’s home rule power, this Agreement is not a 
statutory development agreement, and is therefore not subject to Section 58-7 or Fla. Stat. 
§163.3220, et seq. 

31. Period of Effectiveness.  This Agreement shall remain in effect for 20 years.  The 
effectiveness of this Agreement may be extended upon City Commission approval consistent 
with this Agreement.  

 

[SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as 
follows: 

 WITNESSES:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
       
(print) 
 
       
 
       
(print) 

WINTER PARK TOWN CENTER 
DEVELOPMENT LLC, a Florida limited 
liability company 

By:  CLP/SPF Holding Company I, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, its 
sole member 

By:  Casto Lifestyle Properties, L.P., an 
Ohio limited partnership, its 
manager 

By:  CLP Management LLC, an 
Ohio limited liability 
company, its managing 
general partner 

 

By:       

Print name:      

Title:       

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of 
_____________, 2013, by ____________________________ the _________________ of  
     , a     , on behalf of the    
  □ who is personally known to me or □ who produced 
_______________________________ as identification.  

 

       
Notary Public – State of Florida  
Print Name:        
My Commission expires:     
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WITNESSES:  
 
 
 
 
       
 
       
(print) 
 
       
 
       
(print) 

CITY OF WINTER PARK, a Florida 
municipal corporation 
 

By:         

Print name:        

Title:         

ATTEST: 

By:         
 Cynthia Bonham, City Clerk 

Date:         

 

STATE OF FLORIDA  
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of 
_____________, 2013, by ____________________________ the _________________ of the 
CITY OF WINTER PARK, a Florida municipal corporation, □ who is personally known to me 
or □ who produced _______________________________ as identification.  

 

       
Notary Public – State of Florida  
Print Name:        
My Commission expires:     
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EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description 

 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 8 in Block “A” in Hills Addition to Winter Park, 
according to the map and plat thereof as the same appears of record in Plat Book C” on Page 50 
of the Public Land Records of Orange County, Florida, running thence westerly 450 feet more or 
less to the Southeast corner of Lot 10 of Block B of said subdivision; thence northerly along the 
east line of said Block B to the Northeast corner of Lot 1 of said Block B; thence easterly a 
distance of 450 feet more or less to the northeast corner of Lot 1 of Block “A” of said 
subdivision; thence southerly along the east line of Block “A” to the Point of Beginning. 
 



EXHIBIT “B” 
Development Plan 
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Subject: Request for Comp. FLU/Rezoning of 216, 224 and 234 W. Lyman Avenue to 
Office (O-2). 
 

The Sydgan Corp. owns and has contingent contracts to purchase property for which they seek 
Comp. Plan FLU Map and Zoning Map changes to: 

1. Change the existing single Family (R-1A) and Institutional (PQP) designations to 
Office (O-2) zoning on the properties at 216, 226 and 234 W. Lyman Avenues in 

order to relocate the Grant Chapel building on this site and use for office purposes.  
 
Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation: 

 
Motion made by Mr. Sacha, seconded by Mr. Gottfried to approve the comprehensive plan future 
land use map amendment to Office and the rezoning to (O-2) on the properties at 216, 226 and 
234 W. Lyman Avenue with the condition that a Development Agreement commits the owner to 
the relocation of the Grant Chapel Church building to this site within two (2) years from this 
approval and commits to the preservation of the Grant Chapel Church building.  Motion carried 
with a 6-1 vote.  Mrs. Whiting voted against the motion. 
 

 
Summary: 

 
The 216, 226 and 234 W. Lyman Avenue properties consist of the small single family 

frame house at the New York Avenue corner, the adjacent vacant lot to the west and the 
next adjacent former Western Union property.  The 216 and 226 W. Lyman properties are 
designated single family (R-1A).  The 234 W. Lyman Avenue property historically was 

where the Winter Park Taxi Company and Western Union office operated from.  Due to the 
quasi-public service business nature of those operations, the City established Institutional 

future land use in the comprehensive plan and Public, Quasi, Public (PQP) zoning in 1976.   
 
The proposal for these three properties collectively is to redevelop the entire site by 

moving the historic Grant Chapel church building from its current location at 301 W. New 
England Avenue to this new location.  The Grant Chapel building was constructed in 1935 

and was one of the historic churches in the Hannibal Square neighborhood.  The 
congregation was no longer viable in the late 1990’s and in 2002 it was sold to the 
applicant.  In recent years, the building has been used by the Winter Park photos and 

wedding chapel business.   
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The proposed office (O-2) zoning would allow that wedding photography business and in 
the future also allow for the building to be used as office space.  The site plan shows the 

Grant Chapel building, its associated parking and the corner plaza for outdoor wedding 
photos. 

 
The alternative as New England Avenue redevelops to much higher density is for Grant 
Chapel to be demolished to make way for that redevelopment.  The historic preservation 

term for this is “adaptive reuse”.  Preserving and saving a historic building for an alternate 
economically viable use. 

 
The action to rezone is conditioned upon a Development Agreement which binds the 
applicant to move the Grant Chapel building within two (2) years or the action to rezone 

shall be null and void.  The Development Agreement also commits to the preservation of 
the Grant Chapel church building. (That proposed Development Agreement is attached in 

the agenda materials)  
  
One other conditon is that one of the properties being acquired at 234 W. Lyman has 

three parking spaces that are committed as off-site parking for the Prince-Bush building at 
227 N. New York Avenue.  In order to make this happen (since there is not space for that 

parking plus the parking needed for the Grant Chapel tenant) is to waive the requirement 
for those three spaces.  As a practical reality they have never used them.    

 
Comprehensive Plan Policies: 
 

There are conflicting Comprehensive Plan policies in regards to this request, as shown 
below.  The Comprehensive Plan understandably contains a negative policy toward 

rezoning West Lyman Avenue for business purposes.  On the other hand, the 
Comprehensive Plan encourages the adaptive reuse of historic buildings. Given this 
context and location, on the corner of New York and Lyman Avenue, across from the 

Farmers Market and City Hall facilities, it seems to the staff that the goal of Historic 
Preservation for the Grant Chapel building outweighs the negative precedent.    
 
Policy 1-4.1.H.6: Protect the Residential Character of Certain Segments of Lyman Avenue and Carolina 
Avenue by Prohibiting Non-residential or Mix-Use Development and Related Accessory Uses. The City shall 
protect the existing residential character of Lyman Avenue between Hannibal Square East and New York Avenue 
and on Carolina Avenue by prohibiting the use of properties fronting on these streets in whole or in part for non-
residential development, or for parking or for storm water retention for adjacent commercial or office 
development.   
 
Policy 1-3.12.14: Rehabilitation and Adaptive Reuse of Historic Buildings for Contemporary Uses. The City 
shall encourage the rehabilitation and adaptive reuse of historic buildings if the buildings may no longer feasibly 
be used for their historic purposes. 
 
Staff Appraisal:   

 
The staff supported the request.  In terms of location and context these properties are on 

the edge of the downtown and next to the SunRail R/O/W and City Electric utility yard.  In 
this transitional location, single family residential zoning is not the most appropriate 
development use in this location. The requested rezoning is compatible with this “edge” 

transitional location.  
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.    
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 58, “LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE”, 
ARTICLE I “COMPREHENSIVE PLAN” FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE FUTURE LAND USE 
DESIGNATION OF SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND 
INSTITUTIONAL TO OFFICE FUTURE LAND USE ON THE 
PROPERTIES AT 216, 226 AND 234 WEST LYMAN AVENUE, 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
WHEREAS, the Winter Park City Commission adopted its Comprehensive Plan on February 
23, 2009 via Ordinance 2762-09, and 
 
WHEREAS, the owner of the property more particularly described herein has requested an 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan for this property, and such amendment meets the 
criteria established by Chapter 166, Florida Statutes and pursuant to and in compliance with 
law, notice has been given to Orange County and to the public by publication in a newspaper 
of general circulation to notify the public of this proposed Ordinance and of public hearings to 
be held. 
 
WHEREAS, the Winter Park Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as the designated Local 
Planning Agency, has reviewed and recommended adoption of the proposed Comprehensive 
Plan amendment, having held an advertised public hearing on February  5, 2013, provided for 
participation by the public in the process and rendered its recommendations to the City 
Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Winter Park City Commission has reviewed the proposed Comprehensive 
Plan amendment and held advertised public hearings and provided for public participation in 
the process in accordance with the requirements of state law and the procedures adopted for 
public participation in the planning process. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 58 “Land Development Code”, Article I, “Comprehensive 
Plan” future land use plan map is hereby amended so as to change the future land use map 
designation of single family residential and institutional to office on the properties at 216, 226 
and 234 W. Lyman Avenue, subject to the implementation of a development agreement for the 
preservation of the Grant Chapel church building and said property being more particularly 
described as follows: 

 
 

 
Lots 1 & 2, Block 68, Revised Map of the Town of Winter Park as recorded in Plat Book 



 

 

 

“A”, Pages 67-72 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
Property Tax ID’s # 05-22-30-9400-68-011; 05-22-30-9400-68-012 and 05-22-30-9400-
68-021 
 
SECTION 2. Severability.  If any Section or portion of a Section of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force, or effect of any other Section or part of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 3. Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with any of the 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4. Effective Date.   This Ordinance may not become effective until 31 days 

after adoption and additionally Section 1 of this Ordinance will not become effective unless title 
to the Property becomes vested in Westside Partners, Ltd. or its assignee.  If challenged within 
30 days after adoption, this Ordinance may not become effective until the state land planning 
agency or the Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order determining that 
this Ordinance is in compliance. 
 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of Winter Park, 
Florida, held in City Hall, Winter Park, on this _____ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
           
 Mayor                                     
Attest: 
 
  
City Clerk 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO.    

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 58, “LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE”, 
ARTICLE III, “ZONING” AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP SO 
AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF SINGLE 
FAMILY (R-1A) DISTRICT AND PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC (PQP) 
DISTRICT TO OFFICE (O-2) DISTRICT ON THE PROPERTIES 
AT 216, 226 AND 234 WEST LYMAN AVENUE, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
 
WHEREAS, the owner of the property more particularly described herein has requested 
rezoning in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, and the requested zoning will achieve 
conformance with the Comprehensive Plan future land use designation for this property, and 
such municipal zoning meets the criteria established by Chapter 166, Florida Statutes and 
pursuant to and in compliance with law, notice has been given to Orange County and to the 
public by publication in a newspaper of general circulation to notify the public of this proposed 
Ordinance and of public hearings to be held; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board and City Staff of the City of Winter Park have 
recommended approval of this Ordinance at their February 5, 2013 meeting; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Winter Park held duly noticed public hearings 
on the proposed zoning change set forth hereunder and considered findings and advice of 
staff, citizens, and all interested parties submitting written and oral comments and supporting 
data and analysis, and after complete deliberation, hereby finds the requested change 
consistent with the City of Winter Park Comprehensive Plan and that sufficient, competent, and 
substantial evidence supports the zoning change set forth hereunder; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission hereby finds that this Ordinance serves a legitimate 
government purpose and is in the best interests of the public health, safety, and welfare of the 
citizens of Winter Park, Florida.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
SECTION 1. That Chapter 58 “Land Development Code”, Article III, “Zoning” and the 

Official Zoning Map are hereby amended so as to change the existing zoning designation of 
single family (R-1A) district and public, quasi-public (PQP) district to office (O-2) district zoning 
on the properties at 216, 226 and 234 W. Lyman Avenue, subject to the implementation of a 
development agreement for the preservation of the Grant Chapel church building and said 
property being more particularly described as follows: 

 



 

 

 

Lots 1 & 2, Block 68, Revised Map of the Town of Winter Park as recorded in Plat Book 
“A”, Pages 67-72 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
Property Tax ID’s # 05-22-30-9400-68-011; 05-22-30-9400-68-012 and 05-22-30-9400-
68-021 

 
SECTION 2. Severability.  If any Section or portion of a Section of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force, or effect of any other Section or part of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 3. Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with any of the 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 4.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the effective 
date of Ordinance _________.  If Ordinance _________ or if either Section of that Ordinance 
does not become effective, then that Section or this Ordinance shall be null and void. 
 

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of Winter Park, 
Florida, held in City Hall, Winter Park, on this _____ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
  
         
 Mayor                                     
Attest: 
 
  
City Clerk 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Jeff Briggs 
City of Winter Park, Florida 
401 Park Avenue South 
Winter Park, Florida 32789 
 
Return to:  Cindy Bonham, City Clerk 
City of Winter Park, Florida 
401 Park Avenue South 
Winter Park, Florida 32789 
 

 
GRANT CHAPEL AGREEMENT 

 

THIS GRANT CHAPEL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this __ day of ___________, 2013, 

between the CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA, a Florida municipality (“City”), whose address is 

City Hall, 401 Park Avenue South, Winter Park, Florida 32789, and Morney Partnership, Ltd, A 

Florida Limited Partnership, (“Owner”) whose address is Post Office Box 350, Winter Park, Florida 

32790: 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and Owner desire to preserve the historic Grant Chapel building in order 

to preserve the history and heritage of the Hannibal Square community and to provide for a useful and 

adaptive reuse of that historic structure, by relocating the Grant Chapel church building from 301 West 

New England Avenue to 216, 224 and 234 W. Lyman Avenue, referred to as the “Property”, more 

particularly described as: 

Lots 1 & 2, Block 68, Revised Map of the Town of Winter Park as recorded in Plat Book “A”, 
Pages 67-72 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
Property Tax ID’s # 05-22-30-9400-68-011; 05-22-30-9400-68-012 and 05-22-30-9400-68-021 
 

 WHEREAS, the City has agreed to process a rezoning for the Property at 216, 224 and 234 W. 

Lyman Avenue to Office (O-2) so that, should the rezoning be approved, the Grant Chapel church 

building may be relocated to that site and be used by Owner for economic return in accordance with the 

zoning regulations, and 



 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owner has made a commitment to relocate the Grant Chapel church building 

within two (2) years of the date of the approval of the rezoning, if approved, and has further committed 

to the preservation of the Grant Chapel church structure, and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 227 West New England Avenue bearing Orange County 

Parcel ID # 05-22-30-9400-40-321 and described as TOWN OF WINTER PARK A/67 & B/86 & MISC 

BOOK 3/220 BEG 54.8 FT W OF SE COR OF BLK 40 RUN N 42 FT W 5 FT N 33 FT W 75.2 FT S 

75 FT E 80.2 FT TO POB IN SEC SEE 3566/27 (the “227 Property”), has the benefit of a variance 

previously granted by the City whereby additional parking spaces required by the City to accommodate 

the addition of 650 square feet of office space by enclosure of porch space (the “Off-site Parking”) were 

permitted to be located more than 300 feet away from the 227 Property, 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to release the 227 Property from the requirement to maintain 

three (3) off-site parking spaces on the property at 234 W. Lyman Avenue in order to allow the 227 

Property to maintain its current totals of enclosed, patio, porch and other square footage without the 

need for any off-site parking. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, the parties 

agree as follows: 

1. The City agrees to process the rezoning requested for the adaptive reuse of the Grant Chapel 

building. The City agrees to release the 227 Property from the requirement to maintain three 

(3) off-site parking spaces on the property at 234 W. Lyman Avenue for the 227 Property as 

set forth below. 

2. The Owner agrees to undertake within two (2) years of the date of this Agreement, to 

relocate and move the Grant Chapel building structure to the Property.  Should the relocation 

not occur within the two (2) years, then the Owner agrees to apply and consent to a rezoning 

of the Property back to the zoning designations in place prior to this Agreement.  

3. Owner voluntarily agrees that upon completion of the move, the Property and Grant Chapel 

church building shall be listed as a historic landmark property, and governed by Chapter 58, 

Land Development Code and the Winter Park Historic Preservation Commission.  As such, 

the Owner will not demolish or alter the Grant Chapel church building structure in 

architectural style and integrity without the consent of the City.  

4. The City agrees to release the 227 Property from the requirement to maintain three (3) off-

site parking spaces on the property at 234 W. Lyman Avenue for the 227 Property based on 

the current enclosed square footage of the 227 Property.  



 

 

 

5. BINDING EFFECT: This Agreement shall be binding upon Owner and its successors and 

assigns in interest and all other parties acquiring any interest in the Property, and shall inure 

to the benefit of the City, and shall run with the land. 

6. AUTHORITY:  Each party represents and warrants to the other that it has all necessary 

power and authority to enter into and consummate the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and that all acts, approvals, procedures and similar matters required in order to 

authorize this Agreement have been taken or followed, as the case may be, and that upon 

execution of this Agreement by both parties, this Agreement shall be valid and binding upon 

the parties hereto and their successors in interest. 

7.  GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.  

8. SEVERABILITY:  If any provisions of this Agreement are found to be illegal or 

invalid, the other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

9. RECITATIONS:  The Recitals are hereby incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

10. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:  This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to 
anyone other than the City and Owner and has no third-party beneficiaries. 

11.     NOTICES:  Any notices required or permitted to be made or given to either party 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered as follows with notice 
deemed given as indicated:  (i) by personal delivery when delivered personally; (ii) by overnight 
courier upon written notification of receipt; or (iii) by email or facsimile transmission upon 
acknowledgment of receipt of electronic transmission. 

12. SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE:  The parties hereto shall have the right to enforce the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement by an action for specific performance. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed as of 

the date and year first above written. 

 

 

OWNER: 

Morney Partnership, Ltd., a Limited  
Partnership 
Post Office Box 350 
Winter Park, Florida 32790 
Attn: Daniel B. Bellows 



 

 

 

Vice President 
Telephone:______________________ 
Fax:  

CITY: 

City of Winter Park 
401 South Park Avenue 
Winter Park, Florida 32789 
Attn:  City Manager 
Telephone: 407-599-3277 
Fax:_407-599-3436________________ 

 

With a Copy to: 

Usher L. Brown, Esquire 
Brown, Garganese, Weiss & D’Agresta 
111 N. Orange Avenue, Suite 2000 
Orlando, Florida 32802 
Telephone: 407-425-9566 
Fax: 407-425-9596 
 
 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA 
in the presence of :  A municipal corporation 
 
___________________________                           By: ____________________________ 

Signature___________________________          It’s Mayor_______________________ 

Print Name                                                               Date Executed:___________________ 

___________________________ 

Signature 

___________________________ 

Print Name 

 
 

 
Morney Partnership, Ltd, a Florida Limited 
Partnership  

 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
       Morney GP Corporation, its general    
     partner 



 

 

 

       Daniel B. Bellows, Vice President 
Signature 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
Print Name 

Date Executed: _________________ 
 

___________________________ 
Signature 
___________________________ 
Print Name 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
Acknowledged before me this                   day of                         2013, by  Daniel B. Bellows as Vice 
President of Morney GP Corporation,  who is personally known to me or has produced       (type of 
identification) as identification.  

 
 
Notary Public, State of Florida  
 
 
Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of 
Notary Public 
        
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
Acknowledged before me this                   day of                         2013, by Kenneth Bradley as Mayor of 
the City of Winter Park, Florida, a municipal corporation, who is personally known to me or has 
produced                                                            (type of identification) as identification and he 
acknowledged that he executed the above document for the City.     

 
 
 
Notary Public, State of Florida  
 
 
Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of 
Notary Public 
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subject 
 

Ravaudage Community Development District 

 

motion | recommendation 
 

Approve the petition by Benjamin Partners, Ltd., for the Ravaudage Community Development District, 

subject to the boundaries outlined in the petition(1st reading) 

 

summary 
 

Benjamin Partners, Ltd., a Florida limited partnership has petitioned the Winter Park City 

Commission for approval of Community Development District (CDD), pursuant to the “Uniform 

Community Development District Act of 1980”, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  This petition is a 

request for the City Commission to adopt an ordinance establishing a CDD on the property outlined 

in the petition. 

 

The Ravaudage project, highlighted in the petition encompasses about 46 acres of land on the 

northwest corner of Lee Road and U.S. 17-92.  The project was approved by Orange County 

Commission as a Planned Development mixed use development.  The entitlements  include: 

 

 489 Residential units 

 323,100 square feet of retail 

 891,000 square feet of office 

 320 room hotel 

 

Staff’s analysis shows that the anticipated taxable value of this project at buildout is estimated at 

$197 million.  For the CDD analysis, the developer anticipates a three year buildout. 

 

This project was annexed into the city in November, 2012 and the City Commission accepted the        

entitlements approved by Orange County Board of County Commissioners with the annexation.  

Recently, the first restaurant opened on the property as well as the first phase of the infrastructure 

improvements which include the fountain and pavilion features.    

 

The City Commission held a workshop on March 18, 2013 and reviewed the CDD petition.  The 

additional information requested at that meeting including the evaluation of similar projects is 

presently being developed and will be distributed separately from this agenda package.   

 

 

 

Regular Meeting 
 

3:30 p.m. 
January 11, 2010 

Commission Chambers 

Regular Meeting 
 

3:30 p.m. 
January 11, 2010 

Commission Chambers 

Public Hearing 

Dori Stone 

Economic Development/CRA 

EDAB 

March 25, 2013 

6-0 



 

 

 

Community Development District – Background 

 

As defined by Chapter 190.003(6), a CDD is defined as: 

 
“a local unit of special-purpose government which is created pursuant to this act and limited to the 

performance of those specialized functions authorized by this act; the governing head of which is a 

body created, organized, and constituted and authorized to function specifically as prescribed in 

this act for the purpose of the delivery of urban community development services; and the 

formation, powers, governing body, operation, duration, accountability, requirements for 

disclosure, and termination of which are as required by general law.” 

 

Districts are run by a five member Board of Supervisors. These individuals will serve as the 

governing board of the District.  The Board will transition over time to residents and property 

owners once the development takes place. 

 

CDDs have a number of powers as special districts under their authority.  These are defined by 

Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, but include the right to borrow money, raise money through user 

fees or special assessments or buy, lease or take lands within the district boundaries.   

 

Ravaudage CDD Application 

 

The petitioner requests the creation of a CDD for several purposes. These include: 

 

 Providing a governmental entity responsible for delivering public services and facilities in a  

manner   that does not financially impact the residents and businesses outside the District; 

 The landowners within the District will bear the cost of finding the public improvements 

necessary to develop the land within the district; 

  The Act authorizes a CDD to acquire infrastructure improvements previously constructed by 

the Petitioner or other parties and allows the CDD to construct these improvements; 

provides for the timing of funds to be available and compatible with the timing of the 

construction and acquisition of infrastructure improvements that directly benefit the 

development of the project;  

 Establishes a CDD in conjunction with a comprehensively planned community allowing for 

the more efficient use of resources as well as providing directly for new growth to pay for 

itself; and 

 Creates a perpetual entity capable of making reasonable provisions for the operation and 

maintenance of many of the district services and facilities. 

 

It is anticipated that, if created, this CDD would have all the rights outlined in Chapter 190, Florida 

Statutes.  These rights are restricted to the district boundaries.   

 

The Ravaudage CDD creates a governmental entity with the rights and responsibility to develop 

property within the District boundaries in a manner that encourages the redevelopment of a 

blighted area, assumes all liability for debt and has the potential to provide a positive and 

significant impact on a gateway into Winter Park. 

 

Financial Impacts 

 

The financing for the District is based on the assumption that a separate interlocal agreement 

between the city and the District addressing the generation, allocation and payment of economic 

incentive payments (EIP) from the city to the District will be approved.  The interlocal agreement 

contemplates the contribution of property tax revenue, electric franchise fees and taxes, water 

taxes and stormwater fees.  Fees generated from these revenue sources would be directly applied 

to debt service payments on infrastructure within the project.   

 

This interlocal agreement is a companion to the CDD petition.   The interlocal agreement will come 

before the City Commission for consideration on April 8, 2013. 



 

 

 

 

Consideration of the Ravaudage CDD and the companion interlocal agreement is a decision about 

the pace of economic development.  Ravaudage will develop over time and provide economic 

development and diversification of the tax base to the City.  The petitioner believes that revenue 

sharing as outlined in the interlocal agreement will speed up the pace of that economic 

development by allowing the infrastructure necessary for the development to be built sooner. 

 

Examining the CDD petition alone, staff believes that the application meets the requirements of 

Chapter 190, Florida Statutes and does not put the city in any financial risk through an approval of 

a CDD. Staff recommendation is for approval of the CDD with no additional conditions.  

 

 

 

board comments 
 

The Economic Development Advisory Board reviewed the CDD application at their meeting on 

March 19, 2013.  Much of the discussion at the Board focused on the bonding capabilities of the 

project, the amount of necessary infrastructure and the desire to see redevelopment occur in this 

area.  Based on their review of the petition, EDAB unanimously recommended approval of the CDD 

petition. 
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ORDINANCE NO. _____-13 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA 
GRANTING PETITION OF BENJAMIN PARTNERS, LTD.; 
ESTABLISHING AND NAMING THE RAVAUDAGE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 190, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; DESCRIBING AND PROVIDING THE EXTERNAL 
BOUNDARIES, THE FUNCTIONS AND THE POWERS OF THE 
DISTRICT; DESIGNATING FIVE PERSONS TO SERVE AS THE 
INITIAL MEMBERS OF THE DISTRICT'S BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Florida Legislature created and amended Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 

to provide an alternative method to finance and manage services for community development; 

and 

WHEREAS, Benjamin Partners, Ltd. ("Petitioner"), having obtained written consent to 

the establishment of the Ravaudage Park Community Development District (the "District") by 

the owners of 100 percent of the real property to be included in the District, petitioned the City 

Commission of the City of Winter Park (the "City") to enact an ordinance establishing the 

District pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Petitioner is a Florida limited partnership authorized to conduct business in 

the State of Florida, and Petitioner’s principal place of business is 558 W. New England Avenue, 

Winter Park, Florida  32789; and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing has been conducted by the City on April 8, 2013 at the 

Winter Park City Hall in accordance with the requirements and procedures of Section 

190.005(1)(d) and (2)(b), Florida Statutes, and the applicable requirements and procedures of the 

City’s Charter and Code of Ordinances; all interested persons and affected units of general-
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purpose local government were afforded an opportunity to present oral and written comments on 

the Petition at said duly noticed public hearing; and  

WHEREAS, upon consideration of the Petition, the record and hearing, the City 

determined that the statements within the Petition were true and correct, that the establishment of 

the District is not inconsistent with any applicable element or portion of the state comprehensive 

plan or the City’s comprehensive plan, that the land within the District is of sufficient size, is 

sufficiently compact, and sufficiently contiguous to be developable as a functionally interrelated 

community, that the District is the best alternative available for delivering community 

development services and facilities to the area served by the District, that the community 

development services and facilities of the District will not be incompatible with the capacity and 

uses of existing local and regional community development services and facilities, and that the 

area to be served by the District is amenable to separate special-district governance; and  

WHEREAS, establishment of the District satisfies the requirements of Chapter 190, 

Florida Statutes, and will constitute a timely, efficient, effective, responsive, and economic way 

to deliver community development services in the area described, thereby providing a solution to 

the City’s planning, management and financing needs for delivery of capital infrastructure 

therein without overburdening the City and its taxpayers.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA:  

SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY.  This Ordinance is enacted in compliance with and 

pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida 

Statutes. 
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SECTION 2.  FINDINGS.  The foregoing recitals and findings are true and correct and 

are incorporated herein, adopted, and made a part hereof.   

SECTION 3.  GRANT OF PETITION.  The Petition to establish the Ravaudage 

Community Development District, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

incorporated herein, over the real property described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, is hereby 

granted; said Petition having been initially filed by Petitioner with the Office of the City Clerk on 

February 25, 2013 and a revised version re-filed on March 13, 2013,. 

SECTION 4.  DISTRICT NAME.  There is hereby created a community development 

district situated entirely within incorporated Winter Park, Florida, which District shall be known 

as the "Ravaudage Community Development District."  

SECTION 5.  EXTERNAL BOUNDARIES OF THE DISTRICT.  The external 

boundaries of the District are described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto. The District, overall, 

contains 45.8 acres, more or less.  

SECTION 6.  FUNCTIONS AND POWERS.  The functions and powers of the District 

are described as the general powers in Section 190.011, and as the special powers in Section 

190.012(1), Section 190.012(2)(a), Section 190.012(2)(d), and Section 190.012(2)(f), Florida 

Statutes, and such special powers and related statutory provisions are more fully set forth in 

Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 7.  EMINENT DOMAIN; EXCLUDED PARCELS.  Notwithstanding 

anything contained herein, the District, in accordance with Section 190.011(11), Florida Statutes, 

shall not exercise the power of eminent over the real property designated as the “Excluded 

Parcels” within Exhibit 2 of the Petition attached hereto without prior approval by resolution of 

the City. 
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SECTION 8.  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.  The five persons designated to serve as 

initial members of the District's Board of Supervisors are as follows:  

Name     Address 
  

 a) Daniel B. Bellows  P.O. Box 350 
     Winter Park, Florida  32790-0350 
 
b) Robert P. Saltsman  P.O. Box 2146 
     Winter Park, Florida  32790-2146  
  
c) Patrick J. Knight  1900 E. Adams Drive 

    Maitland, Florida  32751 
  
d) Javier Omana   1027 Stetson Street 
     Orlando, Florida  32804 
  
e) Glen S. Jaffee   391 W. Trotters Drive 

      Maitland, Florida  32751 

 All of the above-listed persons are residents of the State of Florida and citizens of the 

United States of America.  

 SECTION 9.  OBLIGATIONS OF DISTRICT.  No bond, debt or other obligation of the 

District, nor any default thereon, shall constitute a debt or obligation or burden of the City.  

SECTION 10.  SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Ordinance is held to be illegal 

or invalid, the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.  

SECTION 11.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 

its final passage. 

 

 

[Signature page to follow.] 
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CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO ORDINANCE   -13 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  ____________________, 2013. 

READ SECOND TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD:  ________________, 2013. 

PASSED and ENACTED this _____ day of _______________________, 2013. 

 
 
      CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA  
 
 
 
             
     Mayor Kenneth W. Bradley 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
City Clerk Cynthia Bonham 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

PETITION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
 
 
A PORTION HOME ACRES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 
"M", PAGE 97, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND A PART OF SECTION 1, 
TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 29 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

  
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 
22 SOUTH, RANGE 29 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN SOUTH 01°40'06"W  30.01 FEET TO 
THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF MONROE AVENUE AND THE 
CENTERLINE OF BENNETT AVENUE; SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;  THENCE 
CONTINUE S 01°40'06"W ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF AFORESAID BENNETT AVENUE A 
DISTANCE OF 100.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTERLINE OF BENNETT 
AVENUE AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2, BLOCK "O", HOME 
ACRES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK M, PAGE 97 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN N 90°00'00"E A DISTANCE OF 
143.71 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE N 00°22'31"E ALONG THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 2 A DISTANCE OF 12.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 14, 
BLOCK "O", OF SAID HOME ACRES; THENCE N 90°00'00"E ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 
14, THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 6, BLOCK "P", AND THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 11, BLOCK "P", SAID 
HOME ACRES, A DISTANCE OF 431.30 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 11, 
BLOCK "P", SAID POINT LYING ON THE WEST LINE OF LEWIS DRIVE; THENCE S 00°05'24"W 
ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 360.00 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID WEST LINE 
OF LEWIS DRIVE WITH THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 10, BLOCK "K", 
SAID HOME ACRES, THENCE, THENCE N 90°00'00"E ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION A 
DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 10, BLOCK "K", SAID POINT 
BEING ON THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AFORESAID LEWIS DRIVE; THENCE S 00°05'24"W 
ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF LEWIS DRIVE A DISTANCE OF 200.00 FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 7, BLOCK K; THENCE N 90°00'00"E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF 
SAID LOT 7 A DISTANCE OF 132.50 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 15, BLOCK K; 
THENCE S 00°05'24"W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 15 A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET; 
THENCE N 90°00'00"E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 15 AND EASTERLY EXTENSION 
THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 182.50 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BENJAMIN 
AVENUE; THENCE S 00°05'24"W ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BENJAMIN AVENUE A 
DISTANCE OF 255.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE  OF GLENDON PARKWAY AS IT NOW 
EXISTS; THENCE N 90°00'00"E ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 187.50 
FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ORLANDO AVENUE (STATE ROAD 
15 & 600);  SAID POINT BEING A POINT ON A CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 5676.65 FEET, A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02°43'16" AND A CHORD THAT BEARS S 01°16'50"E; THENCE RUN 
SOUTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE A DISTANCE OF 269.61 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
TANGENCY; THENCE RUN S 00°04'48"W  ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 803.10 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
WITH THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF LEE ROAD; (STATE ROAD NO. 438); THENCE RUN 



 

 

ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:  S 
67°42'20"W,  36.68 FEET; S 89°45'12"W,  124.55 FEET; S 81°01'12"W,  34.71 FEET; N 00°04'22"W,  
11.27 FEET;  S 89°45'12"W, 385.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF LEWIS 
DRIVE; THENCE N 00°04'22"W ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY OF LEWIS DRIVE A DISTANCE OF 
213.88 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 7, BLOCK C, HOME ACRES; THENCE S 
90°00'00"W ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 7 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 7; 
THENCE N 00°04'22"W ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 15, 16 AND 17, BLOCK C, A DISTANCE OF 
150.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 15; THENCE S 90°00'00"W ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF LOT 15 A DISTANCE OF 132.50 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 
LOREN AVENUE; THENCE S 00°04'22" E ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 
365.02 FEET TO A POINT ON AFORESAID LEE ROAD; THENCE S 89°45'12"W ALONG SAID EAST 
LINE A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID LOREN AVENUE; 
THENCE N 00°04'22"W ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 115.23 FEET TO 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5, BLOCK D, HOME ACRES; THENCE S 90°00'00"W ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF LOTS 3, 4 AND 5, BLOCK D, A DISTANCE OF 153.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID LOT 3; THENCE S 00°04'22"E ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 3, A 
DISTANCE OF 115.56 FEET TO A POINT ON AFORESAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF LEE 
ROAD; THENCE  S 89°45'12"W, 155.50  FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH 
LINE OF LEE ROAD AND THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF  BENNETT AVENUE; THENCE 
NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 1,534 FEET MORE OR 
LESS; TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PARK GREEN; ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 10, PAGE 90, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE RUN N 89°58'47"W A DISTANCE OF 491.91 FEET; THENCE N 00°07'54"E A DISTANCE OF 
186.84 FEET; THENCE S 89°56'22"E A DISTANCE OF 191.75 FEET; THENCE N 00°07'54"E A 
DISTANCE OF 320.55 FEET; THENCE N 89°53'51"E A DISTANCE OF 49.46 FEET; THENCE N 
00°12'06"E A DISTANCE OF 103.89 FEET TO THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AFORESAID 
MONROE AVENUE; THENCE N 90°00'00"E ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE 
OF 295.57 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.   

 
LESS THE FOLLOWING: 

 
LOT 15, BLOCK "B, HOME ACRES ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 
"M", PAGE 97, IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 
LOTS 10, 11 AND 17, BLOCK "F", AND VACATED RIGHT OF WAY NORTH OF LOTS 10 AND 11, AND 
EAST OF LOT 11; HOME ACRES ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 
"M", PAGE 97, IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 
LOT 1, BLOCK "H", HOME ACRES ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 
"M", PAGE 97, IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 
LOTS 11, 12 AND 16, BLOCK "L", AND VACATED RIGHT OF WAY EAST OF LOT 16, BLOCK "L"; AND 
THE NORTH 1/2 OF LOT 13, BLOCK "L", HOME ACRES ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK "M", PAGE 97, IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA. 

 



 

 

LOT 14, THE NORTH 25 FEET OF LOT 4, THE SOUTH 37.5 FEET OF LOT 5, AND THE SOUTH 16.67 
FEET OF LOT 13, BLOCK "P"; HOME ACRES ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN 
PLAT BOOK "M", PAGE 97, IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 
ALSO LESS: 

 
A PORTION HOME ACRES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 
"M", PAGE 97, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
COMMENCE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BENJAMIN AVENUE, 
WITH THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NO. 438 (LEE ROAD), AS SHOWN ON 
THE STATE OF FLORIDA, STATE ROAD DEPARTMENT RIGHT OF WAY MAP, SECTION 75190-2502, 
SHEET 34 OF 42; THENCE RUN N.00°04'22"W. ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 
BENJAMIN AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 21.00 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING;  THENCE RUN 
N.00°04'22"W. DISTANCE OF 143.39 FEET; THENCE RUN N.89°45'12"E. A DISTANCE OF 137.00 
FEET; THENCE S.00°04'22"E. A DISTANCE OF 143.39 FEET; THENCE RUN S.89°45'12"W. A 
DISTANCE OF 137.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 
ALL OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY CONTAINS 45.8 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 
STATUTORY PROVISIONS RELATING TO SPECIAL POWERS 
 
 
SECTIONS 190.012(1), 190.012(2)(a), 190.012(2)(d) and 190.012(2)(f) – SPECIAL POWERS; 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES. 
 
“The district shall have, and the board may exercise, subject to the regulatory jurisdiction and 
permitting authority of all applicable governmental bodies, agencies, and special districts having 
authority with respect to any area included therein, any or all of the following special powers 
relating to public improvements and community facilities authorized by this act: 
 
(1) To finance, fund, plan, establish, acquire, construct or reconstruct, enlarge or extend, equip, 
operate, and maintain systems, facilities, and basic infrastructures for the following: 

(a) Water management and control for the lands within the district and to connect some 
or any of such facilities with roads and bridges. 

(b) Water supply, sewer, and wastewater management, reclamation, and reuse or any 
combination thereof, and to construct and operate connecting intercepting or outlet sewers and 
sewer mains and pipes and water mains, conduits, or pipelines in, along, and under any street, 
alley, highway, or other public place or ways, and to dispose of any effluent, residue, or other 
byproducts of such system or sewer system. 

(c) Bridges or culverts that may be needed across any drain, ditch, canal, floodway, 
holding basin, excavation, public highway, tract, grade, fill, or cut and roadways over levees and 
embankments, and to construct any and all of such works and improvements across, through, or 
over any public right-of-way, highway, grade, fill, or cut. 

(d) 
1. District roads equal to or exceeding the applicable specifications of the 

county in which such district roads are located; roads and improvements to existing 
public roads that are owned by or conveyed to the local general-purpose government, the 
state, or the Federal Government; street lights; alleys; landscaping; hardscaping; and the 
undergrounding of electric utility lines. Districts may request the underground placement 
of utility lines by the local retail electric utility provider in accordance with the utility’s 
tariff on file with the Public Service Commission and may finance the required 
contribution. 

2. Buses, trolleys, transit shelters, ridesharing facilities and services, parking 
improvements, and related signage. 
(e) Investigation and remediation costs associated with the cleanup of actual or 

perceived environmental contamination within the district under the supervision or direction of a 
competent governmental authority unless the covered costs benefit any person who is a 
landowner within the district and who caused or contributed to the contamination. 

(f) Conservation areas, mitigation areas, and wildlife habitat, including the maintenance 
of any plant or animal species, and any related interest in real or personal property. 

(g) Any other project within or without the boundaries of a district when a local 
government issued a development order pursuant to s. 380.06 or s. 380.061 approving or 



 

 

expressly requiring the construction or funding of the project by the district, or when the project 
is the subject of an agreement between the district and a governmental entity and is consistent 
with the local government comprehensive plan of the local government within which the project 
is to be located. 

(h) Any other project, facility, or service required by a development approval, interlocal 
agreement, zoning condition, or permit issued by a governmental authority with jurisdiction in 
the district. 

 
(2) After the local general-purpose government within the jurisdiction of which a power 
specified in this subsection is to be exercised consents to the exercise of such power by the 
district, the district shall have the power to plan, establish, acquire, construct or reconstruct, 
enlarge or extend, equip, operate, and maintain additional systems and facilities for: 

(a) Parks and facilities for indoor and outdoor recreational, cultural, and educational 
uses. 

(b)  … 
(c)  … 
(d) Security, including, but not limited to, guardhouses, fences and gates, electronic 

intrusion-detection systems, and patrol cars, when authorized by proper governmental agencies; 
except that the district may not exercise any police power, but may contract with the appropriate 
local general-purpose government agencies for an increased level of such services within the 
district boundaries. 

(e)  … 
(f) Waste collection and disposal.” 

 
 
ALL AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 190.012, FLORIDA STATUTES (2012). 





 

 

 

 

subject 
 

Discussion of interlocal agreement between the City of Winter Park and the Ravaudage CDD 

 

motion | recommendation 
 

N/A 

 

background 
 

The Ravaudage CDD is interested in construction, maintaining and operating public capital 

infrastructure necessary in redeveloping the property located at in the northwest corner of Lee 

Road and US 17-92.  To speed up the timing of these improvements, the District is asking the 

city to enter into an interlocal agreement that shares a portion of certain revenues generated 

by the project with the District through the creation of an economic incentive payment (EIP).   

 

This agreement sets out the sources of the revenue, the percentages and the terms of the 

city’s participation.  Staff also prepared a complete financial analysis of the CDD and interlocal 

agreement projections which are included in this packet.   

 

 

alternatives | other considerations 
 

 

fiscal impact 
 

 

 

long-term impact 
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Interlocal Agt 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 
 
 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of the _____ 
day of March, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), is entered into by and between the City of 
Winter Park, Florida, a municipal corporation (the “City”), and the Ravaudage 
Community Development District, a community development district created pursuant to 
the provisions of Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and its successors and assigns 
(“District”).1 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is an independent special district and local unit of 
special-purpose government which was created pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes (the “Act”), and is limited to the performance of those specialized functions 
authorized by the Act and the applicable City ordinance establishing the District (the 
“Ordinance”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ordinance and the Act, the District is authorized to 
construct, acquire and maintain infrastructure improvements and services set forth in 
Section 190.012(1), Florida Statutes, for which the District may impose, levy and collect 
non-ad valorem special assessments on land within the respective boundaries of the 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to facilitate the redevelopment of certain land 
located within the boundaries of the District (the “Project”) and adjacent areas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties desires to establish intergovernmental relations that 
encourage, promote and improve the coordination, overall effectiveness and efficiency 
of governmental activities and services in and around the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the experienced developer of the Project (the “Developer”) desires 
to construct a high quality, use mixed-use development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project is expected to attract high quality tenants and to act as a 
catalyst for high quality redevelopment in the City, thus significantly benefiting the area’s 
economy and its citizens; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District shall construct, maintain and operate public capital 
infrastructure necessary for the redevelopment of the Project; and 

                                            
1
  This Agreement is conditioned upon the subsequent consideration and approval by the City of a 

lawful petition to establish the District, and further is subject to the condition that the District is established 
by municipal ordinance in accordance with the requirements of Florida law.  If the Ravaudage Community 
Development District, or another governmental entity acceptable to the City, is not created as required by 
Florida law, then that condition fails and this Interlocal Agreement shall be deemed canceled and of no 
effect. 
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 WHEREAS, construction and operation of the Project is further expected to 
stimulate economic development within the City and to materially benefit the City and its 
residents for many reasons, including but not limited to the increased direct and indirect 
funds that will be received from ad valorem tax revenue, sales tax revenue, gas tax 
revenue, utility tax revenue, development tax revenue and other fees and charges; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has agreed to share with the District a portion of certain 
revenues derived by the City from the Project to provide an economic incentive for the 
construction, development, operation and maintenance of the public capital 
infrastructure through economic incentive payments ("EIP") to the District under the 
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City hereby legislatively determines that the EIP is an 
advantageous means of inducing construction of the Project and which will serve a valid 
and paramount public purpose in that: (i) construction of the Project will directly promote 
the economy of the City; (ii) the Project will further the development of residential, 
commercial, retail, entertainment and office activities, thereby providing a more 
balanced and stable area economy and increased opportunities for gainful employment; 
(iii) construction of the Project will stimulate redevelopment in the City; and (iv) all EIP 
funds will be used for the described public purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, construction of the public capital infrastructure is a valid and 
important public purpose in light of the need to redevelop the Project site, and the City is 
authorized to share City funds to provide an economic incentive to preserve and 
enhance the tax base of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in the event the District  cannot or will not accept all or a portion of 
the EIP for the purposes set forth herein, the City agrees to consent to the assignment 
of all or a portion of this Agreement to another legally authorized entity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, known as the “Florida Interlocal 
Cooperation Act of 1969” (hereinafter, the “Cooperation Act”), permits local 
governmental units to make the most efficient use of their powers by enabling them to 
cooperate with other localities on a basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide 
services and facilities in a manner and pursuant to forms of governmental organization 
that will accord best with geographic, economic, population, and other factors 
influencing the needs and development of local communities, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the District find this Interlocal Agreement to be 
necessary, proper and convenient to the exercise of their powers, duties and purposes 
authorized by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the District desire to exercise jointly their common 
powers and authority concerning the installation, construction and maintenance of the 
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Project and the clarification of responsibilities, obligations, duties, powers and liabilities 
of each of the governmental bodies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Interlocal Agreement shall serve as an “agreement between the 
District and a governmental entity” allowed by Section 190.012(g) of the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project is consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual understandings and 
covenants set forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the District agree as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE 1 
AUTHORITY 

 
 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the provisions of the Cooperation Act, 
the Home Rule Act, the Uniform Act and other applicable provisions of law. 
 
 

ARTICLE 2 
RECITALS 

 
 The Recitals are true and correct and by this reference are incorporated into and 
form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE 3 
DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION 

 
 Section 3.01. Definitions. 
 
 The following terms when used in capitalized form herein shall have the 
respective meaning indicated below unless the context shall clearly indicate otherwise. 
 
 "Agreement" means this Interlocal Agreement, including any amendments and 
supplements hereto executed and delivered in accordance with the terms hereof. 
 
 “Benefit Determination Year” means the calendar year in which a Project 
Component received a Certificate of Occupancy. 
 
 “Certificate of Occupancy” means the certificate of occupancy granted by the 
City allowing use and occupancy of a building, or such similar certificate as the City may 
substitute from time to time. 
 
 “City” means the City of Winter Park, Florida, a municipal corporation. 
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 “Completed” means the time a Project Component receives a Certificate of 
Occupancy. 
 
 “Cooperation Act” means Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, known and referred 
to as the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969. 
 
 “District” means the Ravaudage Community Development District, a local unit 
of special purpose government established pursuant to the Uniform Act. 
 
 “EIP” or “Economic Incentive Payment” means a payment of funds pursuant 
to this Agreement from the City to the District. 
 
 
 “Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on October 1 of each year and 
continuing through the next succeeding September 30, or such other period as may be 
prescribed by law as the fiscal year for the City. 
 
 “Home Rule Act” means Chapter 166, Part I, Florida Statutes, known and 
referred to as the Municipal Home Rule Powers Act. 
 
 “Non-Ad Valorem Funds” means all revenue of the City derived from any 
source whatsoever other than ad valorem taxation on real or personal property, which is 
legally available to make the payments required herein, but only after provision has 
been made by the City to pay for services and programs which are necessary for 
essential public purposes affecting the health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of 
the City or which are legally mandated by applicable law. 
 
 “Progress Report” means an annual report generated and certified by the 
District Engineer and provided to the City by March 31 of each year summarizing the 
volume of Completed Project Components for the previous Benefit Determination Year. 
 
 “Project Component” means any one of the parts of the Project’s development 
program. 
 
 “Uniform Act” means Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended. 
 
 Section 3.02. Construction. 
 
 (A) Words importing the singular number shall include the plural in each case 
and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms and corporations. The 
terms “herein,” “hereunder,” “hereby,” “hereto,” “hereof,” and any similar terms, shall 
refer to this Agreement; the term “heretofore” shall mean before the date this 
Agreement is executed; and the term “hereafter” shall mean after the date this 
Agreement is executed. 
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 (B) Each recital, covenant, agreement, representation and warranty made by 
a party herein shall be deemed to have been material and to have been relied on by the 
other party to this Agreement. All parties have participated in the drafting and 
preparation of this Agreement, and the provisions hereof shall not be construed for or 
against any party by reason of authorship. 
 
 Section 3.03. Section Headings. 
 
 Any headings preceding the texts of the several Articles and Sections of this 
Agreement and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, 
shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall neither constitute a part of this 
Agreement nor affect its meaning, construction or effect. 
 
 

ARTICLE 4 
PURPOSE AND POWERS 

 
 Section 4.01. Goals and Objectives. 
 
 The City’s goals and objectives are the efficient provision of municipal services 
and the establishment and maintenance of a high quality municipal environment in 
accordance with the municipal policies and laws, as embodied in the Charter of the City 
of Winter Park and in its Code of Ordinances.  The goals and objectives of the District 
consist of the construction, maintenance and operation of public infrastructure and 
improvements within the District and the achievement of those purposes outlined and 
permitted in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  
 
 Section 4.02. District Powers. 
 
 The District may exercise any and all powers granted pursuant to that certain 
Ordinance of the City establishing the District.  The Ordinance establishing the District 
shall be incorporated herein by reference.  Additionally, unless expressly allowed by an 
applicable provision in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, the Ordinance establishing the 
District,  the provisions of this Interlocal Agreement or the land use approvals for the 
property within the District, the conduct and operations of the District shall be subject to 
the City of Winter Park’s Municipal Code of Ordinances and the general police power of 
the City. 
 
 Section 4.03. Representations and Warranties. 
 
 The City and the District each hereby represent and warrant to each other that it 
has all the requisite power, authority and authorization to enter into this Agreement, has 
taken all necessary actions required to enter into this Agreement, to take any actions 
contemplated hereby, and to fulfill any and all of its obligations, duties and 
responsibilities provided for or required of it by this Agreement, whether exercised 
individually or collectively. The City and the District each have complied with all 
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applicable requirements of law and has the full power and authority to comply with the 
terms and provisions of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be deemed to be and 
shall constitute a valid and binding contract between the City and the District.  
Notwithstanding this Section 4.03, the City and the District shall each reserve their 
governmental powers, and this Agreement shall not limit the future governmental and 
discretionary decisions that may be made by the City Commission of the City of Winter 
Park or the Board of Supervisors of the District. 
 
 

ARTICLE 5 
ECONOMIC INCENTIVE PAYMENTS OR EIP 

 
 Section 5.01. The Project. 
 
 The City agrees that the Project is a mixed-use development presently projected 
and planned to have the following private components:  
 

 

Land Use Unit Qty. 

Residential du 489 

Retail sf 323,100 

Office sf 891,000 

Hotel rooms 320 

   

 
The District intends to construct, acquire, own and/or operate and maintain (or dedicate 
to the City) the public infrastructure for the Project, as well as  transportation 
improvements, garages, public parks, recreational facilities and the like. 
 
 Section 5.02. Calculation of EIP. 
 
 The value of EIP for each Fiscal Year shall be computed in the manner set forth 
in this Section 5.02. 
 
 (A) Construction of the Project and its various components as described in 
Section 5.01, as supported by the District’s publicly funded capital infrastructure, is 
projected to generate substantial economic benefits to the City. EIP will be made by the 
City in proportion to the volume of the existing and future development located inside 
the City’s boundaries and inside the District as described below.  The valuation for 
existing development within the District shall be determined in accordance with Section 
5.04. 
 EIP will be equal to the sum of the components listed below (and any other taxes 
levied by the City pursuant to Chapters 161, 202 and 206 Florida Statutes (or similar 
state law) and franchise fees: 
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1) An amount from the City’s general fund equal to a percentage of the 
increase in the City’s annual ad valorem property tax revenue attributable to the 
Project’s development and collected from properties located within the District. 
Such property tax increment shall be determined annually and shall be that 
amount equal to seventy-five percent (75%) (for the first full five years after the 
establishment of the District, changing to fifty percent (50%) thereafter) of the 
difference between: 

 
a. The amount of ad valorem taxes levied each year by the City, 
exclusive of any amount from any debt service millage, on taxable real 
property contained within the geographic boundaries of the District and 
subject to the jurisdiction of the District; and 
 
b. The amount of ad valorem taxes which would have been produced by 
the rate upon which the tax is levied each year by the City, exclusive of 
any debt service millage, upon the total of the assessed value of the 
taxable real property in the District as shown upon the most recent 
assessment roll used in connection with the taxation of such property by 
the City prior to the effective date of this Agreement. 
c.  Nothing herein shall require the City to establish a particular rate of 
millage except as provided or required by general law or previously 
existing bond covenants unrelated to District bonds. 

 
2) An amount equal to 1/2 of the City’s 6% public service tax for electric 

service attributable to properties contained within the geographic 
boundaries of the District and subject to the jurisdiction of the District, to 
the extent such taxes are paid to or received by the City.  

 
3) An amount equal to 1/2 of the City’s electric service franchise fee 

equivalent attributable to properties contained within the geographic 
boundaries and subject to the jurisdiction of the District. 

 
4) An amount equal to 1/2 of the City’s 10% public service tax for water 

service attributable to properties contained within the geographic 
boundaries and subject to the jurisdiction of the District, to the extent such 
taxes are paid to or received by the City.  

 
5) An amount equal to 1/2 of the City’s 10% public service tax for metered 

natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas both metered or bottled, and 
manufactured gas tax attributable to properties contained within the 
geographic boundaries of the District, to the extent such taxes are paid to 
or received by the City and it is reasonably determined that such taxes are 
generated by properties within the District.  
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6) An amount equal to 1/2 of the City’s public service tax for fuel oil, and any 
motor and other vehicle fuel taxes, attributable to properties contained 
within the geographic boundaries of the District.  

 
7) An amount equal to 1/2 of the City’s local communications services tax 

attributable to properties located contained within the geographic 
boundaries of the District. 

 
8) An amount equal to 1/2 of the City’s garbage waste franchise fee, if any 

such fee is collected by the City, from properties contained within the 
geographic boundaries and subject to the jurisdiction of the District.   

    
   

(B) In each calendar year, the District will submit a Progress Report to the City 
outlining the volume of Completed Project Components in the previous Benefit 
Determination Year, as provided in Section 5.04. 
 
 (C) The City will compute the EIP based on the Progress Report according to 
the EIP Calculation as provided in Section 5.02. 
 
 (D) The City shall provide at the time of payment each year a report outlining 
all EIP revenues identified in Sections 5.01 and 5.02 of this Agreement as generated by 
properties located within the District.  The City shall show within the report the revenues 
received per category and based upon the Progress Report submitted by the District, 
the EIP payments made as a percentage of revenues generated within the District.  The 
Finance Director for the City shall certify the accuracy of the report to the District and 
remit said report to District with a sworn statement as to the accuracy of the report.  
 
 Section 5.03. General Rules Regarding and Governing EIP and 

Obligations Related to EIP 
 
 Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, the 
following rules and provisions shall govern and control EIP: 
 

(A) The City is under no obligation to pay any revenue source as EIP unless 
the revenue source is collected by the City of Winter Park and is attributable to a 
reasonable degree of accounting certainty to economic activity or property located 
inside the District and subject to District governance.  The City is under no obligation to 
develop procedures or estimate any revenue source that is not directly accounted for in 
the ordinary course of operations with respect to a source of revenue subject to the EIP 
provisions hereof, attributable to economic activity within the District and property 
subject to the jurisdiction of the District.  The City will, however, review and accept 
reasonably reliable data provided by the District (at its own expense) as to such 
revenue sources, in cases where the City does not have such information directly 
accounted for in tis ordinary course of operations. 
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(B) In any fiscal year, notwithstanding the calculation of EIP or any other 
provision of this Agreement, the maximum amount due and payable from the City to the 
District pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement for EIP shall be the amount the District 
owes for amortized bond debt repayment  for such fiscal year, without any amount 
added as a result of default or acceleration, including  principal, interest and all fees to 
the extent allowable under state and federal law governing the issuance of such 
governmental bonds . 

 
(C) The District will be responsible to annually provide a correctly calculated 

amortization/payment schedule showing the amount due for each fiscal year for the 
repayment of Qualified Bonds issued by the District that are subject to the EIP 
provisions. 

 
(D) EIP shall only be used to make bond payments for bonds issued by the 

District for the construction of infrastructure and improvements as described in the 
Petition filed in support of the ordinance adopted by the City of Winter Park which 
established the District.  Only bonds issued to provide funds for the construction of such 
infrastructure and improvements contemplated with  the establishment of the District 
shall be subject to the Interlocal Agreement provided herein and the EIP provisions 
hereof.  Additionally, EIP will not be used to pay for improvements outside of the City of 
Winter Park.  And, EIP will only be used to make bond repayments on bonds that are 
otherwise qualified under this Agreement to finance the design and/or construction of 
entrance walls and features, walls, roads, sidewalks, landscape, lighting and utility 
infrastructure and drainage, recreational facilities, parks, parking and transportation 
improvements and such other improvements as are allowable under Chapter 190, F.S. 
and the Ordinance. The bonds described herein shall be referred to as the “Qualified 
Bonds.” 

 
(E) The annual amortization schedule provided by the District to the City will 

correctly show the amounts due in that fiscal year for the repayment of bonds issued by 
the District(such bonds being limited to a  thirty (30) year permanent amortization 
period, following a construction period of no more than three (3) years) net of  default 
charges and default interest (including but not limited to penalties and acceleration). 

 
(F) Regardless of the amount otherwise due for EIP based on the calculation 

methodology in this Agreement for EIP, the City shall not have any obligation to pay EIP 
in any fiscal year in an amount exceeding the amount due as shown in the previously 
described annual  payment schedule for such fiscal year for payment of  bonds issued 
by the District  

 
(G) The City's obligation to pay EIP shall terminate upon any of the following 

events: 
 
1) All Qualified Bonds issued by the District have been paid or otherwise 

satisfied, including by foreclosure of property subject to a bond 
assessment lien or liens. 
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. 
 
2) Upon the occurrence of any refinancing of any series of Qualified Bonds 

issued by the District unless the refinancing results in a lower annual debt 
service obligation and term of the bond(s) or final maturity date are not 
extended beyond a date more than 30 years from the date of the original 
issuance of the bonds at issue  

. 
3) Upon the occurrence of any act of restructuring, settlement or 

reamortization as between the bondholder(s), the trustee for the bonds 
and the District, unless such restructuring, settlement or reamortization 
results in a lower annual debt service obligation and the term of the bonds 
or final maturity date are not extended beyond a date more than 30 years 
(plus a construction period of up to three (3) years) from the date or the 
original issuance of the bonds at issue. 
 

Upon transference of all District services and obligations to the City or upon 
termination of the District in accordance with any of the procedures for such set 
out in Section 190.046, Florida Statutes, as that statute may be renumbered or 
amended from time to time by the Legislature. 

 
 Section 5.04. Use of EIP. 
 
 The parties acknowledge that EIP to the District by the City will be applied 
exclusively to pay, outstanding District debt, for Qualified Bonds issued by the District  
these bonds shall only be for infrastructure improvements made by the District within 
the City of Winter Park.  EIP may not be used to pay bonds or any indebtedness or 
charge on account of any improvement, asset or matter that occurs outside of the 
jurisdictional boundaries of the City.  Any improper use of EIP will be a material breach 
of this Agreement subjecting the District to damages for breach and all appropriate 
remedies under Florida law including remedies pursuant to Section 190.046, Florida 
Statutes, as that statute may be amended from time to time by the Legislature.   
 

The District may pledge EIP funds to secure District indebtedness so long as the 
indebtedness is strictly related to financing of District improvements (as limited in 
Section 5.03(D), hereinabove), Moreover, such indebtedness may only be for the 
purpose of financing the design and/or construction of improvements by the District 
inside the jurisdictional limits of the City, and any attempt to pledge EIP for 
improvements outside the jurisdictional limits of the City will be a material breach of this 
Agreement subjecting the District to all liability under Florida law, damages, and without 
limitation those remedies set forth in Section 190.046, Florida Statutes, as that statute 
may be amended from time to time. Qualified District improvements are limited to those 
infrastructure items expressly listed in Section 5.03(D), hereinabove. 
 

This Agreement does not create any right in the District or any other party to 
force or require in any manner the City to pledge, assess, levy or pay over ad valorem 
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tax revenue of the City, or to increase the ad valorem tax rate on property in the City in 
order to pay or satisfy any requirement for EIP.  Specifically, the City hereby covenants 
that it will not pledge generally its ad valorem tax revenue or taxing power pursuant to 
this Agreement, and the contract interest of the District in ad valorem tax revenue, as 
set out in Section 5.02 hereof, is subject to the District’s faithful performance of all 
conditions and obligations imposed hereunder, and is limited to seventy-five percent 
(75%) of the increase in the City’s annual ad valorem property tax revenue for 
properties located within the District and subject to the jurisdiction of the District, such 
increase being determined over the baseline for ad valorem revenues established on 
January 1, 2012 (the date of valuation for the 2012 tax year). .  The calculation of EIP in 
Section 5.02 shall not impose any obligation on the City to assess or set the millage rate 
at any particular level except to the extent that a particular rate of millage is required by 
general law or a previously existing bond covenant binding lawfully upon the City. 
 

The District may not pledge or lien any funds of the City including both non-ad 
valorem and ad valorem funds of the City, and may only pledge EIP funds for the limited 
purposes mentioned hereinabove, subject to all terms, restrictions and conditions 
provided for in this Agreement.  The District shall have no lien on any asset of the City 
and the pledge of EIP shall only constitute a pledge on the EIP actually paid over to the 
District by the City pursuant to the methodology established in this Agreement. 
The City agrees that it shall not pledge or otherwise encumber EIP that it owes to the 
District pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and pays over to the District.  
 
 Section 5.05. Annual Payment of EIP. 
 
 (A) The City's fiscal year ends on September 30 of each year.  Beginning with 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 and every year thereafter until the term of 
this Agreement is completed or the Agreement is terminated, the procedure set out 
herein shall be followed with respect to annual payment of EIP.  
 
 (B) By December 1, 2013, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2013, and 
by the first day of December in each following year with respect to succeeding fiscal 
years, the City shall report to the District the amount of EIP due the District pursuant to 
the methodology established herein. The District may provide data to the City no later 
than November 1, 2013, as provided in Section 5.03(A) 
 
 (C) The District shall have the right to audit and inspect the books and records 
of the City to confirm the accuracy of the report.  
 

(D) If the parties are in dispute concerning the accuracy of the calculation, 
then the dispute resolution procedures set out in this Agreement shall be followed.  The 
City shall pay the undisputed amount of EIP, if any, over to the District within the time 
period set out. 
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 Section 5.06. Budget Process 
 
 The parties shall employ annually the budget and appropriation process as 
required by law.  Each party shall cooperatively provide budget and appropriation 
documents upon request to the requesting party.  The parties shall work cooperatively 
during the fiscal year in projecting expenses and revenues.  Additionally, the District 
shall follow Chapter 190 requirements regarding budget adoption and disclosure/notice 
to the City. 
 
 Section 5.07. Status of City Obligation. 
 
 Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, it is understood and 
agreed that the ad valorem taxing power and the full faith and credit of the City has not 
been pledged in any manner pursuant to this Agreement.  The District has no right to 
compel the exercise of any ad valorem taxing power nor to require the setting of any 
particular rate of millage. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
AD VALOREM REVENUE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE DISTRICT 

 
 Section 6.01. Ad Valorem Taxes. 
 
 (A) For purposes of this Section 6.01, “Ad Valorem Tax Revenue” means the 
amount of revenue actually received by the City and attributable to properties inside the 
District and subject to the jurisdiction of the District during the Benefit Determination 
Year from ad valorem taxes. 
 
 (B) The amount of Ad Valorem Tax Revenue directly attributable to and 
derived solely from the Project shall be computed for each Benefit Determination Year 
as the amount of revenue actually received by the City from ad valorem taxes levied 
against the Project and deposited in or credited to the general fund, the special revenue 
fund, and the debt service fund determined from the records of the City and the County 
Tax Collector.  
 

(C) Property will only be deemed in the Project if it is located within the District 
and is subject to the jurisdiction of the District.  Moreover, all of such property must be 
located strictly within the jurisdictional limits of the City.  
 

ARTICLE 7 
MISCELLANEOUS PUBLIC FACILITY MATTERS 

 
 Section 7.01. District Facilities.   
 
 Any and all public parks, trails, playgrounds or other recreation areas and/or 
facilities, constructed, owned and/or maintained by the District (and not conveyed to the 
City or other governmental entity) shall be operated in accordance with all applicable 
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state and local laws, ordinances, regulations and code provisions, including specifically, 
but not limited to, the City of Winter Park Municipal Code which may be enforced by the 
City. 
 
 Section 7.02. City Maintenance Responsibilities.   
 
 The City shall, at its sole cost, perpetually maintain all roads and affiliated 
landscaping located in such rights-of-way within the boundaries of the District and those 
bordering on District boundaries (the “City Road Areas”) which have been dedicated to 
and accepted by the City from the District, as well as any stormwater retention ponds or 
other land or facilities dedicated to and accepted by the City (such area, together with 
the “City Road Areas,” hereinafter the “City Areas”) (the “City Maintenance”), subject to 
the conditions set forth herein.  City Maintenance of City Areas shall occur at a level, 
intensity and frequency consistent with all applicable City standards and practices (as 
those may be amended from time to time), and shall, in any event, be performed at a 
level, intensity and frequency commensurate with other City-owned properties of a 
similar nature and type.  The City’s maintenance obligation, as described herein, 
includes the right and authority to remove, or terminate the maintenance of, any 
landscaping within the City Areas, if said removal or termination of maintenance is 
consistent with City standards and policies.   
 
 Section 7.03. Additional Landscaping or Irrigation.   
 
 The District may, in its sole discretion, submit an engineer’s or other 
professional’s plan to the City describing the potential installation of additional 
landscaping, irrigation and/or other improvements within the City Areas.  The City shall, 
within thirty (30) days of the submittal, either approve the plan, reject the plan or provide 
a revised plan for the District’s consideration.  The District shall have the authority, at its 
sole cost, to install and maintain such additional improvements within the City Areas, as 
approved by the City.  Unless the parties agree otherwise, the District is responsible to 
maintain District assets including District installed improvements as descried herein.  
The performance of such additional maintenance by the District shall be completely 
within the District’s sole discretion and shall not relieve or supplant, in any way, the 
City’s obligations to maintain the City Areas. 
 
 Section 7.04. District Assessments; [Stadium Property]. 
 
 In accordance with Sec. 190.021(10), Florida Statutes, the District has the right 
to levy special assessments, either for debt service or operations and maintenance 
expenses, on property owned by a governmental entity that is subject to a ground lease 
with a remaining term of 50 years or more, but the corresponding assessment lien shall 
attach to the lessee’s leasehold interest only and shall not constitute a lien or 
encumbrance on the underlying fee interest of such governmental 
entity.  Notwithstanding such right of the District, the District agrees to forego any 
special assessment, either for debt service or operations and maintenance 
expenses,  on the [Stadium Property] so long as the total annual consideration any 
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lessee pays to City, as lessor, under any and all leases applicable to the [Stadium 
Property] remains under $100,000.  Should the total annual consideration under such 
lease(s) exceed this amount at any time, the District reserves the right to levy 
assessments, for both debt service and operations and maintenance expenses, on the 
[Stadium Property] in accordance with applicable Florida Statutes (including those 
limiting the District’s assessment lien to the leasehold interest only). 
 

In the event Orange County does not impose ad valorem taxes on the [Stadium 
Property], the City agrees that the [Stadium Property] property shall not be exempt from 
paying the amount of the City’s ad valorem real estate tax assessment, just as if such 
property were owned by a private entity.  The amount of such ad valorem tax 
assessment shall be based upon the then-current millage rate for the City with the 
valuation of the [Stadium Property] determined using professionally accepted appraisal 
practices.  Finally, the City also agrees that it shall not contest the imposition and 
payment of [validly established public user fees] attributable to the [Stadium Property]. 
 
 

ARTICLE 8 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 Section 8.01. Term of Agreement. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall 
expire at the earlier of (i) forty (40) years from the Effective Date, or (ii) the date on 
which all Qualified Bonds issued by the District  secured by EIP, have fully matured, 
amortized or been redeemed, defeased or otherwise been paid in full (the “Expiration 
Date”). Qualified Bonds issued by the District to be secured, in whole or in part, by EIP 
must mature no later than the end of 30th fiscal year after a construction period of not to 
exceed three (3) years after the fiscal year in which the EIP is first paid to the District or 
the fiscal year in which this Agreement is subsequently amended.  Refunding bonds are 
limited to a maturity matching that of the initial bonds issued by the District. 
 
 Section 8.02. Dispute Resolution. 
 
 The parties agree to resolve disputes related to the interpretation or performance 
of this Agreement pursuant to the requirements of the Florida Governmental Conflict 
Resolution Act, as set forth in Florida Statutes, Section 164.101, et seq. (the “Resolution 
Act”), the provisions of which are incorporated into this Agreement.  
 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon a failure to resolve a dispute as provided in 
the Resolution Act, parties may avail themselves of all other available legal rights and 
remedies. 
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 Section 8.03. Enforcement Costs. 
 
 To the extent not provided for in the Resolution Act, in the event either party is 
required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all costs incurred pursuing such 
enforcement, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 
 Section 8.04. Notices. 
 
 Notices shall be deemed to have been duly given if hand-delivered or mailed by 
certified or overnight mail, postage prepaid, as follows: 
 
 City:  City of Winter Park 
   401 Park Avenue South 
   Winter Park, Florida 32789 
 
 District: Ravaudage Community Development District 
   P.O. Box 350 
   Winter Park, FL 32790 
 
 with a copy to: the District Manager and/or District Collection Agent as disclosed 
in the public records of Orange County. 
 
 Any of the parties may, by notice in writing to the other parties, designate any 
further or different addresses to which subsequent notices shall be sent. 
 
 Section 8.05. Severability. 
 
 If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions of this Agreement 
shall be held to contrary to any express provision of law or contrary to any policy of 
express law, although not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for any 
reason whatsoever be held invalid, then such covenants, agreements or provisions shall 
be null and void and shall be deemed separate from the remaining covenants, 
agreements or provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 Section 8.06. Controlling Law. 
 
 All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the City and the 
District contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, 
obligations and agreements of the City and the District to the fullest extent provided by 
the Constitution and the laws of the State of Florida.  Any and all provisions of this 
Agreement and any proceeding seeking to enforce or challenge any provision of this 
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any 
proceeding pertaining to this Agreement shall be Orange County, Florida. 
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 Section 8.07. Limited Obligations of Parties; No Member Liability. 
 
 The respective obligations of the parties hereto under this Agreement shall be 
limited as provided in this Agreement. 
 
 No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any present or future 
member of the governing body or agent or employee of the City or the District in its, his 
or their individual capacity, and neither the members of the governing body of the City 
or the District nor any official executing this Agreement shall be liable personally or shall 
be subject to any accountability for reason of the execution by the City or the District of 
this Agreement or any act pertaining thereto. 
 
 Section 8.08. Recording. 
 
 The parties agree that, after approval of this Agreement by the respective 
governing bodies of the City and the District and the execution thereof by the duly 
qualified and authorized officers of each of the parties hereto, this Agreement shall be 
filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 163.01(11) of the Cooperation Act, and shall be recorded in 
the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
 Section 8.09. Other Acts.  
 
 The officers, employees and agents of the City and the District are hereby 
authorized to execute such documents, instruments and contracts, whether or not 
expressly contemplated hereby, and to do all things and acts required by the provisions 
of this Agreement as may be necessary or desirable for full, punctual and complete 
performance of all the terms, covenants, provisions and agreements herein and therein 
contained, or as otherwise may be necessary or desirable to effectuate the purpose and 
intent of this Agreement. 
 
 
 Section 8.10. Indemnification. 
 
 Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of 
liability of the District or the City, including its supervisors, commissioners, officers, 
agents or employees, beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability 
which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any 
third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under 
the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law. 
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 Section 8.11. Headings. 
 
 The various headings used in this Agreement are used for indexing and 
organizational purposes only and are not to be used to interpret, construe, apply or 
enforce its substantive provisions. 
 
 Section 8.12. Entire Agreement; Amendment. 
 
 This Agreement (including and any written amendments hereof executed by the 
parties) constitutes the entire agreement and, to the extent provided herein, supersedes 
all prior agreements and understandings, oral and written, among the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified 
except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties to this Agreement. 
  
 Section 8.13. Binding Effect.  
 
 To the extent provided herein, this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, 
their respective successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, 
their respective successors and assigns, and shall run with the land. 
 
 Section 8.14. Severability. 
 
 In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or 
render unenforceable any other provision hereof. [ALREADY IN SECTION 8.05 
ABOVE.] 
 
 Section 8.145. Execution in Counterparts. 
 
 This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 
 
 Section 8.156. Applicable Law and Venue. 
 
 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Florida. Venue for any action or proceeding to construe or enforce the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, 
Florida. This Agreement shall be recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, 
Florida. 
 
 Section 8.167. No Third Party Beneficiaries 
 
 There are no third party beneficiaries and no party shall have any rights pursuant 
to this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement except for the Ravaudage 
Community Development District and the City of Winter Park. 
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COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE TO 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Interlocal 
Agreement to be executed and delivered as of the Effective Date. 
 
      Kenneth W. Bradley, Mayor 
      City of Winter Park, Florida 
 
 
              
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Print:        
City Clerk 
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COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE TO 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Interlocal 
Agreement to be executed and delivered as of the Effective Date. 
 
      Ravaudage Community Development 
      District 
 
 
              
      Print:______________________ 
      Chairman 
      Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Print:        
Secretary to the Board of Supervisors 
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RAVAUDAGE 
REDEVELOPMENT 

 

3/9/2013 
Community Development District Proposal 
Impact Analysis 

 

The impact analysis takes a look at the redevelopment plan and 

Community Development District (CDD) interlocal agreement 

proposed for the Ravaudage site to help determine whether the 

city can support its level of service given the contributions of 

municipal funds requested to incentivize the project.   
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Ravaudage Redevelopment 
 
C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  D I S T R I C T  P R O P O S A L  I M P A C T  
A N A L Y S I S  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The proposed 50+ acre development referred to as Ravaudage located at the NW corner of 
Hwy 17-92 and Lee Rd could potentially increase the tax base by a significant amount if 
completed as planned. The developer has requested that the city consider approving a CDD 
that is municipally supported by incremental revenues from the city share of taxes and fees 
(property taxes, electric franchise fees and taxes, water taxes, stormwater fees) that could go 
towards supporting the needed upgrades to infrastructure necessary to complete the project. 
Using developer submitted documents an impact analysis of the proposed final build-out has 
been completed to examine whether the revenues received by the city would be sufficient to 
cover costs associated with maintaining Winter Park’s well established level of service.  

Development Proposal 

The proposed 3-year redevelopment is made up of primarily mixed-use projects with small 
scale retail (median SF 11,000) and office (median SF 10,468) locations with two larger 
multifamily projects (300+ units apiece), hotel rooms, and a stadium. Proposed scope and 
taxable value: 

Apartments: 756 units 

Townhomes: 60 homes 

Hotel Rooms: 320 rooms 

Office Space: 378,625 SF 

Retail Space: 163,339 SF 

Restaurants: 76,114 SF 

Minor League Baseball Stadium 

Est. Taxable Value at full build-out: $197.6 million. (Approximate 24% increase to existing 
commercial taxable values.)  

Financial Findings 

Revenue Sharing Summary 

As proposed the establishment of a CDD that is municipally supported contemplates the 
contribution of an amount equivalent to 50% of property tax increment generated (75% for first 
5 years), and 50% of electric franchise fees and taxes, water taxes, and stormwater fees. Any 
fees generated would be solely used for the purpose of contributing to debt service payments 
on infrastructure the city would eventually become owners of and the city is under no 
obligation to meet debt service payments if revenues are lower than anticipated. The term of 
the municipal contributions would not exceed 35 years which is the approximate term for bond 
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financing. Making some revisions to the developer’s revenue calculations1 the following 
outlines the municipal revenues that would annually go to the CDD and what would remain with 
the city for the first six years. Values in Year 6 continue over the 35 year term.  

Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 
Est. CDD Share 

of Revenues $         - $ 25,827 $ 360,854 $  921,727 $  921,727 $ 921,727 $ 734,082 

Est. City Share 
of Revenues $ 58,295 $ 84,122 $ 284,889 $  604,730 $  604,730 $ 604,730 $ 792,376 

 

The net present value of the future revenue stream over 35 years will vary depending upon the 
discount rate utilized.  

Net Present Value of Revenues Available for Debt 
Service based on varying discount rates 

4% $                  13,156,714 
5% $                  11,470,436 
6% $                  10,088,964 
7% $                    8,946,854 

 

This indicates that the developer could potentially use the revenue stream from the city to 
finance between $9 – 13 million in infrastructure improvements. The developer has provided a 
list that indicates over $70 million will be needed for infrastructure. 

City Services Cost Summary 

In order to contemplate participating in any development incentive that reduces general fund 
revenue the city must determine if the level of service extended to the project can be 
supported while giving away a portion of revenues. Many aspects of this redevelopment assist 
with the affordability of extending city services including the fact that it is primarily a 
commercial development, the CDD will be responsible for maintaining all internal landscaping 
and parks related costs, and that the project is located in proximity to existing fire services.  
The primary costs required to extend city services will mostly be related to police and 
maintenance of public rights-of-way (roads, stormwater pipes, etc.)2.  

 Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 
Est. Annual City 

Services Costs $         - $   79,927 $   79,927 $  780,632 $  679,560 $ 679,560 $ 679,560 

Net 
Surplus/Deficit $ 58,295 $   4,194 $ 204,962 $ (175,902) $ (74,829) $(74,829) $112,817 

Cumulative 
Surplus/Deficit $ 58,295 $  62,489 $267,451 $    91,549 $    16,719 $(58,110) $  54,707 

 

                                                   
1 Downward revision on anticipated property tax and stormwater revenues primarily accounted for the 
decline in overall revenue generated. Electric and Water calculations were not adjusted. 
2 Analysis assumes that the city will take over ownership of infrastructure at project completion and not wait 
for the termination of the CDD.  
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At the end of Year 5 the property tax increment sharing would decrease to 50% thereby 
creating a net surplus annually of $112K. This amount is then accrued annually over the 35 year 
term. The net present value of the city’s Net Surplus/Deficit over 35 years at a 5% discount rate 
is approximately $1.22 million, indicating that the city could afford contributing the proposed 
share of revenues for a temporary period and still support extending city services. This is 
conditioned on all assumptions of this analysis being met with no material change to the deal 
terms.  

Recommendations 

The impact analysis only examines the feasibility of maintaining city services if a revenue 
sharing agreement with a CDD is created. It does not address policy considerations of whether 
a CDD is needed for redevelopment to happen. Given the complicated nature of any 
arrangement a few assumptions and recommendations are included:  

1) Make Revenue Sharing Easy: Only agree to share revenue sources that are easy to 
track and attribute to the redevelopment and generate enough revenue to be worth the 
administrative work of allocating them each year.  

2) Mitigate Development Timing Risk: If the city contemplates assuming any 
maintenance of public ROW the assumption of those areas should be correlated to 
corresponding development so that tax revenues to support services are available.  

3) Avoid Assuming Ownership of Costly Private Sector Items: Many design elements of 
this project including parking lots, structured parking, and fountain/plaza areas could 
become part of the discussion for city ownership but are expensive to maintain.  

4) Clearly Identify Cost Responsibilities: Any agreement entered into that contemplates 
reducing funding for city services needs to make sure that responsibility for potential 
costs are clearly assigned.  

5) Consider Capital Funding Priorities: The analysis only looks at the incremental cost of 
providing services and does not discuss the policy issue of priorities for funding. 
Services for this redevelopment can be maintained at the reduced revenue rate due to 
the nature of the development and proximity to existing resources however the funding 
provided to incentivize infrastructure would not be available for other city projects or 
capital improvements (e.g. new city hall, streetscapes, etc.). Granted if development 
never occurs on this site then there would be no funds to spend on other projects.  

6) Consider Precedent: Agreeing to incentivize any development creates a precedent that 
other developers and investors will want. Any revenue sharing policy decision should 
carefully weigh the reasons for sharing revenues, the need for it, and how it might be 
used and applied in other areas of the city.   
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PROJECT OVERVIEW  
The proposed 53 acre redevelopment called Ravaudage occupies the site historically referred 
to as Home Acres located at the NW corner of the 17-92 and Lee Rd. intersection in Winter 
Park.  

The proposed 3-year redevelopment is made up of primarily mixed-use projects with small 
scale retail (median SF 11,000) and office (median SF 10,468) locations with two larger 
multifamily projects (300+ units apiece), hotel rooms, and a stadium. Proposed scope and 
taxable value: 

 Apartments: 756 units 
 Townhomes: 60 homes 
 Hotel Rooms: 320 rooms 
 Office Space: 378,625 SF 
 Retail Space: 163,339 SF 
 Restaurants: 76,114 SF 
 Minor League Baseball Stadium 

Est. Taxable Value at full build-out: $193 million. 

Est. Square footage of developed building space: 2.4 million 

As part of the proposal the developer is requesting that the city contribute a share of 
incremental tax revenues received from the future development of the project. The developer 
plans to establish a CDD and using a combination of assessments and city contributed funds 
finance the construction of needed infrastructure improvements to make the development 
attractive to future tenants. To-date the corner fountain plaza, an Ale House restaurant, and the 
infrastructure needed to support it, have been completed.  
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ASSUMPTIONS & METHODOLOGY 

Assumptions 

A number of variables can influence the outcome of any impact analysis. Assumptions used 
when approaching the review of CDD proposal have been outlined below: 

1) Analysis is based on documentation received as of the date of this report. Findings may 
be materially altered by changes to timeline, development mix, and size of proposed 
projects.  

2) The analysis only considers those issues related to determining whether city services 
can be supported while the proposed revenue sharing agreement is in effect. This 
means only ongoing operation expenses associated with providing city services are 
included as well as the capital costs associated with providing those services (e.g. 
vehicle replacement for police use over 35 year period).  

3) Assumes that one-time revenues such as parks impact fees from new residential or 
building and permit fees received do not affect the analysis of determining support for 
revenue sharing as those funds are not available to cover the cost to serve the 
development. However an estimate of these revenues is included under 
Recommendations – Other Revenue at the end of this document.  

4) Capital improvement costs undertaken by the city’s enterprise funds are not considered 
part of the analysis as any return on invested capital is already accounted for in the rates 
charged by those entities in the natural course of doing business.  

5) Assumes that the CDD will handle all internal landscaping and lighting service and 
maintenance.  

6) Assumes that the milage rate will remain constant at 4.0923. 
7) The model includes no inflationary adjustments as the developer submitted documents 

contained none. Not including any inflation adjustment indicates a belief that revenues 
and expenses will rise at about the same rate over the long term. If rates are considered 
to be greatly divergent then inflation assumptions would need to be included.  

8) Assumes that the city will not take ownership of parking lots, parking structures, or 
plazas/fountains. 

Methodology 

To approach this analysis staff utilized the existing revenue model work submitted to the city 
by the developer. Staff reviewed assumptions regarding city revenues generated by each of 
the sources and made changes to those assumptions based on findings. Every department 
head was then asked to take a look at the proposed build-out and provide their estimate of the 
cost to provide services. Those figures were then compared against the city’s share of 
revenues to determine if city-services could be supported. The following outlines some brief 
general edits made to the model: 

1) Analysis term expanded to 35 from 30 years to match the latest language in the 
proposed interlocal agreement.  
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2) Does not include any consideration of revenue sharing for natural gas tax, 
communications services tax, solid waste franchise fee, fuel oil, or half-cent sales tax.  

3) Assumes police, fire, and parks costs to start during the final (3rd year) of construction.  
4) Public Works costs are split with approximately half occurring in the first year to 

represent allocation for replacement of roads and piping that the city already owns that 
are either being built today or will be built within a year. The remainder of the cost is 
slated to commence after the development is complete (4th year) to coincide with when 
the remaining ROW would be conveyed to the city and therefore become a municipal 
responsibility.  
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REVENUE ANALYSIS 
The proposal calls for a contribution by the city to the CDD of incremental revenues received 
from certain taxes and fees due to the redevelopment of the Ravaudage site. These revenues 
would then be used to help secure financing which could contribute to the total site preparation 
costs.3 The developer proposal asks for the following share of city revenues over the term of 
the 35 year agreement: 

Amount equal to Property Tax Increment: 75% first 5 years, 50% thereafter 

Electric Franchise Fee and Taxes: 50% 

Water Taxes: 50%  

Stormwater Fees: 50% 

Natural Gas Tax: 50% 

Communications Services Tax: 50% 

Solid Waste Franchise Fee: 50% 

Fuel Oil Tax: 50% 

The developer’s documents only contained revenue estimates for the Property Taxes, Electric, 
Water, and Stormwater revenues, the remaining revenue sources are either not controlled by 
the city and/or difficult to attribute to a specific development. As the contribution made by the 
city would be an ongoing process it would be difficult and could lead to future contention if 
revenue items that are not easy to identify, quantify and attribute to a specific area are included 
in a long term deal. For this reason, the staff review only focuses on those items submitted by 
the developer and suggests that the other revenue sources be removed from consideration.  

Property Tax Revenues 

Taxable values are annually calculated and assessed by the Orange County Property 
Appraiser. Changes in value are recorded against specific parcel IDs and are easy to track and 
compare over time. Contributing incremental value to the CDD is much like the contributions 
made annually to the CRA. The assessed values of properties are not market rate comparisons 
but valuations created for taxing purposes, therefore the value of a property if it’s sold may be 
much higher (or lower) than the assessed value placed upon it by the Property Appraiser.  

The developer’s project is comprised of a number of building types for which comparison 
properties can be analyzed to see how the proposed development may be assessed. The 
developer submitted the following assumptions regarding assessment for their revenue model: 

 

                                                   
3 Site setup costs estimated at $77 million from developer submitted documents. 



Ravaudage Redevelopment 

 Page 9 

 

 

Property Type Est. Value Unit Measure 
Apartments $100,000 per unit 
Townhomes $400,000 per unit 
Hotel Rooms $100,000 per room 

Retail (per sq. ft.) $225 per SF 
Office (per sq. ft.) $200 per SF 

Stadium $15,000,000 per unit 
Restaurants $225 per SF 

 

Using those assumptions the total taxable value of the completed development would equal 
approximately $273 million and generate approximately $1.12 million in annual tax increment.4 

In reviewing taxable valuations the multifamily figures seemed appropriate when compared 
against other multifamily projects in the area. Values were left unchanged at $100K per unit.  

Townhome valuations seemed a little high at $400K a unit. Comparing to the townhome project, 
Casa Jardin, on Pennsylvania Avenue if the developer’s townhomes are approximately 2,500 SF 
they would have a value of about $370,000 apiece. Staff gave a slight premium to the number 
for new construction and revised townhomes to $380K per unit. 

No comparable hotel rooms came in at a $100K valuation per room other than the Grand 
Bohemian in downtown Orlando at $95K per room. Most business type hotels are on the rolls at 
$30 – 45K per room (Mt Vernon = $23K, Courtyard Marriot = $45K, Hampton Inn = $34K). Given 
these comparisons staff reduced hotel room valuation by half, still a significant premium over 
existing hotels, to $50,000 per room. 

Retail valuation at $225 per SF is quite high and staff did not find any comparison locally that 
matched it. Retail valuations also fluctuate wildly depending upon the type and size of the 
product. Larger retail locations like grocers, big box, and strip centers are anywhere from $40 
- $60 per SF. Smaller locations can get much higher premiums such as the building where 
Jewels by Peter B is located ($172 per SF), See Optics on Park Ave ($180 per SF), SunTrust Plaza 
($85 per SF), former location of Florida Frame House in Hannibal Sq. (115 per SF). Due to the 
significant swing in valuations, staff chose a more conservative figure of $120 per SF.  

Office valuations at $200 per SF were also considered high, about double what larger office 
projects are valued on the rolls.  Some of the newly completed medical office projects down by 
Orange Ave. and Princeton are valued at $138 per SF to $112 per SF. The BankFirst building on 
Morse is valued at about $114 per SF. Given these valuations staff chose to revise office 
valuations to $120 per SF.  

The Stadium estimated value of $15 million is difficult to review as there are few comparable 
projects. The Rollins Stadium on Orange Ave is valued at $3.5 million on 6 acres. The stadium in 

                                                   
4 Developer makes some additional assumptions regarding homestead exemptions. 
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Daytona Beach is only valued at $2.5 million and sits on waterfront on over 20 acres. It is likely 
that any stadium slightly larger than the Rollins property considered for Ravaudage would have 
a premium, and the land entitlements in the Ravaudage area are greater, for analysis purposes 
staff chose a value of $6 million.  

Restaurant space at $225 per SF is only a little higher than comparable properties. The Ale 
House on Alafaya and Florida Mall are valued at $175 and $181 per SF respectively. PF Changs 
in Winter Park Village is at $199 per SF. Given these comparables staff adjusted restaurants to 
$200 per SF.  

Property Type Original Value Staff Revision Unit Measure 
Apartments $100,000 $100,000 per unit 
Townhomes $400,000 $380,000 per unit 
Hotel Rooms $100,000 $50,000 per room 

Retail (per sq. ft.) $225 $120 per SF 
Office (per sq. ft.) $200 $120 per SF 

Stadium $15,000,000 $6,000,000 each 
Restaurants $225 $200 per SF 

 

Using the revised assumptions of taxable value the project at full build-out would be valued at 
$197 million and generate approximately $750,000 in annual property tax revenue. The CDD 
would receive 75% for 5 years and 50% thereafter.5  

In addition to lowering the overall projected annual revenues from property taxes, staff also 
added the reduction of the base year value from the total taxable value of the project. Like a 
CRA, when a CDD is established the existing valuation of the parcels is retained by the city and 
the increment accrues to the CDD. The current estimate of the Ravaudage parcels is about $14 
million, so the completed development at $197 million would be an incremental change of $183 
million. That is the figure from which the share of property taxes can be calculated and is 
already reflected in the $750K annual number above. In addition to the $750K generated 
annually by the increment, the city would exclusively receive the taxes generated from the 
base year value of $14 million, or approximately $58K per year. That $58K is added to the city 
share of revenues as part of the estimate of total revenues available to support city services.  

Electric Franchise Fee and Utility Taxes 

Electric Franchise fees and utility taxes provided by the developer came from analysis done by 
the Electric Utility. Staff made no recommended changes and left the total annual value 
contributed by the development at $582K annually. The CDD would receive 50% for theses 
revenues for the term of the agreement. 

Water Utility Taxes 
                                                   
5 Note that the 75% sharing is in effect during build-out not at completion so while the sharing percentage is 
higher the actual revenue generated is lower in the earlier years while projects are completed and placed on 
the rolls.  
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Water utility tax figures were based on data provided to the developer by the Utility. Overall 
the numbers seemed a little low based on billing histories of other properties but the changes 
to the rates made no material difference to the results so staff retained the assumptions made 
by the developer. Total annual water tax revenues remain at $24,000. The CDD would receive 
50% for theses revenues for the term of the agreement. 

Stormwater Fees 

Stormwater fees were revised downward from $136K annually to $111K. Apartment and 
Townhome valuations were revised upward ($98.88 and $118.68 per unit respectively) to 
reflect correct per unit fees and hotel rooms were downgraded to reflect pricing based on 
impervious coverage, not per unit calculations. Of the $111K generated annually, the CDD 
would receive 50% for the term of the agreement. 

Summar y of Revenue Revisions 

Recommended changes to revenue assumptions result in the CDD share of anticipated annual 
revenues declining from $1.21 million to $922K for the first 5 years and $734K thereafter. This 
reflects downward revisions to property tax and stormwater fee revenues. Over the 35 year 
term the net present value of the revenues ranges from $9 million to $13 million depending 
upon the discount rate applied.  
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CITY-SERVICES COSTS 
City costs associated with providing services to the proposed development are limited due to 
the nature of the development and the contemplation of a CDD that would assume some duties 
that the city would normally undertake. This analysis assumes that the city would take 
ownership of rights-of-way (not already owned by the city) once the development is built, that 
means maintenance of roads, curb, sidewalks, piping, ponds, and landscaped areas. 
Additional operational costs of maintaining Water and Electric Utility costs are not considered 
as the cost to provide services is part of the rates charged by those entities and is not impacted 
by a revenue sharing agreement of General Fund fees and taxes. Additionally no attempt has 
been made to include inflationary adjustments to expenditures. The assumption is that over the 
long term, revenues and expenditures will inflate at the same rate. If it is believed that these 
rates of inflation could be significantly different then an inflationary component would need to 
be added. Below is the summary of anticipated costs by department. Each of these was created 
in consultation with the respective head of the department.  

Police Ser vices 

The presence of residential development with the approximately 800 living units and estimated 
1,200 – 1,600 new residents requires the addition of a new community policing officer and a 
shift (4 people) of officers. Salary, benefits, and overtime estimates as well as new and ongoing 
equipment and vehicle needs over the 35 year term were factored into the annual cost 
requirements.  Life of police vehicles, annual maintenance and fuel, and salvage value are 
based on historical figures.6 All other equipment was given a 5 year life with no salvage value. 
Replacement costs for vehicles and equipment are set aside annually and smoothed over the 
term resulting in a first year startup cost of $651K and a subsequent annual cost of $450K.  

Police costs are timed to commence in the third year to coincide with the completion of the 
residential component of the project. Factors that could affect these figures include the timing 
the development completion (would push forward or push back when costs are incurred) and 
the composition of the development. Property types that typically demand a greater police 
presence are residential units, retail strips centers, and bars and restaurants where alcohol is 
served.  

Fire & EMS Ser vices 

The Fire Department believes that this development plan can be mostly supported out of 
reserve capacity. The factors that drive cost for the Fire Department are distance to the site and 
the type of property of which the development is composed. Due to the proximity to existing 
resources centers and that the project is primarily commercial in nature, there are no fire costs 
associated with this redevelopment other than the addition of funding for further fire inspection 
services. Fire costs commence in the 3rd year and total about $30K annually. 

                                                   
6 Data provided by Winter Park Police Department and Fleet Division. 
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Fire services cost could be affected significantly if any assisted living or senior housing 
becomes part of this development. Currently none are proposed for the areas within Winter 
Park but this change could incur further expenditure due the volume of calls generated by that 
use type. 

Building, Planning, & Economic Development Ser vices 

Any costs incurred by these departments would be during the permitting and construction 
phase, are temporary in nature, and would be supported by permitting fees.  

Parks & Recreation Ser vices 

Parks Department costs are driven by landscape maintenance and the presence of public 
recreation facilities. The Ravaudage redevelopment contains no public parks or facilities and 
all internal landscaping including tree maintenance, fountains, and planter areas are the 
responsibility of the CDD. A total of $20K per year was allocated to provide miscellaneous 
services that may be needed around the periphery of the development including maintenance 
of hanging baskets or other beautification elements. Parks fees are set to commence in the 3rd 
year. 

Any change to the expected services offered by the CDD as it regards landscaping would 
directly impact Parks costs if city staff had to provide internal maintenance. It is an assumption 
that the responsibilities of the CDD and the city will be clearly laid out as it regards share of 
maintenance. 

Public Works Ser vices 

Public Works Department costs related to stormwater (pipes and inlets) and maintenance of 
roads, curb, sidewalk, sweeping, and signal maintenance. The city will not be paying to place 
any of the roads or pipe but it is assumed that the city will take over ROW maintenance once 
the development is complete. Currently three roads are already controlled by the city so the 
annual maintenance cost of those ROWs will commence immediately with the balance of 
maintenance costs for the additional roads commencing once the development is complete. To 
calculate costs associated with repair and replacement the total quantity of roads, pipe, inlets, 
curb, and sidewalk were calculated and compared against their useful life. Once a total 
replacement cost was calculated and divided by its useful life an annual reserve fund allocation 
was setup to provide an ongoing, smoothed cost allocation.  

Item Annual Cost 
Street Sweeping  $           5,590  
Pipe Replacement  $         32,434  
Inlet Replacement  $         10,000  
Asphalt Replacement  $         37,840  
Curb Replacement  $         13,622  
Sidewalk Replacement  $         60,368  
Traffic Signal Maintenance  $         10,000  
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Initial obligations place cost reserve at about $80K annually with full cost for 
maintenance/reserve commencing in Year 4 at approximately $170,000. The majority of these 
costs does not reflect actual cash payments but represent funding to set aside for future repair 
and replacement. The reality is that brand new roads and pipes will not need any service for 
some time which may add some flexibility when considering the ability to absorb costs in the 
early years of the interlocal. Cost for all roads not currently under city control commence in 
year 4 to correspond with the year after the project is complete while costs for city roads are 
implemented immediately. Factors that affect the cost would be changes to the road and 
sidewalk dimensions as well as the timing of the completion of the development.  

Summar y City-Ser vices Costs 

Total City-service costs are approximately $680K annually over the long term. Costs in year 4 
and 5 are continued over the 35 year term of the agreement. Costs peak in the 3rd Year due to 
vehicle and equipment costs associated with Police. Below is a table of costs over a 5 year 
period. 

City Services Costs Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 
Combined Police Services 

Costs 
$          
- $              - $             - $   650,780 $      459,780 $    459,780 

Combined Fire Services 
Costs 

$          
- $              - $             - $     29,925 $        29,925 $      29,925 

Combined Parks Services 
Costs 

$          
- $              - $             - $     20,000 $        20,000 $      20,000 

Combined Public Works 
Related Costs 

$          
- $   79,927 $    79,927 $     79,927 $     169,855 $   169,855 

Total Est. Annual City 
Expenditures 

$          
- $   79,927 $    79,927 $   780,632 $      679,560 $    679,560 

 

These cost calculations are subject to change depending upon the final allocation of 
responsibilities in any interlocal agreement. The city should stay away from costly 
maintenance items like fountains, surface parking and structured parking as these are typically 
the responsibility of private developers.  
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ANALYSIS RESULTS 

Net Surplus/Deficit 

Resulting revenues and expenditures indicate that the city could afford to offer a portion of 
revenues for a temporary amount of time with a few cautions: no contingency is factored in 
these figures and the city cannot afford to offer 75% of property taxes longer than already 
contemplated. A net surplus is only generated in year 6 when the property tax sharing reverts 
to 50% and this surplus of $112.8K continues over the term of the agreement. Revenues 
received prior to the commencement of city services help to absorb net deficits in the early 
years. In Year 5 there is a negative cumulative surplus which is resolved the following year 
when the property tax sharing rate drops to 50%. Though this is a negative number in reality 
the city will have sufficient funds in the maintenance reserve to cover costs in the short term as 
it is unlikely that any of the sidewalk repair, or asphalt replacement funds would have been 
used at this point. However the tightness of the results in the short term only reinforce the issue 
of mitigating timing risk and reaching agreement as to what and when costs should be 
assumed.  

Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 
Est. City Share 

of Revenues  $ 58,295   $ 84,122  $284,889  $  604,730  $ 604,730   $ 604,730  $ 792,376  
Est. Annual City 

Services Costs  $         -    $ 79,927  $  79,927  $  780,632  $ 679,560   $ 679,560  $ 679,560  
Net 

Surplus/Deficit  $ 58,295   $   4,194  $204,962 
 

$(175,902)  $ (74,829)  $ (74,829)  $ 112,817  
Cumulative 

Surplus/Deficit  $ 58,295   $ 62,489  $267,451  $    91,549  $   16,719   $ (58,110)  $   54,707  
 

Other Revenues 

The project spins off additional revenues not accounted for in this analysis, some would be 
directly attributable to supporting city services such as the communications services tax, 
natural gas tax, half cent sales tax, etc., others are one time revenues associated with building 
new development (parks impacts and building and permit fees). Those that would support city 
services affected by the revenue sharing agreement would act as an additional contingency to 
any future cost pressures not accounted for in the model. However they are difficult to estimate 
and staff is not comfortable including an estimate of their value without a methodology to 
calculate what they could generate.  

Building, Permitting, and Impact Fees 

One-time revenues should certainly be acknowledged but not considered as part of the 
analysis of whether revenue sharing should take place. Regardless of whether a CDD is 
created and an agreement reached, the city would receive any impact or one time fees from 
development that occurs on the site. Using the Building Department permit fee calculation 
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worksheet and applying cost of construction valuation per SF from the ICC Building Valuation 
Data for varying types of IIA construction7 the following figures were reached: 

Building Department Fees: $4,770,972 

Affordable Housing Linkage Fee: $1,200,000 

Fire Department Fees: $2,154,8548 

School Impact Fees: $2,964,2769 

Parks Impact Fees: $1,512,00010 

These fees only become a relevant part of the revenue sharing discussion if it is believed that 
no development will happen on the site or that build-out will take much longer if no sharing 
agreement is reached.  

Recommendations 

The impact analysis only examines the feasibility of maintaining city services if a revenue 
sharing agreement with a CDD is created. It does not address policy considerations of whether 
a CDD is needed for redevelopment to happen. Given the complicated nature of any 
arrangement a few assumptions and recommendations are included:  

1) Make Revenue Sharing Easy: Only agree to share revenue sources that are easy to 
track and attribute to the redevelopment and generate enough revenue to be worth the 
administrative work of allocating them each year. Many revenue sources like 
communications services, half-cent sales tax, solid waste, natural gas tax, and fuel oil, 
either do not generate enough revenue to be worth splitting or are difficult to allocate to 
a specific geographic location. Thirty-five years is a long relationship and determining 
how to split the money should be clearly established upfront and in a manner that is 
easy to track, attribute, and estimate annually.  

2) Mitigate Development Timing/Failure Risk: The three year build-out proposed by 
the developer is extremely aggressive for the quantity of development proposed. If the 
city contemplates assuming any maintenance of public ROW the assumption of those 
areas should be correlated to corresponding development. If the city takes over roads 
maintenance but then the project does not get completed, there may be costs associated 
with maintenance that have no new source of revenue to support them. Agreement for 

                                                   
7 Supplies construction cost per SF data that could be used to estimate valuation of building projects for 
permitting purposes. Costs per SF applied were Residential $134, Hotel $162, Retail 115, Office $161, 
Restaurant $157. Total project valuation of $336.66 million for 2.4 million SF of building product. Assumes all 
dwelling units are new with no vested impacts.  
8 May be understated as some fees are flat rate and calculation was done as a single project not in many 
phases like it would occur in actuality.  
9 May be overstated as this analysis assumes no vested residential units in the area. 
10 May be over stated as this analysis assumes no vested residential units in the area. 
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taking ownership of any asset should be phased with project completion or timed to be 
taken over at the final completion of the development. 

3) Avoid Assuming Ownership of Costly Private Sector Items: Many design elements of 
this project including parking lots, structured parking, and fountain/plaza areas could 
become part of the discussion for city ownership. Though there are some benefits from a 
law enforcement standpoint these types of improvements are typically maintained by 
the private owners of property and the cost to operate them has not been included in 
this analysis.  

4) Clearly Identify Cost Responsibilities: Any agreement entered into that contemplates 
reducing funding for city services needs to make sure that responsibility for potential 
costs are clearly assigned. This particularly applies to landscaping maintenance costs 
which are not considered a city cost in this analysis as the CDD will assume that roll.  

5) Consider Capital Funding Priorities: The analysis only looks at the incremental cost of 
providing services and does not discuss the policy issue of priorities for funding. 
Services for this redevelopment can be maintained at the reduced revenue rate due to 
the nature of the development and proximity to existing resources however the funding 
provided to incentivize infrastructure would not be available for other city projects or 
capital improvements (e.g. new city hall, streetscapes, etc.). Granted revenues are only 
going to be generated for the city if something is developed on this site. Without 
development there would be no funds to consider for incentives or other capital 
projects. In weighing the decision to provide an incentive the accelerated speed at 
which the project may occur or the likelihood of getting a superior type of development 
or tenant mix should be evaluated. 

6) Consider Precedent: Agreeing to incentivize any development creates a precedent 
that other developers and investors will want. Any revenue sharing policy decision 
should carefully weigh the reasons for sharing revenues, the need for it, and how it 
might be used and applied in other areas of the city.  
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APPENDIX 



Ravaudage Redevelopment
City-Services Impact Analysis

11-Mar-13
Revenues 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Est. City Annual Property Tax Revenues 58,295$          58,295$      125,424$      245,940$      245,940$      245,940$      433,586$      433,586$      433,586$      433,586$      433,586$      
Est. City Annual Share of Electric -$                23,849$      129,108$      291,332$      291,332$      291,332$      291,332$      291,332$      291,332$      291,332$      291,332$      
Est. City Annual Share of Water Tax -$                897$           5,762$          11,980$        11,980$        11,980$        11,980$        11,980$        11,980$        11,980$        11,980$        
Est. City Annual Share of Stormwater Fees -$                1,082$        24,595$        55,479$        55,479$        55,479$        55,479$        55,479$        55,479$        55,479$        55,479$        

Total Est. Annual City Revenues 58,295$          84,122$      284,889$      604,730$      604,730$      604,730$      792,376$      792,376$      792,376$      792,376$      792,376$      

Expenditures 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Combined Police Services Costs -$                -$            -$              650,780$      459,780$      459,780$      459,780$      459,780$      459,780$      459,780$      459,780$      
Combined Fire Services Costs -$                -$            -$              29,925$        29,925$        29,925$        29,925$        29,925$        29,925$        29,925$        29,925$        
Combined Parks Services Costs -$                -$            -$              20,000$        20,000$        20,000$        20,000$        20,000$        20,000$        20,000$        20,000$        
Combined Public Works Related Costs -$                79,927$      79,927$        79,927$        169,855$      169,855$      169,855$      169,855$      169,855$      169,855$      169,855$      

Total Est. Annual City Expenditures -$                79,927$      79,927$        780,632$      679,560$      679,560$      679,560$      679,560$      679,560$      679,560$      679,560$      

Net Surplus/Deficit 58,295$          4,194$        204,962$      (175,902)$     (74,829)$       (74,829)$       112,817$      112,817$      112,817$      112,817$      112,817$      
Cumulative Surplus/Deficit 58,295$          62,489$      267,451$      91,549$        16,719$        (58,110)$       54,707$        167,523$      280,340$      393,156$      505,973$      
NPV @ 5% 1,221,882$     

Model Assumptions (Full list included in report document):

Does not assume any municipal ownership of parking lots or parking structures.

Assumes a 35 year term to the CDD revenue sharing agreement.

Assumes about half of Public Works costs to start in year 1 to reflect roads built and already under city control, remainder of costs to start in year 4 or the first year after the development is entirely completed. 

This model makes no inflation assumptions as the developer has made none. This does open interpretation of these results to inflation risk. If it is believed that expenditure items or the cost of doing business will inflate at a 

higher rate than revenues associated with this development that would reduce the long-term affordability of giving up city revenues.

This model uses the developer's timeline for the purpose of analysis. If this timeline is stretched beyond a 3 year build out it will cause some policy concerns regarding the phasing of city costs and when the city would take 

ownership of traditional municipal services built by the developer.

This model does not worry about capital costs invested by the water or electric utility to provide service for the construction of this development. It is assumed that the pricing model of those enterprise funds already takes 

into account a return on investment for capital expenditures. 

This analysis does not contemplate a share of natural gas, telecom, solid waste, or fuel oil fees. Those items not included would add some positive upside to the analysis results and provide a revenue cushion.

Analysis is only to determine whether the City can afford to give up some municipal revenues and still maintain services for this particular development.

Does not include one-time revenues like impact fees or permit revenues that would be part of any development. Those have been estimated in report for information purposes.

Only explores ongoing operational needs items and the capital costs associated with those needs (e.g. vehicles for police)

Assumes that all internal Parks maintenance costs are covered by the CDD (fountains, tree trimming, watering, potted plants, etc.)

Assumes that Police protection, Parks, Fire costs will start in year 3 or the final year in which build out is planned by the developer.



336,660,000.00$                          

2,400,000

BUILDING DEPARTMENT
1 Building/LCD Permit (0.9% of valuation plus $30.00) 3,029,970.00$                              

2 Plan Review (1/2 of Building/LDC permit fee) 1,514,985.00$                              

3 Inspector Training (0.04% of valuation) 134,664.00$                                  

4 Building Code Administratrators and Inspectors Fund (F.S.468.631) 45,676.80$                                    
(1.5% of fees in #1 and #2 X 0.67)

5 Florida HMO's Construction Recovery Fund (F.S.486.140) 45,676.80$                                    
(1.5% of fees in #1 and #2 X 0.67)

6 Affordable Housing ($0.50 per s.f. - new and/or remodeled floor area) 1,200,000.00$                              

5,970,972.60$                              

FIRE DEPARTMENT (fees only apply to commercial and multi-family projects)

7 Inspector Training 25.00$                                            

8 Construction Inpsections  (0.5% of valuation ... $25.00 minimum) 1,683,300.00$                              

9 Construction Plan Review  (0.05% of valuation + $55 ... $55.00 minimum) 168,385.00$                                  

10 Fire Protection Systems  (0.09% of valuation plus $75.00) 303,069.00$                                  

11 Fire Alarm Systems ($45.00 for valuation $1,000.00 or less - $75.00 for over $1,000.00) 75.00$                                            

2,154,854.00$                              

IMPACT FEES (applies to new housing units in NEW development)

756

12 School   ($ 6,525.00 for single family dwelling; $ 3,921.00/dwelling unit for multi-family) 2,964,276.00$                              

13 Parks & Recreation ($ 2,000.00/dwelling unit) 1,512,000.00$                              

4,476,276.00$                              

BUILDING AND FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES:
1 AND 2 FAMILY DWELLINGS 10,447,248.60$                            

MULTIFAMILY AND COMMERCIAL 12,602,102.60$                            

City of Winter Park

PERMIT FEE CALCULATIONS                                                     
Fill out blue cells only

Valuation rounded to next $1,000: 

New and/or remodeled floor area (s.f.):         excludes 

areas of garages, carports, cabanas, storage sheds, churches, tax exempt non-profit 

organizations, nursing homes and assisted living facilities.

Number of 'NEW' dwelling unit(s):
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